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Letter from the Chairman to Shareholders

Ernesto Fiirstenberg Fassio
Chairman of Banca Ifis S.p.A.

Dear Shareholders,

2024 was a complex year the world over. Despite this complexity and high economic uncertainty, we successfully
completed the three-year 2022-2024 Business Plan and D.0.E.S. (Digital, Open, Efficient, Sustainable), accelerating
the Banca Ifis Group's long-term, sustainable growth path. Growth took place under all relevant profiles - economic-
financial, industrial and sustainability - and allowed us to generate value for the benefit of all our stakeholders,
including in relation to ESG aspects, which are also fully organic to our strategic and operational model.

A few more details in relation to each of the three profiles (economic-financial, industrial and sustainability) listed.

Starting with the economic-financial dimension, we have exceeded all the main targets we had set ourselves with
our Business Plan, both in terms of net profit for each of the three years of its time-frame and in terms of
cumulative profit for the three-year period 2022-2024. The latter amounts to 463 million Euro, 12% above target.
As far as dividends are concerned, also thanks to the new dividend policy approved in 2023, we have significantly
improved our ability to generate value for our shareholders, paying out 295 million Euro in dividends over the
three-year period 2022-2024, a figure 47% higher than the plan target initially set at 200 million Euro.

From an industrial point of view too, we have successfully completed the implementation of the new 'Open' model
indicated in the plan: we have initiated commercial partnerships with leading operators (such as Fineco in deposit
accounts, Banca Generali and Zurich Bank in supporting entrepreneurs), while on the innovation front, we have
completed the roadmap of deep process transformation, thanks to the 76 million Euro investment that has enabled
us to become an even more agile and efficient organisation. These measures, together with the dynamism of the
sales network, enabled us to achieve positive results, which more than offset the increased cost of funding due to
higher interest rates than in the past.

The integration of sustainability in the Business Plan has allowed us to release value not only in economic and
industrial terms, thanks to an articulated programme of initiatives we have implemented in all areas of
sustainability: environmental, social and governance, in line with the UN 2030 Agenda and the 17 Sustainable
Development Goals. Also in 2024, in the wake of the activities that the Group has initiated since | took office as
Chairman, we continued our efforts to support SMEs on their path to sustainable transformation, with a particular
focus on the reduction of financed emissions, for which we have for years set a target of zero net emissions from
the loan portfolio by 2050. Alongside products to facilitate the energy transition and promote sustainable mobility
among our customers - such as the leasing of electric posts and removable photovoltaic systems or the rental of
e-bike fleets - we further developed partnerships with Italian and European institutions to support innovative
investments by SMEs. One example is the agreement with the European Investment Bank (EIB) for the activation
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of financing for companies totalling 300 million Euro, aimed at promoting innovation initiatives within the
“National Transition 4.0 Plan”.

The strong global transformations of our time make it increasingly clear that the social sphere must be considered
of primary importance in the sustainability strategy of a Group like ours, confirming the distinctive approach we
have been taking on these issues for years. This is why, through “Kaleidos”, the Social Impact Lab that develops
high social impact projects in three areas - inclusion, culture and territory, and personal well-being - we have made
investments in the three-year plan period of 7 million Euro, up from the 6 million Euro originally planned, with which
we have implemented more than 40 projects. The support to the Bambino Gesu Children's Hospital in the search
for innovative therapies to fight malignant tumours of the central nervous system and the support to the Banco
Alimentare Onlus Foundation for the equivalent of 10 million meals continued in 2024, involving, in the latter case,
also the Ifis People in the first corporate volunteering experience. Thanks to these projects, we were awarded the
prestigious accolade of best ESG programme in Europe in the Small-Mid Cap segment by the independent
research company Extel Institutional Investors. Also this year, MSCI further recognised our sustainability
positioning, upgrading our ESG rating to 'AA', placing us among the industry leaders.

With regard to the topics of diversity, equity and inclusion, our commitment in this regard, certified according to
the UNI PdR 125:2022 standard, has now led us having a percentage of women in the workforce of more than 50%
and a female-dominated Board of Directors. We have also formalised a policy to combat discrimination, violence
and harassment in the workplace, setting concrete targets to be achieved by 2030. Alongside our commitment to
the Ifis People, we continued to support initiatives for social inclusion in the areas where we operate, thanks to
our collaboration with, among others, the CAF and YOLK associations, which work with disadvantaged young
people in Milan and Rome, the Don Gino Rigoldi Foundation, which supports families in socio-economic difficulty,
and Articolo 3, operating in Bollate prison.

Support for medical-scientific research was further strengthened with the renewal of the commitment to the
aforementioned Bambino Gesu Children's Hospital and the Veneto Institute of Molecular Medicine (VIMM) for the
purchase of two important diagnostic and research instruments (a PET-CT scanner and a Lightsheet microscope),
which will make the activities of the two organisations even more effective. Finally, we ensured the continuation
of the activities of the Heal Foundation and its “Taxi solidale” project, which ensures adequate transportation for
young patients undergoing treatment at facilities in Rome and Milan.

Firmly believing that the promotion of the cultural ecosystem is a fundamental element in supporting the Italian
territory, we have further developed the 'Economy of Beauty' and 'Observatory on the Italian Sport System'
projects, which tell the story of the value of companies that make beauty their distinctive element and the
contribution of the Italian sport system to the country. Precisely in this last area, in 2024 we again supported young
CONI medallist athletes with the disbursement of 160 thousand Euro in scholarships and stood by the Ravano
Tournament, Europe's most important school youth sports event.

Our proprietary impact measurement model, developed in collaboration with the Polytechnic University of Milan,
allows us to orient Kaleidos's actions towards increasingly distinctive and valuable projects with objective
criteria, quantifying the impact on communities generated by social activities. The results of the measurement
showed that, on average, every Euro invested by Banca Ifis in sustainability initiatives generated more than five
Euro of economic value for the community.

Also this year, we announced that we wanted to strengthen our commitment to the world of art, through Ifis art, a
project | conceived and strongly desired, which brings together all the initiatives carried out by the Bank to promote
art, culture, contemporary creativity and related values: from the corporate collection to the International Sculpture
Park, to the project to recover Banksy's work in Venice and restore the Palazzo San Pantalon that houses it.

With the aim of increasingly integrating the Group's social agenda into our way of banking in the Npl Segment as
well, we launched an ambitious project in 2024 to strengthen the concept of 'social banking' and financial re-
inclusion in debt collection activities, with the definition of initiatives aimed at ensuring a sustainable approach
that offers customers the chance of 'financial rehabilitation'.

11
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All these initiatives allowed us to demonstrate in a concrete and tangible way, even during this financial year, our
desire to generate a positive economic, social and environmental impact, pursuing the double bottom line
approach that is the hallmark of our Bank.

Ernesto Fiirstenberg Fassio, Chairman of Banca Ifis S.p.A.

12
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Letter from the CEO to Shareholders

Frederik Geertman
CEO of Banca Ifis S.p.A.

Dear Shareholders,

2024 was a good year for Banca Ifis, which reported profits rising to 162 million Euro and increasing revenues
driven by the strength of its business model. In particular, Commercial & Corporate Banking revenues benefited
from our ability to innovate our offering and the dynamism of the sales network. These elements enabled
business growth and more than offset the lower demand for credit recorded by Italian companies, also due to
higher interest rate levels than in the past.

On the Npl front, on the other hand, revenues grew thanks to our historical recovery capacity on acquired portfolios,
which benefited above all from our social approach to the business and oriented towards dialogue with debtors,
favouring settlement agreements.

The Bank's historical policy of prudent risk management continued, as witnessed by the gross and net Npe ratios,
which improved to 5,4% and 2,9% respectively, with an average coverage ratio of 48% (73% for Npls and 45% for
UTPs).

The Bank's growth was achieved by further strengthening its capital ratios. Both the CET1 Ratio, at 16,10%, and
the Total Capital Ratio, at 18,11%, were up from 2023 and well above the standards required by the Regulator.
The strong capital position also allowed us to distribute total dividends of 111,5 million Euro, or 2,12 Euro per
share, which is around 40% above the Business Plan targets.

Financial growth was driven by a strong acceleration on the industrial front. We completed the digital
transformation path we had planned - a pillar of the D.0.E.S. Business Plan - continuing with the digitisation
process: from acquisition, to evaluation, to contracting, to after-sales, all stages of the relationship with the SME
have been digitised through the various platforms, including "mylfis" and “Next”. In order to strengthen our digital
infrastructure, for which we developed over 100 projects during the plan period, we have continued our research
and investigation process, also at international level, technological solutions to be more efficient and competitive.
We continued our product innovation, with the development of solutions aimed at supporting the sustainable
transition of SMEs, such as leasing in the automotive, electric mobility and sustainable energy sectors.

Equally important are the results achieved in the area of sustainability: the Bank completed the commitments
defined in the sustainable transition defined in the plan and followed up on the numerous regulatory changes that
have accompanied 2024 (such as the entry into force of the Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive). With
regard to the environment, we continued our commitment to reducing direct and indirect greenhouse gas

13
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emissions from our lending activities, as duly reported in the Group's Sustainability Statement and TCFD report,

now at its second edition. Socially, at the instigation of the Chair, we continued to support initiatives of value to

the region and the Ifis People. This commitment is now recognised by all stakeholders and has been confirmed
as a distinctive element of our way of doing things.

Building on this solid foundation, we are ready to look forward with confidence to the challenges of the market in
a 2025 that will see us continuing our short- and long-term development path.

Frederik Geertman, Chief Executive Officer of Banca Ifis S.p.A.

14
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General aspects

The "2024 Consolidated Financial Statements and Report" includes the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
related Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and this Directors' Report on the Group.

The balance sheet and income statement, within this Directors' Report on the Group, are presented in reclassified
form, according to management criteria, in order to provide timely information on the Group's general performance
based on aggregated economic and financial data that are quick and easy to understand.

To allow a more immediate reading of the results, a condensed reclassified consolidated income statement is
prepared within the Directors' Report on the Group. It should be noted that in relation to the acquisition of Revalea
S.p.A. finalised on 31 October 2023 and its entry into the scope of consolidation (initially as a standalone company
and thereafter as an incorporated company following the merger by incorporation of Revalea into Ifis Npl Investing
in the course of 2024 with accounting and fiscal effect from 1 January 2024), the figures for the year and in
particular the income statement figures may not be fully comparable with those of the previous year. However, it
should be noted that in the comments to the individual items, the contribution of the company acquired is
presented, where relevant.

For more details on this merger, refer to Part G "Business combinations" of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Analytical details of the restatements and reclassifications made with respect to the Consolidated Financial
Statements compliant with Bank of Italy Circular 262 are provided in separate tables published among the annexes
(see the section “Annexes” of the “2024 Consolidated Financial Statements and Report”), also in compliance with
the requirements of Consob Communication No. 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

Reclassifications and aggregations of the consolidated income statement concern the following:

e net credit risk losses/reversals of the Npl Segment are reclassified to interest receivable and similar
income (and therefore to "Net interest income") to the extent to which they represent the operations of
this business and are an integral part of the return on the investment;

e net allocations to provisions for risks and charges are excluded from the calculation of "Operating costs",

e cost and revenue items deemed as "non-recurring” (e.g. because they are directly or indirectly related to
business combination transactions, such as the "gain on a bargain purchase" in accordance with IFRS 3),
are excluded from the calculation of "Operating costs", and are therefore reversed from the respective
items as per Circular 262 (e.g. "Other administrative expenses", "Other operating income/costs") and
included in a specific item "Non-recurring expenses and income”,

e the ordinary and extraordinary charges introduced against the Group's banks (Banca Ifis and Banca
Credifarma) under the Single and National Resolution Mechanisms (SRF and NRF) and the Deposit
Protection Mechanism (DGS or FITD) are shown under a separate item called “Charges related to the
banking system” (which is excluded from the calculation of “Operating costs”), instead of being shown
under “Other administrative expenses” or “Net allocations to provisions for risks and charges”;

e the following is included under the single item "Net credit risk losses/reversals":

- net credit risk losses/reversals relating to financial assets measured at amortised cost (with the
exception of those relating to the Npl Segment mentioned above) and to financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

- net allocations to provisions for risks and charges for credit risk relating to commitments and
guarantees granted;

- profits (losses) from the sale/repurchase of loans at amortised cost other than those of the Npl
Segment.

The balance sheet components were aggregated without reclassification.

19
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The Segments of the financial numerical are attributed on the basis of homogeneous allocation criteria in order

to take into account both the specificity of the various segments and the need to guarantee effective monitoring
of business performance over time.

Moreover, the Segment information in relation to the items of the reclassified income statement shows the results
at the level of the net profit.

20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

AMOUNTS CHANGE

(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Cash and cash equivalents 505.016 857.533 (352.517) (41,1)%
Financial assets measured at fair value through o
profit or loss 249.101 234.878 14.223 6,1%
Financial assets measured at fair value through o
other comprehensive income 701.830 749.176 (47.346) (6,3)%
Receivables due from banks measured at o
amortised cost 703.763 637.567 66.196 10,4%
Receivables due from customers measured at o
amortised cost 10.810.018 10.622.134 187.884 1,8%
Total assets 13.825.738 14.051.361 (225.623) (1,6)%
Payables due to banks 1.443.250 2.717.139 (1.273.889) (46,9)%
Payables due to customers 7.001.763 5.814.624 1.187.139 20,4%
Debt securities issued 3.152.737 3.288.895 (136.158) (41)%
Consolidated equity 1.748.146 1.693.699 54.447 3,2%
RECLASSIFIED CONSOLIDATED YEAR CHANGE
INCOME STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
Net banking income 699.152 704.616 (5.464) (0,8)%
Net credit risk losses/reversals (37.670) (52.407) 14.737 (28,1)%
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 661.482 652.209 9.273 1,4%
Operating costs (406.916) (394.648) (12.268) 3,1%
Charges related to the banking system (8.136) (11.193) 3.057 (27,3)%
Net allocations to provisions for risks and (478) (6.878) 6.400 (93.1)%
charges
Non-recurring expenses and income (610) (2.919) 2.309 (79,1)%
Gain on disposals of investments - 986 (986) (100,0)%
Pre-?ax.proflt (Ios.s) for the period from 245.342 237.557 7.785 3,3%
continuing operations
Incomg taxes for the year relating to current (82.168) (75.647) (6.527) 8,6%
operations
Profit (loss) for the year 163.174 161.916 1.258 0,8%
(Profit) !os; for the year attributable to non- (1.596) (1.806) 210 (11.6)%
controlling interests
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the 161.578 160.110 1.468 0,9%
Parent company
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CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands of Euro)

Profit (loss) for the year 163.174 161.916
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes, not to be reclassified to profit or loss (3.657) (4.561)
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes, to be reclassified to profit or loss 3.102 19.815
Consolidated comprehensive income 162.619 177.170
Consolidated comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests (1.597) (1.806)
Consolidated comprehensive income attributable to the Parent company 161.022 175.364

Refer to the section “Group reclassified financial and income results” for comments on the dynamics in the
balance sheet and income statement. As regards the dynamics in terms of overall profitability and cash flows,
refer to Part D of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

within the "Consolidated Financial Statements", respectively.
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CERTIFIED

CET1 ratio 16,10% 14,87% 1,23%
Total Capital Ratio (1 18,11% 17,44% 0,67%
Number of company shares (in thousands) 53.811 53.811 0,0%
Number of shares outstanding at year end @ (in thousands) 52.572 52.468 0,2%
Price/book value per share 0,64 0,49 0,15
Dividend per share® 2,12 2,10 0,02

(1) CET1 and Total Capital include the profits accrued by the Banking Group at 31 December 2024, net of the related dividend,
including the portion distributed on an interim basis in compliance with the provisions of Article 2433, paragraph 4 of the Italian

Civil Code.

(2) Outstanding shares are net of treasury shares held in the portfolio.

(3) The figures for FY 2024 comprise the total of 1,20 Euro per share distributed as an interim dividend in November 2024 and

0,92 Euro per share as a proposal for a final dividend for the FY 2024 prepared by the Board of Directors of Banca Ifis.

GROUP ECONOMIC KPIs
ROE

9,4% 9,7% (0,3)%
ROA 1,2% 1,1% 0,1%
Reclassified cost/income ratio 58,2% 56,0% 2,2%
Earnings per share (EPS) 3,08 3,05 0,03
Payout ratio 69,0% 68,9% 0,1%
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Context

The international context and the Italian economy in 2024

In the final stretch of 2024, the expansion of global economic activity continued, albeit with uneven territorial
trends and with the real driver being the US. Indeed, US economic activity continued to expand in the second and
third quarters of 2024, at growth rates of 3% and 2,8% respectively, driven by household consumption. This pace
of growth will, according to OECD estimates, lead to a US GDP growth of 2,8% for the year as a whole, by far the
highest figure among advanced economies and not far off the 2,9% growth in 2023. The OECD forecast, as
reported by the Bank of Italy in its January 2025 Economic Bulletin, shows us that the world economy as a whole
is expected to expand by 3,2% in 2024.

Since August 2024, the cost of energy has again become a point of attention: the average of the TTF index values
(the Title Transfer Facility is the main virtual reference market for gas exchange in Europe, and the monthly average
is calculated on the basis of daily quotations referring to the month of supply) increased by 24,2%. The cause is
the combination of two factors: the increase in demand with the start of the cold season and, from the end of
December 2024, the interruption of Russian gas flows to Eastern Europe via Ukraine, a blockade brought about by
the non-renewal of the transit agreement between the two countries. However, the prospective supply risk seems
to be low, as the moderate increase in one-year futures contract prices would confirm.

Gas prices on the Amsterdam TTF market

TTF

Mathematical average of daily quotations referring to the
month of delivery

November 2024 0,431859
October 2024 0,386929
September 2024 0,410759
August 2024 0,347560
July 2024 0,368235
June 2024 0,339957
May 2024 0,310607
April 2024 0,287019
March 2024 0,274705
February 2024 0,319574
January 2024 0,385473

Source: Banca Ifis processing from A2A website.

In the first three quarters of 2024, the GDP produced by the Eurozone changed by +0,3%, +0,2% and +0,4% (source:
Economic Bulletin of the Bank of Italy). In the third quarter, the highest growth is attributable to specific
phenomena:

e strong expansion in Ireland but temporary as a result of multinationals' geographic allocation choices of
intellectual property investments;

¢ high development in Spain;

e increase in France due to the benefit brought by the increased demand associated with the Olympic
Games, confirming how major events can also have an important impact at the macro level, with a
particularly relevant trend in sport: Banca Ifis's estimate (from the Observatory on the Italian Sport System)
on Paris 2024 quantifies the economic benefit, both immediate and deferred, on the territory at 37 billion
Euro.
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In contrast to the aforementioned drivers, GDP stagnated substantially in Germany and Italy, and the Eurozone as
a whole suffered from the negative contribution of foreign demand.

Estimation models point to only a modest increase in Eurozone GDP in Q4 2024, as industry would have remained
weak consistent with the deterioration of business confidence in the autumn. In the closing months of 2024, the
growth impulse provided by the services business, which had benefited from the good performance of the tourist
season in the third quarter, also weakened. With regard to Eurozone manufacturing in particular, the volume
dropped significantly, even falling below the levels recorded before the Covid-19 pandemic, due to the weakness
of the German industry, which accounts for more than one third of Eurozone manufacturing and almost half of the
capital goods sector. This downturn was also accentuated by the negative repercussions on other countries in the
region. Three main causes contribute to the unfavourable development in Germany:

e the rise in energy costs hit German production harder due to its importance in the chemical sector, a
production sector with strong sectoral interconnections;

e weak global demand for goods, fragmented trade and increased competition from Chinese manufacturers
penalised German manufacturing companies due to Germany's greater trade openness;

e the difficulties in the automotive sector, which has been hit by both a widespread drop in demand and
increasing competition from Chinese car manufacturers. Automotive investments were also slowed down
by the uncertainty induced by a possible Chinese reaction to the duties set on Chinese electric cars.

On the demand side, the Eurozone saw a gradual weakening of consumption during 2024, while investment would
continue to be affected by still restrictive financing conditions. According to projections by Eurosystem experts
(from the ECB website: Macroeconomic projections for the Eurozone made by Eurosystem experts, December
2024) the Eurozone product was set to stop at a growth of +0,7% in 2024, a forecast quite in line with the +0,8%
estimated by the OECD.

On 30 January 2025, the Governing Board of the ECB cut official interest rates again, for the fifth time since June
2024, as a result of reduced inflationary pressure and weak growth in the real economy.

The effects were felt immediately: on the one hand, the interest rates charged on deposit accounts marketed in
Italy (see first table below) fell, between September 2023 (when the official rates peaked) and December 2024, by
54 basis points in the 6- and 24-month bonds and by 30 basis points for the 60-month bond on the other hand, the
rates charged on new loan disbursements (see second table below) fell, between September 2023 and November
2024, by 75 basis points for non-financial companies, by 97 basis points for home purchase and by 37 basis points
for consumer credit in the household segment.

Average deposit account rates by duration of restriction

Restriction duration

Jun-24 2,76% 2,96% 3,15% 3,07% 3,21% 3,19% 3,14%
Jul-24 2,80% 3,07% 3,16% 3,14% 3,25% 3,09% 3,24%
Aug-24 2,66% 2,99% 3,16% 3,02% 3,14% 3,06% 3,07%
Sep-24 2,41% 2,78% 2,98% 2,81% 2,76% 2,79% 2,84%
Oct-24 2,43% 2,67% 291% 2,66% 2,74% 2,68% 2,62%
Nov-24 2,40% 2,65% 2,87% 2,59% 2,73% 2,76% 2,78%
Dec-24 2,23% 2,45% 2,69% 2,49% 2,58% 2,76% 2,68%

Source: Banca Ifis survey on Information Sheets published on websites.
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Interest rates on new loan disbursements

Loans for house purchase Consumer credit to Loans to non-financial
Observation date to household segment household segment companies
(% of amount disbursed) (% of amount disbursed) (% of amount disbursed)
Jun-24 3,47% 8,55% 5,22%
Jul-24 3,40% 8,79% 5,29%
Aug-24 3,39% 8,80% 5,06%
Sep-24 3,22% 8,75% 4,83%
Oct-24 3,18% 8,70% 4,75%
Nov-24 3,14% 8,46% 4,60%

Source: Bank of Italy database - item MIR0600.

In 2024, lending dynamics remained weak overall: the change in the actual stock of loans to resident Italian
customers (taking into account adjustments, disposals and securitisations to provide a consistent time trend) was
areduction of 1,4% between the third quarter of 2024 and the same period of 2023, while compared to the previous
24 months, it was a reduction of 5,5%. This was entirely attributable to corporate credit, which fell by 2,8% in the
same period (down 9,4% compared to September 2022), while the household segment grew by 0,4%.

Stock of Italian resident-only loans adjusted for securitisations, other disposals, reclassifications, value
adjustments and exchange rate changes - base 100 = q3 2019 - rolling percentage change over previous
12 months

22 =Q319 =Q¥20 WQI21 WQI22 WQI2ZI WQI24

1100 100,8 110.2

Households Corporate Total

13% 3,7% 4,7% -0,2% 0,4% - 7.0% 10% 3,8% -6,7%-2,8% = 26% 1,6% 3,2% -4,1% -1,4%

Source: Banca Ifis internal analysis based on Bank of Italy data. Total loans include only transactions with resident customers,
excluding Monetary Financial Institutions. The stock takes into account securitisations, other disposals, reclassifications, value
adjustments and exchange rate changes.

These trends continue to reflect a modest demand for credit, probably conditioned by rates that remain at
historically high levels (for non-financial companies, 4,60% of disbursements in November 2024 compares with
1,06% in January 2022) and a solid liquidity position of Italian companies.

In the European Union (EU), the implementation of recovery and resilience plans continues: as of 10 October 2024,
39 billion Euro in funding related to the National Recovery and Resilience Plans (NRRPs) has been disbursed, with
total disbursements reaching 306 billion Euro.

Focusing on lItaly, the product stagnated in Q3 2024, still held back by weakness in manufacturing against the
slight expansion of services and construction. While the latter were affected by the freezing or reduction of tax
concessions on residential property, they benefited from the activity resulting from public works financed through
the NRRP. The signs of industrial production in the latter part of the year were positive (ISTAT Note on the Italian
Economy, January 2025), which was on the rise. The most recent economic data (November 2024) shows that the
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index of industrial production marked the second consecutive increase (+0,3% compared to October). Growth
affected all main industrial sectors, except capital goods (-0,6%). The latter is confirmed by the difficulties of the
Italian leasing sector: Assilea's monitoring shows that the leasing and rental stipulated in 2024 decreased by 3,9%
in value and 8,1% in number of contracts. The instrumental segment, in particular, reduced the amounts contracted
by 9,5%, although a positive sign came from the number of contracts, which increased by 1,5%, demonstrating the
strong focus on investment and innovation by SMEs despite a not entirely positive economic situation.

Foreign trade, on the other hand, negatively affected Italian GDP growth, due to the sharp contraction of exports
of goods and services. In the first nine months of 2024, exports shrank by -0,7% compared to 2023, with the marked
decrease in textiles and clothing (-4,7%) and automotive (-10,8%) in particular, while food and beverages and
manufacturing activities other than textiles and fashion bucked the trend. The decline was entirely concentrated
in the EU countries (-2,1% in the first 11 months of 2024), and more than offset the 0,8% increase in non-EU
countries (despite the 3,6% decline to the USA and 21,1% to China). The latter is a positive sign of the Italian
system's ability to diversify, which bodes well for the future.

As already indicated for the Eurozone, the Bank of Italy estimated that Italian product was to remain weak in the
fourth quarter of 2024. The sluggishness in manufacturing continued, although subsiding, and was accompanied
by a still tenuous investment dynamic and a dampening of the contribution of consumption after the previous
quarter's jump. According to the most recent macroeconomic projections, GDP will grow by 0,5% in 2024 as a
whole, compared to a relatively more optimistic OECD forecast (December 2024) of 0,8% growth.

Projections for 2025-2026

According to projections published in December by the OECD, world GDP will grow by 3,3% in 2025, in line with
2024. These forecasts are weighed down by the risks arising from heightened international tensions and the actual
direction that US economic policy will take under the new administration. The US intention to introduce duties will
affect world trade, such as the recent imposition of duties on Canada and Mexico, which were later suspended,
and those on Chinese products. The effect of the announcement of these interventions could, however, have a
paradoxical effect: if importers decide to anticipate some orders, world trade could increase.

Without taking into account assumptions on US policies, the Bank of Italy estimates world trade in goods and
services to increase by 3,2% in 2025, a figure in line with product growth as well as the dynamics of 2024. The
OECD in December 2024 published a broadly similar forecast, estimating GDP growth in 2025 of 3,3%.

The disinflation process continues in general and, in particular, the twelve-month consumer inflation figure for
December 2024 marked:

e aslightincrease in the US to 2,9% from 2,7% the previous month, although the underlying component fell;
e adeclineto 2,5% in the UK;
e anincrease to 2,9% in Japan, bucking the global trend.

The process of normalising monetary policy continues: at its December 2024 meeting, the Federal Reserve
decided on a new cut in key interest rates by 25 basis points, and further cuts of 50 basis points are expected by
December 2025, at a faster pace than anticipated in September 2024. More cautious are the approaches of the
Bank of England and the Bank of Japan, which left rates unchanged in December 2024. Finally, the Central Bank
of China confirmed an expansionary monetary stance aimed at supporting economic growth in a context of weak
domestic demand. This is in addition to the new action plan for 2025 aimed at supporting domestic consumption.

In the Bank of Italy forecast, Eurozone product will expand by 1,1% in 2025, which compares with +1,3% in the
OECD forecast of December 2024, +1,4% in 2026 and +1,3% in 2027. These forecasts were revised downwards
due to expectations of a subdued recovery in household spending and exports.

In the same geographical area, consumer inflation increased to 2,4% in December 2024, according to preliminary
estimates, from 2,2% in November 2024, due to the dynamics of the energy component, which turned slightly
positive.
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Core inflation, measured excluding food and energy goods, remained stable at 2,7%, while services inflation
remained high at 4%, supported by items whose prices adjust later than the general index (e.g. house rents and
health services). At the same time, the trend decline, which started in spring 2023, in the producer prices of goods
sold on the domestic market continued, mainly due to the continued sharp reduction in those of energy goods.
According to December projections by Eurosystem experts, price growth will be 2,1% in 2025, 1,9% in 2026 and
2,1% in 2027. The budgetary policy of EU countries will be restrictive, albeit moderately, but without affecting public
investment, which is expected to continue growing in 2025 in almost all Member States.

The Bank of Italy's most recent projections foresee an acceleration of Italian GDP in the three-year period 2025-
2027, however with growth rates limited to around 1% per year on average over the period (see table below) and
declining in the two-year period 2025-2026 compared to the estimates made in October 2024. Growth is expected
to regain momentum in the second half of 2025 due to the expected growth in consumption and exports, which
will benefit from the recovery of disposable income and international trade. Investment will slow down further due
to the effects of the downsizing of housing incentives, which the NRRP will not be able to offset. Compared to the
projections published in October 2024, GDP growth is revised downwards over the 2025-2026 horizon due to less
favourable than expected foreign demand data and slightly higher interest rates.

GDP growth over the previous period: forecasts by the Bank of Italy and other organisations

Bank of Italy/December 0,5% 0,8% 1,1%
European o o o
Commission/November 0.7% 1.0% 1.2%
OECD/December 0,5% 0,9% 1,2%
IMF/October 0,7% 0,8% 0,7%
Consensus o o o
Economics/December 0,5% 0,7% 0,9%

Source: Bank of Italy, Economic Bulletin No.1 2025.

Reference markets
Corporates

Business activity remained weak in Q4 2024, still held back by the performance of the manufacturing sector.
Services continued to expand, albeit slightly, as did construction, thanks in part to the non-residential works related
to the NRRP, which managed to offset the decline in activity on the residential side as a result of the loss of
incentives (e.g. the “Superbonus”).

Italian companies report a progressive deterioration in production levels and orders, both in actual and expected
figures. The less positive scenario mainly affects companies producing intermediate and capital goods, as a result
of the slowdown in investments, as shown by Assilea data on the leasing market and the increase in company
liquidity due to the lower absorption of resources. Marked reductions concerned the manufacture of transport
equipment, reflecting the crisis in the sector, which in more general terms affects the entire Eurozone, indicated
by the significant drop (-12,1%) in exports of 'transport equipment' in the first 11 months of 2024.

The lack of demand, both domestic and foreign, from our 'business-to-business' companies ("B2B") has a clear
connection with the sluggishness of the manufacturing cycle in the Eurozone and, in particular, in Germany: the
export trend to this country recorded, as a cumulative figure to November 2024, a decrease of 5,1% at the overall
value level and a decrease of 5% on the item "products of manufacturing activities".

In contrast to the weakness of investments in 2024, the outlook is more positive: with the exception of industry,
the balance between the share of companies expecting an expansion of nominal investment expenditure in 2025
and the share of companies indicating a reduction is positive. Sentiment is most favourable in construction, where
more than half of the companies expect to benefit from NRRP-related measures.
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The general PPI index (producer prices of industrial products sold on the domestic market) recorded a steady
slowdown in producer prices, showing a decrease in terms of percentage change in every single month of 2024,
continuing the decline that started in 2023 (-8,3% year-on-year), even considering that the index had increased by
42,8% in 2022. This leads to the expectation of less pressure on margins and increased competitiveness of our
companies.

The quality of credit disbursed to businesses remained good, despite rising market rates, the cost of energy and
the dreaded risk of default on state-guaranteed loans granted in the two-year pandemic to support liquidity. More
specifically, in the third quarter of 2024, the rate of deterioration of corporate loans (source: Banca Ifis's Market
Watch Npl processing based on Bank of Italy statistical data) remained more or less stable at 1,8% compared to
the previous three months (1,74% in the second quarter of 2024), although moderately up compared to the rate of
1,3% in 2023. A detailed analysis of new corporate impaired flows returns a modest increase of 2,3 billion Euro
compared to flows in 2023, mainly attributable to the services sector (accounting for 66% of the total). Taking a
more detailed look, it is the trade and real estate sectors that influence the trend of the service sector.

Using the most recent macroeconomic forecasts, the Bank of Italy (Financial Stability Report, November 2024)
indicates that the percentage of debt attributable to vulnerable companies (this grouping includes companies with
negative EBITDA or a ratio of financial charges to EBITDA above 50%) is expected to fall to around 33% in 2025.
This decline, which confirms the financial stability and self-financing capacity of Italian companies, would affect
almost all sectors and different company size classes.

Consistently, from the 'Economic Survey of Industrial and Service Enterprises' (source: Bank of Italy, Report on
Financial Stability, November 2024 edition) showed a lower absorption of internally generated financial resources
compared to investments, with a consequent increase in liquidity in the second quarter of 2024, which accounted
for 25,2% of GDP, a value about one percentage point higher than at the end of 2023 and almost four percentage
points higher when compared to 2019. The same survey reflects the widespread sentiment among lItalian
entrepreneurs: the incidence of companies that consider their reserves to be low compared to the operational
needs required for the latter part of 2024 remained substantially unchanged at low levels, even for smaller
companies.

SMEs, in particular, responded to the survey used for Banca Ifis's Market Watch SMEs (2024 edition) by stating
for 8,5% that it has improved compared to the previous 12 months, for 77,4% that it will remain unchanged and
only 14% that it will worsen, thus confirming their perception of financial soundness.

Italian SMEs were not only resilient on corporate finance but also dynamic in strengthening their market position.
In actual fact, according to the findings of Banca Ifis's SME Market Watch, on the one hand, the penetration of
companies that export has increased to over 45% in 2024, and on the other, the share of SMEs that state that they
already invest or will invest (within the next year) in sustainability has increased by 4 percentage points to 60,4%.
Confirming that sustainability is not just reputation, in 2024 Italian SMEs implemented increasingly stringent
supplier selection policies: the percentage of companies working exclusively with suppliers that adopt
sustainability policies rose from 16,4% in the previous 12 months to 20,3%.

Italian companies are also attractive: almost 1.400 business combinations were finalised in Italy in 2024 (source:
Mergermarket), 35% of which had foreign buyers, led by the US, Germany and the UK.

The above-mentioned 'Business Cycle Survey of Industrial and Service Enterprises' also shows a decrease in the
share of industrial enterprises expecting to close the year in profit, especially among those with a higher share of
exports in turnover. Analysts' expectations for 2025 point to a decline in the earnings of listed companies,
compared to those expected by the end of 2024, particularly intense in the sectors most sensitive to the business
cycle, i.e. consumer discretionary goods and energy. These evaluations tell us how crucial 'technology' and
‘product’ will be to meet the challenge of profitability, leveraging efficiency and market positioning, especially
internationally.
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Non-performing loans (Npls)

The analysis of the Italian impaired credit sector requires, first of all, to contextualise the trends from a European
perspective. In the third quarter of 2024, the Npe ratio (ratio of non-performing loans to stock of loans) of EU area
significant banks is essentially unchanged compared with the previous quarter (1,88% vs 1,86% in the second
quarter of 2024). However, compared to the start of 2023, both the stock of Npes (+19 billion Euro in absolute
terms) and the Npe ratio (from 1,75% to 1,88%) are on the rise, interrupting a decline that had lasted continuously
since 2015 (Banca Ifis Npl Market Watch, February 2025). The increase in non-performing loans is mainly
concentrated in German (+10,2 billion Euro) and French (+9,5 billion Euro) banks. Significant Italian banks show,
in contrast, a reduction (-5,6 billion Euro).

Stage 2 and forborne performing loans in EU significant banks

INCIDENCE OF LOANS IN BANK BALANCE SHEETS CLASSIFIED IN
STAGE 2 ON LOANS TO CUSTOMERS — ONLY SIGNIFICANT EBA
BANKS - PERCENTAGES

INCIDENCE OF FORBORNE PERFORMING LOANS ON LOANS TO
CUSTOMERS - ONLY SIGNIFICANT EU BANKS - PERCENTAGES

European Union Italy Germany France Spain European Union Italy Germany France Spain

mQ319 mQ320 wmQ321 wQ322 wmQ3I23 mMQI24 mQ420 mQ321 mQI22 mQ323 Q324

Source: Banca Ifis Research Department elaborations on EBA “Risk Dashboard” report, ECB supervisory banking statistics.

At the same time, German banks significantly increased the proportion of Stage 2 loans (see image above),
showing a worsening of the prospective risk profile. This is therefore an indication of increasing riskiness, which
the trend of forborne performing loans seems to confirm: while the EU average is stable at 0,8%, the German
figures show a growth to 1,0% Q3 2024 compared to 0,7% in the previous quarter. Instead the decline for Italy's
significant banks was considerable, eliminating the gap with the EU average.

Annual flows of new defaulting loans and the loan default rate for residents only - data in billion Euro
and %

e Flows (bn €) === Delerioration rate estimate as of Feb-25 == Deterioration rate estimate as of Sep-24 Default rates estimated
based on the
macroeconomic forecast

1,20%
1,13% " 1,29% 1.33%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Q324 2024E 2025E 2026E

Source: Banca Ifis internal analysis based on Bank of Italy data.

In Italy, the credit deterioration rate is estimated to remain at a historically low level (Banca Ifis Npl Market Watch,
February 2025 edition). Compared to the September 2024 forecast, 7 billion Euro more new impaired are estimated
in the three-year period 2024-2026, with a slightly higher rate in 2024 and 2026. The slight increase in the
deterioration rate of bank loans, as just illustrated, is the result of a worsening in the corporate segment and to a
lesser extent in the household segment. In particular, the current trend of impaired corporate flows is still limited
(+2,3 billion Euro) and is mainly attributable to the services sector, which accounts for 66%, whose trend is mainly
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influenced by the increase in flows in the trade sector (48% of the increase in services) and real estate activities
(23% incidence).

Npl transaction market trend - data in billion Euro at GBV (Gross Book Value) level and in %

UtP €bn
2 .
0,3 10 7 9 10 7 n 5 PR " Estimate
m Pipeline
= Completed
operations
Npl €bn

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 E 2025E 2026E
0% 3% 44% 58% 27% 42% 36% 34% 0% 0% 0% 0%

ot on ol 3% 51% 4% 2% 24%  23%  32%  28%  67% 57%  S6%  53%

Source: Banca Ifis Npl Market Database - News and press releases - Banca Ifis internal analysis.

The GBV (Gross Book Value) of Npl portfolio transactions in 2024 was 21 billion Euro. Npl volumes (17 billion
Euro) saw a significant weight of the secondary market (57%). The 2025-2026 forecast sees more than 50% of the
secondary market. The market will remain active and for the two-year period 2025-2026, Npl transacted volumes

are estimated at around 19-20 billion Euro per year and around 5-6 billion Euro for probable defaults (UTP) alone,
which will allow banks' Npe ratio to remain around 3%.

The historical analysis of Npe transactions allows us to identify 3 phases:

e 2017-2018: intense de-risking on the entire banking system;
e 2019-2022: pursuit of the banks’ 5% Npe ratio target, as indicated by the EBA,;
e 2023 onwards: maintenance/reduction of low stock (Npe ratio of around 3%).

Estimated amount of total Npes in Italy (residents and non-residents in bank financial statements +
portfolios sold net of collections and positions closed) — figures in billion Euro

361 357 -68 €bn -80 €bn
Total Npes Italy net of recoveries and 352

closed positions
mUTPs sold

m Bad debts sold
w Banks Utp and Past due

m Banks Bad Loans
158
133 2
2
78 78 ° 72
My =
31 y a5
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34 34 36 36
47 47 a2 59 “

47 33

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2077 20712 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

19 23 24 24
2022 2023 2024E 2025E 2026E

Annual variation %

Source: Banca Ifis Research Department internal estimates from Banca Ifis’s Npl Market Database, the Bank of Italy, Unirec and
servicer budgets.

The stock of Npes in Italy declined by around 68 billion Euro from 2015 to 2024, with a reduction that is estimated
to become as much as 80 billion Euro in 2026, representing a 22% system-wide decline due to collections that
resulted in the reduction or closure of debt positions, confirming the role played by specialised management.
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Results by operating segments

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL IEBECLITE of which: NCE &
POSITION DATA COMMERCIAL  of which:  of which:  CORPORATE SERVICES
NP ISEIl & CORPORATE  FACTORING  LEASING  BANKING & |Siildi Kby
BANKING AREA AREA LENDING CORE
SEGMENT AREA SEGMENT
Other financial assets
mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Amounts at 31.12.2024 143.933 975 - 142.958 36.293 56.806 237.032
Amounts at 31.12.2023 107.169 975 - 106.194 41.735 73.078 221.982
% Change 34,3% 0,0% - 346%| (1300%| (223)% 6,8%
Financial assets measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Amounts at 31.12.2024 993 - - 993 - 700.837 701.830
Amounts at 31.12.2023 1.333 - - 1.333 - 747.843 749.176
% Change (25,5)% - - (25,5)% - (6,3)% (6,3)%
Receivables due from
customers (1
Amounts at 31.12.2024 6.985.624 2.900.077 | 1.612.971 2.472.576 | 1.521.001 | 2.303.393 ({10.810.018
Amounts at 31.12.2023 6.763.468 2.844.805 | 1.552.204 2.366.459 | 1.646.158 | 2.212.509 [{10.622.134
% Change 3,3% 1,9% 3,9% 4,5% (7,6)% 4,1% 1,8%
Goodwill
Amounts at 31.12.2024 - - - - 38.020 - 38.020
Amounts at 31.12.2023 - - - - 38.020 - 38.020
% Change - - - - 0,0% - 0,0%
Other assets
Amounts at 31.12.2024 163.000 163.000 - - - 219.965 382.965
Amounts at 31.12.2023 208.748 208.748 - - - 235.944 444.692
% Change (21,9)% (21,9)% - - - 68)%| (13,9)%

(1) In the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment, at 31 December 2024, there are government securities amounting to
1.579,0 million Euro (1.628,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023).
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COMMERCIAL & CORPORATE BANKING SEGMENT
RECLASSIFIED INCOME TOTAL

GOVERNA
NCE &

of which:
STATEMENT DATA COMMERCIAL .. oot corpoRATE IRLLE SERVICES
AT 31.12.2024 & FACTORING LEASING  BANKING & [N E s
in thousands of Euro) Bl = AREA AREA LENDING oubls
i BANKING AREA SEGMENT
SEGMENT
Net interest income 238.795 | 114.552 50.530 73.713 | 280.300 13.410 | 532.505
Net commission income 96.175 63.979 10.786 21.410 (1.041) (3.359) 91.775
gthef components of net 16.454 11 - 16.443 | 16957 | 41461 | 74.872
anking income
of which: Gains (losses) on
the disposal of financial - - - - 16.068 - 16.068
assets
Net banking income 351.424 | 178.542 61.316 | 111.566 | 296.216 51.512 | 699.152
Net credit risk (40.413) | (6.763) | (4.508) | (29.142) 52 2.691 | (37.670)

losses/reversals

Net profit (loss) from
financial activities
Operating costs (164.065) (89.547) (34.000) (40.518) |(199.185) | (43.666) ((406.916)
Charges related to the
banking system

Net allocations to provisions

311.011 171.779 56.808 82.424 | 296.268 54.203 | 661.482

) ] ; - - | (8.136) | (8.136)

for risks and charges (3.194) (8.905) (344) 6.055 2.227 489 (478)
Non-recurring expenses and i i i i (610) i (610)
income

Pre-tax profit (loss) for the

period from continuing 143.752 73.327 22.464 47.961 98.700 2.890 | 245.342
operations

Income taxes for the year

relating to current operations (48.144) (24.558) (7.524) (16.062) | (33.056) (968) | (82.168)
Profit (loss) for the year 95.608 48.769 14.940 31.899 65.644 1.922 | 163.174
(Profit) loss for the year

attributable to non-controlling - - - - - (1.596) (1.596)
interests

Profit (loss) for the year

attributable to the Parent 95.608 48.769 14.940 31.899 65.644 326 | 161.578
company
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GOVERNAN
CE &

COMMERCIAL & CORPORATE BANKING SEGMENT
TOTAL

- SEGMENIIKPIs COMMERCIAL  of which: of which: cg;"’,"g;;’z;h_ NPL SERVICES
(in thousands of Euro) & CORPORATE  FACTORING LEASING BANKING & SEGMENT AND NON-

BANKING AREA AREA AR CORE
SEGMENT SEGMENT®™

Credit cost (2

Amounts at 31.12.2024 0,61% 0,26% 0,29% 1,20% n.a. (0,41)%

Amounts at 31.12.2023 0,95% 1,13% 0,29% 1,18% n.a. (1,46)%

% Change (0,34)% (0,87)% 0,00% 0,02% n.a. 1,05%

Net bad loans/Receivables

due from customers

Amounts at 31.12.2024 0,4% 0,4% 0,0% 0,7% 77,9% 0,2%

Amounts at 31.12.2023 0,3% 0,4% 0,0% 0,3% 77,6% 0,3%

% Change 0,1% 0,0% 0,0% 0,4% 0,3% (0,1)%

Coverage ratio on gross bad

loans

Amounts at 31.12.2024 74,0% 83,3% 94,2% 47,2% 0,0% 53,1%

Amounts at 31.12.2023 80,7% 85,6% 93,5% 50,4% 0,0% 53,8%

% Change (6,7)% (23)% 0,7% (32)% 0,0% 0,7)%

Net non-performing

exposures/Net receivables

due from customers

Amounts at 31.12.2024 2,8% 2,7% 0,8% 4,1% 98,4% 1,3%

Amounts at 31.12.2023 3,1% 4,5% 0,7% 3,1% 98,2% 1,2%

% Change (0,3)% (1,8)% 0,7% 1,0% 0,2% 0,1%

Gross non-performing

exposures/Gross receivables

due from customers

Amounts at 31.12.2024 5,3% 5,9% 2,2% 6,6% 98,4% 2,0%

Amounts at 31.12.2023 53% 7,6% 1,9% 4,8% 98,2% 2,0%

% Change 0,0% (1,7)% 0,3% 1,8% 0,2% 0,0%

RWA ®

Amounts at 31.12.2024 5.769.725 2.729.714 1.200.451 1.839.560 1.733.692 1.171.961

Amounts at 31.12.2023 5.813.454 2.737.066 1.344.965 1.731.423 1.898.366 1.537.717

% Change (0,8)% (0,3)% (10,7)% 6,2% (8,7)% (23,8)%

(1) In the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment, at 31 December 2024, there are government securities amounting to

1.579,0 million Euro (1.628,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023).

(2) This indicator is calculated comparing the value of net credit risk losses/reversals over the annual average loans to customers

(calculated quarterly).

(3) Risk Weighted Assets: the amount only relates to the credit risk
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Reclassified Quarterly Evolution

RECLASSIFIED YEAR 2024
CONSOLIDATED INCOME

YEAR 2023
STATEMENT:

QUARTERLY EVOLUTION Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
(in thousands of Euro)

Net interest income 128.106 | 117.036 | 146.605| 140.758| 156.691 134.820 | 135.247 | 139.439

Net commission income 22.209 22.657 23.835 23.074 23.922 24.002 26.970 23.327

Other components of net
banking income

Net banking income 167.316 157.322 189.276 185.238 192.259 163.851 172.681 175.825
Net credit risk
losses/reversals

Net profit (loss) from
financial activities
Personnel expenses (42.617)| (40.622)  (43.217)| (43.396)| (43.336) (40.021)| (40.737)| (39.708)
Other administrative
expenses

Net impairment
losses/reversals on

17.001 17.629 18.836 21.406 11.646 5.029 10.464 13.059

(8.795)| (13.034)| (7.252)| (8.589)| (21.537)| (14.532)| (6.367)| (9.971)

158.521 144.288 | 182.024 176.649| 170.722| 149.319| 166.314| 165.854

(69.975) | (53.376) | (62.246) | (61.941)| (71.244)| (51.806)| (61.337)| (53.822)

property, plant and (6.257)|  (6.199)| (5.646) | (5.174)| (4.682)  (4.472)| (4.350)|  (4.202)
equipment and intangible

assets

Other operating 11.597 6.629 7.133 8.391 7.709 4.894 5.824 6.642
income/expenses

Operating costs (107.252) | (93.568) | (103.976) | (102.120) | (111.553) | (91.405) (100.600) | (91.090)
Charges related to the (15) 25|  (8.087) 9) @©61)|  (6.242) 1760  (5.850)

banking system
Net allocations to

provisions for risks and 87 141 1.443 (2.149) (6.383) 31 (8) (518)
charges

Non-recurring expenses

g g exp (54) (236) (280) 40)| (1.599)|  (1.320) - -

Gains (losses) on disposal
of investments

Pre-tax profit (loss) for
the period from 51.287 50.600 71.124 72.331 51.312 50.383 67.466 68.396
continuing operations

Income taxes for the
period relating to (15.898) | (17.280) | (24.289) | (24.701)| (15.521)| (16.264) | (21.778)| (22.078)
continuing operations

Profit (loss) for the period 35.389 33.320 46.835 47.630 35.791 34.119 45.688 46.318

(Profit) loss for the period
attributable to non- (379) (366) (397) (454) (422) (414) (566) (404)
controlling interests

Profit (loss) for the period
attributable to the Parent 35.010 32.954 46.438 47.176 35.369 33.705 45.122 45.914
Company

. . . . 986 - - -
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APM - Alternative Performance Measures

The Banca Ifis Group has defined a number of indicators, listed in the tables of the Group's KPlIs, that provide
Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) to help investors identify significant operational trends and financial
ratios. In identifying these APMs, the specific indications were taken into account on how to represent the APMs
published by ESMA on 1 April 2022 (document called “ESMA32-51-370 Questions and answers — ESMA Guidelines
on Alternative Performance Measures”).

Furthermore, the statement issued by ESMA on 24 October 2024 entitled 'European common enforcement
priorities for 2023 annual financial reports’, with specific reference to Hlls, emphasises that in the case of cash
flow or net financial indebtedness indicators, issuers are required to provide their reconciliations to the most
directly related balance sheet items (individual items, subtotals or totals).

For a proper understanding of these APMs, please consider the following:

e these measures are based exclusively on the Group's historical data and are not indicative of the Group's
future performance;

e APMs are non-IFRS measures and, although they are derived from the Group's Consolidated Financial
Statements, they are not audited;

e APMs are not intended as a substitute for IFRS measures;

e said APMs shall be considered in conjunction with the Group's financial information derived from its
Consolidated Financial Statements;

e since these are non-IFRS measures, the definitions of the measures used by the Group may differ from,
and therefore not be comparable to, those used by other companies/groups;

e the APMs used by the Group are consistent across all reporting periods for which the Group has disclosed
financial information in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

In accordance with the guidelines issued by ESMA (ESMA/2015/1415), below is a detailed explanation of how
these measures were calculated in order to facilitate their understanding.

ROE - Return on equity YEAR
(in thousands of Euro) 2024

2023
A. Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the Parent company 161.578 160.110
B. Average equity attributable to the Parent company 1.725.002 1.651.039
ROE (A/B) 9,4% 9,7%

The average equity attributable to the Parent company is calculated as a quarterly average of the point figures
recorded for each quarter of the reference period.

(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023
A. Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the Parent company 161.578 160.110
B. Total assets 13.825.738 14.051.361
ROA (A/B) 1,2% 1,1%
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Reclassified cost/income ratio
(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023
A. Operating costs 406.916 394.648
B. Net banking income 699.152 704.616
Reclassified cost/income ratio (A/B) 58,2% 56,0%

Payout ratio YEAR
(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023
A. Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the Parent company 161.578 160.110
B. Parent Company dividends (" 111.450 110.240
Payout Ratio (B/A) () 69,0% 68,9%

(1) The figures for FY 2024 comprise the total of 1,20 Euro per share distributed as an interim dividend in November 2024 and
0,92 Euro per share as a proposal for a final dividend for the FY 2024 prepared by the Board of Directors of Banca Ifis.

The Parent Company's dividends are calculated as follows:

YEAR
Parent Company dividends
2024 2023
A. Unitary dividend Euro (M 212 2,10
B. Number of shares outstanding (in thousands) @ 52.571 52.495
Parent Company dividends (A x B) ( 111.450 110.240

(1) The figures for FY 2024 comprise the total of 1,20 Euro per share distributed as an interim dividend in November 2024 and
0,92 Euro per share as a proposal for a final dividend for the FY 2024 prepared by the Board of Directors of Banca Ifis.

(2) Outstanding shares are net of treasury shares held in the portfolio. This figure is calculated as the weighted average of the
No. of shares outstanding at the ex-dividend date and the number of shares outstanding at the ex-dividend date, using the relevant
dividend per share as a weighting factor. The 2024 figure takes the value as of 31 December 2024 as the number of shares
outstanding on the ex-dividend date.
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Contribution of operating Segments to Group results

In accordance with standard IFRS 8, a company must provide information that allows users of the financial
statements to assess the nature and effects on such of the balance of the business it pursues and the economic
contexts in which it operates. The contribution therefore needs to be highlighted as made by the various operating
Segments to forming the Group’s economic result.

Identification of the operating Segments is consistent with the methods adopted by the Management to take
operative decisions and is based on internal reporting, used in order to allocate the resources to the various
segments and analyse the relevant performance.

In line with the structure used by Management to analyse the Group's results, the information by Segment is broken
down as follows:

e Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment, that represents the Group's commercial offer dedicated to
businesses and also includes personal loans with the assignment of one-fifth of salary or pension. The
Segment consists of the Factoring, Leasing and Corporate Banking & Lending Business Areas;

e Npl Segment, dedicated to non-recourse factoring and managing distressed loans, servicing and
managing non-performing, secured loans. This Segment includes the income contribution from the former
Revalea S.p.A., a company acquired in the fourth quarter of 2023 and thereafter merged by incorporation
into Ifis Npl Investing S.p.A. in 2024 (for further details, refer to "Part G - Business combinations” of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements);

e Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment, which provides the segments operating in the Group's
core businesses with the financial resources and services necessary to perform their respective activities.
The Segment includes treasury and proprietary securities desk activities, as well as some corporate loans
portfolio assigned for run-off insofar as held to be non-strategic to the Group's growth.

The Segments of the financial numerical are attributed on the basis of homogeneous allocation criteria in order
to take into account both the specificity of the various segments and the need to guarantee effective monitoring
of business performance over time.

Moreover, considering the foregoing, the Segment information in relation to the items of the income statement
shows the results at the level of the net profit.
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Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment

The Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment includes the following business areas:

e Factoring: Area dedicated to supporting the trade credit of SMEs operating on the domestic market, which
develop towards export, or which from export, turn to Italian customers; it includes a business unit
specialised in the acquisition of tax receivables transferred from bankruptcy proceedings, which operates
under the Fast Finance brand. This unit acquires tax receivables, accrued and accruing, already requested
for reimbursement, or future, arising from proceedings or in previous years;

e Leasing: Area that provides finance and operating leases - but not real estate leases, as the Group does
not offer them - to small economic operators and SMEs;

e Corporate Banking & Lending: Business area that aggregates multiple units:

— Structured Finance, a segment dedicated to supporting companies and private equity funds in
structuring financing, both bilateral and pooled;

- Equity Investments, a segment dedicated to investments in non-financial companies and in units
of intermediaries;

- Lending, a segment dedicated to the Group's medium/long-term operations, focussed on
supporting the business operating cycle and the disbursement of consumer credit in the form of
salary- or pension-backed loans.

Below are the segment results at 31 December 2024.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT DATA YEAR CHANGE
(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023 ABSOLUTE %

Net interest income 238.795 232.171 6.624 2,9%
Net commission income 96.175 96.798 (623) (0,6)%
Other components of net banking income 16.454 15.670 784 5,0%
Net banking income 351.424 344.639 6.785 2,0%
Net credit risk losses/reversals (40.413) (60.716) 20.303 (33.4)%
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 311.011 283.923 27.088 9,5%
Operating costs (164.065) (163.890) (175) 0,1%
Net allocations to provisions for risks and (3.194) (4.501) 1307 (29,0)%
charges
Pre-?ax.proflt (Ios.s) for the period from 143.752 115.532 28.220 24,4%
continuing operations
Incomg taxes for the year relating to current (48.144) (36.787) (11.357) 30.9%
operations
Profit (loss) for the year 95.608 78.745 16.863 21,4%

Net income of the Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment comes to 95,6 million Euro, up 16,9 million Euro
compared to 31 December 2023, mainly due to the increase in net banking income and the reduction of net value
adjustments for 20,3 million Euro (-33,4%), as detailed below based on the contribution of the individual Business
Areas.

The Segment's net banking income comes to 351,4 million Euro, up 6,8 million Euro compared to the previous year,
thanks to the positive performance of the Factoring Area (+5,2 million Euro) and the Corporate Banking & Lending
Area (+2,3 million Euro). On the whole, with respect to the substantial stability of net commission income, net
interest income rose by 6,6 million Euro (+2,9%) and in other components of net banking income by 0,8 million
Euro (+5,0%).

Operating costs amount to 164,71 million Euro as at 31 December 2024 and were essentially stable compared to
the previous year.
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Net allocations to provisions for risks and charges amount to 3,2 million Euro as at 31 December 2024, a decrease
compared to 4,5 million Euro at the end of 2023. The decrease of 1,3 million Euro is mainly attributable to releases
for the successful settlement of existing disputes, the effect of which more than offset provisions made during
the year to cover risks related to outstanding disputes over tax credits for Super Ecobonus and other building tax
bonuses.

The operating performance of the business areas making up the Segment is described and analysed further on.

The following table details the gross and net amounts as well as the relevant coverage ratios of receivables due
from customers by credit quality.

COMMERCIAL & CORPORATE TOTAL NON- | PERFORMING
BANKING BADLOANs | UNLKELYTO | PAST DoF. | PERFORMING (SFr);FZ;(:ESSU1RIEfID TOTAL LOANS
(in thousands of Euro) (STAGE 3) 2)

POSITION AT 31.12.2024

Nominal amount 118.745 208.606 57.286 384.637 6.860.428 7.245.065
Losses (87.825) (97.986) (5.012) | (190.823) (68.618) | (259.441)
Carrying amount 30.920 110.620 52.274 193.814 6.791.810 6.985.624
Coverage ratio 74,0% 47,0% 8,7% 49,6% 1,0% 3,6%
Gross ratio 1,6% 2,9% 0,8% 5,3% 94,7% 100,0%
Net ratio 0,4% 1,6% 0,7% 2,8% 97,2% 100,0%
POSITION AT 31.12.2023

Nominal amount 98.969 170.367 105.968 375.304 6.657.667 7.032.971
Losses (79.915) (76.670) (5.849) | (162.434) (107.070) | (269.504)
Carrying amount 19.054 93.698 100.118 212.870 6.550.597 6.763.467
Coverage ratio 80,7% 45,0% 5,5% 43,3% 1,6% 3,8%
Gross ratio 1,4% 24% 1,5% 5,3% 94,7% 100,0%
Net ratio 0,3% 1,4% 1,5% 3,1% 96,9% 100,0%

Net non-performing exposures in the Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment stand at 193,8 million Euro at 31
December 2024, down 19,1 million Euro on 31 December 2023 (212,9 million Euro). The trend is attributable to a
significant decrease in non-performing past due exposures amounting to 47,8 million Euro (especially those in the
Factoring Area), partially offset by increases in probable defaults and non-performing loans of 16,9 million Euro
and 11,9 million Euro, respectively (especially in the Corporate Banking & Lending Area).

The coverage ratio of the impaired portfolio goes from 43,3% at 31 December 2023 to 49,6% at 31 December 2024,
as a result of the increase in the incidence of unlikely to pay and non-performing loans on the Segment's total
impaired portfolio.

The Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment includes loans that are mainly impaired (classified in the accounts
as “POCI"), mainly referring to assets stemming from business combinations: the net value of these assets is 8,7
million Euro at 31 December 2024, as compared with the 12,3 million Euro recorded at 31 December 2023, of
which 5,7 million Euro non-performing (8,5 million Euro at 31 December 2023).

These amounts already incorporate the effects connected with the temporal reversal of the effects seen during
the PPA and the effects of expected losses over the useful life of the asset, as required by IFRS 9.
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AMOUNTS CHANGE

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Credit cost (M 0,61% 0,95% n.a. (0,34)%
m: :'rencpeeil\llr:tj:ss Zit: ;rom customers 2:8% 31% n-a. (03)%
g:g: Irz]cpe?\llr:t()jI:: ZE:eS /from customers 53% 53% n-a. 0.0%
RWA @ 5.769.725 5.813.454 (43.729) (0,8)%

(1) This indicator is calculated comparing the value of net credit risk losses/reversals over the annual average loans to customers

(calculated quarterly).

(2) Risk Weighted Assets; the amount only relates to the credit risk.

To ensure a better understanding of the results for the year, below we comment on the contribution of the
individual business areas to the Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment.

YEAR CHANGE

Factoring Area

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT DATA

(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023 ABSOLUTE %
Net interest income 114.552 107.050 7.502 7,0%
Net commission income 63.979 67.360 (3.381) (5,0)%
Other components of net banking income 11 (1.096) 1.107 n.a.
Net banking income 178.542 173.314 5.228 3,0%
Net credit risk losses/reversals (6.763) (28.886) 22.123 (76,6)%
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 171.779 144.428 27.351 18,9%
Operating costs (89.547) (93.234) 3.687 (4,0)%
Ic\llfgrzl(laoscations to provisions for risks and (8.905) 2.751) (6.154) 223,7%
Z;it::ﬁl'r";°2;£r‘;ifg::' the period from 73.327 48.443 24.884 51,4%
?;;r;?ot:;es for the year relating to current (24.558) (15.292) (9.266) 60,6%
Profit (loss) for the year 48.769 33.151 15.618 47,1%

At 31 December 2024, the contribution made by the Factoring Area towards net banking income booked by the
Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment comes to 178,5 million Euro, up 3,0% on last year’s results. This result
is due to the greater contribution of net interest income (up by 7,5 million Euro), while net commission income
declines by 3,4 million Euro. Turnover for FY 2024 amounts to 12,3 billion Euro and the total amount of receivables
to 3,5 billion Euro, and were down by 1,1 billion Euro and 0,3 billion Euro, respectively, compared to the
corresponding figures of the previous year.

At 31 December 2024 net credit risk losses are recorded for the amount of 6,8 million Euro. This amount was
influenced, among others, by the full use of prudential adjustments (management overlay) booked during previous
year resulting from "expert-based" assessments following the actual classification among impaired exposures of
specifically identified positions. In addition, management overlays set aside during previous years to hedge
multiple risk factors (particularly related to inflationary, geopolitical and energy supply risks) and to hedge against
adverse macroeconomic expectations, were utilised against the deteriorating dynamics of the underlying portfolio
clusters.

Therefore, net profit from financial activities amounts to 171,8 million Euro (+18,9% on 31 December 2023).

The decrease in operating costs of 3,7 million Euro compared to 31 December 2023 is mainly due to higherincome
for recovery of expenses from the public administration in the amount of 4,1 million Euro. These benefits were
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partly offset by the higher personnel costs linked to the renewed Italian National Collective Bargaining Agreement
(NCBA), as well as to the growth of costs related to the amortisation of intangible assets relating to investments
in software functional to the digitalisation of customer relations and the related credit generation and
management process.

Net allocations to provisions for risks and charges amount to 8,9 million Euro at 31 December 2024, an increase
on the 2,8 million Euro at 31 December 2023. The increase of 6,2 million Euro is mainly attributable to the
previously-mentioned provisions to cover risks related to outstanding disputes over tax credits for Super Ecobonus
and other building tax bonuses.

As regards the main equity aspects, at 31 December 2024, total net commitments for the Area amount to 2.900,1
million Euro, up 1,9% on the figure at 31 December 2023, mainly due to the increase of performing exposures
(+106,2 million Euro).

The following table shows the gross and net amounts as well as the relevant coverage ratios of receivables due
from customers by credit quality.

FACTORING AREA UNLIKELY TO PAST DUE TOTAL NON- :Eggsrﬁggsc
(in thousands of Euro) BADLOANS PAY EXPOSURES Pfg'nggEMlg';G (STAGEZS) 1AND | TOTALLOANS

POSITION AT 31.12.2024

Nominal amount 74.911 72.638 31.948 179.497 2.838.617 3.018.114
Losses (62.381) (37.890) (1.200) | (101.471) (16.566) (118.037)
Carrying amount 12.530 34.748 30.748 78.026 2.822.051 2.900.077
Coverage ratio 83,3% 52,2% 3,8% 56,5% 0,6% 3,9%
POSITION AT 31.12.2023

Nominal amount 72.273 66.458 88.817 227.548 2.752.772 2.980.320
Losses (61.890) (34.170) (2.503) (98.563) (36.953) (135.516)
Carrying amount 10.383 32.288 86.314 128.985 2.715.819 2.844.804
Coverage ratio 85,6% 51,4% 2,8% 43,3% 1,3% 4,5%

The Area's total net non-performing exposures amount to 78,0 million Euro, down 39,5% from the 31 December
2023 figure, almost entirely due to the decline in past-due exposures. In overall terms, despite the decrease in net
impaired exposures, the coverage of impaired exposures increases from 43,3% to 56,5%, due to the increase in
the proportion of non-performing loans and unlikely to pay to total non-performing ans.

AMOUNTS CHANGE

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %

Credit cost M 0,26% 1,13% n.a. (0,87)%
Net impaired assets/ o

% % %
Net receivables due from customers 2.7% 4,5% na. (1.8)%
Gross |mp§|red assets/ 59% 7.6% na (1.7)%
Gross receivables due from customers
RWA @ 2.729.714 2.737.066 (7.352) (0,3)%

(1) This indicator is calculated comparing the value of net credit risk losses/reversals over the annual average loans to customers
(calculated quarterly).
(2) Risk Weighted Assets; the amount only relates to the credit risk.

42



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited
yp emarket
sdir storage
Banca Ifis Group | 2024 Consolidated Financial Statements and Re c“""‘".
ool

The credit cost decreases from 1,13% at 31 December 2023 to 0,26% at 31 December 2024 as a result of the
aforementioned dynamics in 2024.

It should be noted that net non-performing exposures include a total of 29,2 million Euro in respect of the NHS, a
significant reduction compared to the figure of 72,2 million Euro at 31 December 2023 due to the return to
performing status during the third quarter of 2024 of a singularly significant position previously classified as non-

performing past due.

Leasing Area

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT DATA YEAR
(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023

CHANGE

ABSOLUTE
Net interest income 50.530 50.985 (455) (0,9)%
Net commission income 10.786 11.072 (286) (2,6)%
Net banking income 61.316 62.057 (741) (1,2)%
Net credit risk losses/reversals (4.508) (4.329) (179) 41%
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 56.808 57.728 (920) (1,6)%
Operating costs (34.000) (33.039) (961) 2,9%
Ic\llfgrzl(laoscations to provisions for risks and (344) (919) 575 (62,6)%
cpgf‘t::ﬁlﬁ?:;gﬁfg::r the period from 22.464 23.770 (1.306) (5,5)%
?;:;r;?ot:sxes for the year relating to current (7.524) (7.569) 45 (0,6)%
Profit (loss) for the year 14.940 16.201 (1.261) (7,8)%

Net banking income from the Leasing Area amounts to 61,3 million Euro, essentially in line with the figure at 31
December 2023 (-1,2%).

Net credit risk losses on receivables amount to 4,5 million Euro, essentially in line with the figure at 31 December
2023.

Operating costs total 34,0 million Euro, showing an increase of 1,0 million Euro compared with 31 December 2023.
The increase was due to the combined effect of higher personnel expenses related to the renewed Italian National
Collective Bargaining Agreement (NCBA) and the amortisation of new software to support the business, which
was only partially offset by the reduction in other administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2024, the Area's total net loans amount to 1.613,0 million Euro, an increase of 60,8 million Euro
(+3,9%) compared to the figure as at 31 December 2023, mainly due to the increase in performing exposures
(+58,2 million Euro).
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The following table shows the gross and net amounts as well as the relevant coverage ratios of receivables due
from customers by credit quality.

PERFORMING

TOTALNON- | " pyqyRES

LEASING AREA

UNLIKELY TO PAST DUE

BAD LOANS

(in thousands of Euro)

PAY

EXPOSURES PERFORMING

(STAGE 3)

(STAGES 1 AND

TOTAL LOANS

2)

POSITION AT 31.12.2024

Nominal amount 10.074 17.628 8.505 36.207 1.612.635 | 1.648.842
Losses (9.494) (11.222) (2.180) (22.896) (12.975) (35.871)
Carrying amount 580 6.406 6.325 13.311 1.599.660 | 1.612.971
Coverage ratio 94,2% 63,7% 25,6% 63,2% 0,8% 2,2%
POSITION AT 31.12.2023

Nominal amount 10.597 12.865 7.314 30.776 1.559.223 | 1.589.999
Losses (9.910) (7.894) (2.244) (20.048) (17.748) (37.796)
Carrying amount 688 4.972 5.070 10.730 1.541.475 | 1.552.205
Coverage ratio 93,5% 61,4% 30,7% 65,1% 1,71% 2,4%

Net impaired exposures increase by 24,1% compared to December 2023. The coverage ratio of impaired assets
decreases from 65,1% to 63,2%, due to the higher incidence within the Area's impaired portfolio of positions
classified as past due and unlikely to pay, while that of performing exposures reduces from 1,1% to 0,8%.

AMOUNTS CHANGE

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Credit cost M 0,29% 0,29% n.a. 0,0%
Net |mp§|red assets/ 0,8% 0.7% na. 01%
Net receivables due from customers
Gross |mp§|red assets/ 22% 1.9% na. 0,3%
Gross receivables due from customers
RWA @ 1.200.451 1.344.965 (144.514) (10,7)%

(1) This indicator is calculated comparing the value of net credit risk losses/reversals over the annual average loans to customers

(calculated quarterly).

(2) Risk Weighted Assets; the amount only relates to the credit risk.
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CHANGE

ABSOLUTE
Net interest income 73.713 74.136 (423) (0,6)%
Net commission income 21.410 18.366 3.044 16,6%
Other components of net banking income 16.443 16.766 (323) (1,9)%
Net banking income 111.566 109.268 2.298 2,1%
Net credit risk losses/reversals (29.142) (27.501) (1.641) 6,0%
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 82.424 81.767 657 0,8%
Operating costs (40.518) (37.617) (2.901) 7,7%
Eﬁ;rzl'lec;cations to provisions for risks and 6.055 (831) 6.886 na
E;ﬁtfzﬁlﬁ;°:)';£r‘;jfg::’ the period from 47.961 43.319 4.642 10,7%
Ionpc;r;;otssxes for the year relating to current (16.062) (13.926) (2.136) 15,3%
Profit (loss) for the year 31.899 29.393 2.506 8,5%

Net banking income of the Corporate Banking & Lending Area comes to 111,6 million Euro at 31 December 2024,
up 2,3 million Euro on 31 December 2023 (+2,1%). The positive change is a result of the combined effect of the
following factors:

e essential stability in net interest income of 73,7 million Euro, due to the higher positive contribution of the
Corporate Banking segment of 4,6 million Euro, which almost entirely offset the lower contribution of the
Pharmacies business unit of 4,9 million Euro;

e higher net commission income of 3,0 million Euro (+16,6%), mainly from the Corporate Banking segment;

e substantial stability in the contribution of the other components of net banking income, amounting to 16,4
million Euro as at 31 December 2024, mainly represented by the fair value measurement of securities in
the Corporate Banking segment.

Net credit risk losses amount to 29,1 million Euro, up 1,6 million Euro compared to 31 December 2023. This
increase was due to higher provisions set aside in 2024 for the deterioration of credit quality on certain positions
in the Lending unit.

The increase in operating costs of 2,9 million Euro compared to 31 December 2023 is due to the combined effect
of higher personnel expenses related to the renewed National Collective Bargaining Agreement as well as higher
ICT and interbank network expenses to support customer operations.

The net releases for provisions for risks and charges for the year, amounting to 6,0 million Euro, refer to the
settlement of disputes arising from the acquisition of the former Aigis Banca business unit.

At 31 December 2024, the Area's total net receivables due from customers amounts to 2.472,6 million Euro, up
106,1 million Euro on 31 December 2023.
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The following table shows the gross and net amounts as well as the relevant coverage ratios of receivables due

from customers by credit quality.

CORPORATE BANKING &
LENDING AREA

(in thousands of Euro)

BAD LOANS

PERFORMING
EXPOSURES
(STAGES 1 AND

TOTAL NON-
PERFORMING
(STAGE 3)

UNLIKELY TO
PAY

PAST DUE

EXPOSURES TOTAL LOANS

2)

POSITION AT 31.12.2024

Nominal amount 33.760 118.340 16.833 168.933 2.409.176 2.578.109

Losses (15.950) (48.874) (1.632) (66.456) (39.077) (105.533)

Carrying amount 17.810 69.466 15.201 102.477 2.370.099 2.472.576
Coverage ratio 47,2% 41,3% 9,7% 39,3% 1,6% 4,1%

POSITION AT 31.12.2023

Nominal amount 16.098 91.045 9.836 116.979 2.345.672 2.462.651

Losses (8.115) (34.606) (1.102) (43.823) (52.369) (96.192)

Carrying amount 7.983 56.439 8.734 73.156 2.293.304 2.366.460
Coverage ratio 50,4% 38,0% 11,2% 37,5% 2,2% 3,9%

The amount of net non-performing exposures at 31 December 2024, 102,5 million Euro, shows an increase of 29,3
million Euro on the value at year-end 2023. The increase is mainly due to the increase in impaired assets in the
Lending unit with the transfer of backed positions to impaired. The coverage of non-performing loans increased
from 37,5% in December 2023 to 39,3% in December 2024 due to the higher incidence within the Area's impaired
portfolio of positions classified as non-performing and likely to default.

AMOUNTS CHANGE

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Credit cost (M 1,20% 1,18% n.a. 0,02%
Net |mp§|red assets/ 41% 31% na. 1,0%
Net receivables due from customers
Gross |mp§|red assets/ 6,6% 48% na. 1,8%
Gross receivables due from customers
RWA @ 1.839.560 1.731.423 108.137 6,2%

(1) This indicator is calculated comparing the value of net credit risk losses/reversals over the annual average loans to customers
(calculated quarterly).
(2) Risk Weighted Assets; the amount only relates to the credit risk.
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Npl Segment

This is the Banca Ifis Group’s Segment dedicated to non-recourse acquisition and managing secured and
unsecured distressed retail loans, as well as third party portfolio management. The business is closely associated
with converting non-performing loans into performing assets and collecting them.

The table below shows the loans portfolio of the Npl Segment, by method of transformation and accounting
criterion; the “interest on income statement” refers to the components of the net banking income deriving from
the booking at amortised cost of the related loans portfolio; in particular, also taking into account the contribution
made by the former Revalea, interest income is included from the amortised cost for 185,1 million Euro and other
components of the net interest income from cash flow changes for 130,5 million Euro, as reported in the summary
table of “Economic data” below in this paragraph.

PROPRIETARY
PORTFOLIO OF THE NPL

OUTSTANDIN
G NOMINAL
AMOUNT

(67.1303441)'[¢]
AMNT / RES.
NOM. AMNT

INTEREST
ON INCOME
STATEMENT

PREVAILING
ACCOUNTING
CRITERION

CARRYING
SEGMENT AMOUNTS

(in thousands of Euro)

Portfolio acquired by 5.999.616 188.501 31% 35284 |  482.803

Revalea

Cost 428.353 18.313 4,3% - - | Acquisition cost

Non-judicial 8.514.870 411.748 4,8% 89.130 |  690.552

of which: Collective 8.004.634 165.465 21% (14.038) | 273.651 | COSt= NPV offlows

(curves) from model

of which: Plans 510.236 246.283 48,3% 103.168 | 416,907 | COSt= NPV of flows

from model

Judicial 6.663.090 888.859 13,3% 191.206 | 1.692.339

of which: Other positions

undergoing judicial 1.700.609 123.536 7,3% (19.726) 225.467 | Acquisition cost

processing

of which: Writs, Property B

Attachments, 2.163.668 641.313 29,6% 184.597 | 1.320.016 | COSt= NPV of flows
! from model

Garnishment Orders

of which: Secured and 2.798.813 124.010 4,4% 26.341 146.856 | COSt= NPV of flows

Corporate from model

Total 21.605.929 |  1.507.421 7,0% 315.620 | 2.865.694

The business can be divided up into three macro categories:

e post-acquisition management, when all information retrieval operations take place to help decide the most
appropriate conversion method, the receivable is classified in a so-called "staging" area and recognised
at cost (18,3 million Euro at 31 December 2024, compared to 14,1 million Euro at 31 December 2023), with
no contribution to profit or loss. As a rule, 6-12 months later, the positions are directed towards the most
appropriate form of management, depending on their characteristics;

e non-judicial operations, which deal with practices that can be handled through collection by settlement.
Practices awaiting information about the most appropriate collection instrument are classified into a
basin called “mass management” and at 31 December 2024 come to 165,5 million Euro as compared with
216,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023 (down 23,7%). Practices on which a realignment plan has been
agreed and formalised come in at 246,3 million Euro at 31 December 2024 (273,2 million Euro at 31
December 2023);

e legal management, which covers all practices in the various stages of legal processing, ranging from
obtaining a court order to a garnishment order. Practices awaiting the most appropriate legal action are
included in the category of “Other positions undergoing judicial processing” and come to 123,5 million
Euro at 31 December 2024 (175,1 million Euro at 31 December 2023); practices in phases of writ,
attachment order and garnishment order are allocated to a specific basin, which records an increase of
6%, coming in at 641,3 million Euro as compared with the 605,2 million Euro recorded in December 2023.
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The judicial management basin include all “Secured and Corporate” positions of corporate banking origin
or real estate, equal to 124 million Euro at 31 December 2024, down on the figure at 31 December 2023
(138,0 million Euro).

Finally, the Group seizes market opportunities in accordance with its business model by selling portfolios of
positions for which no significant collections are expected.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT DATA YEAR CHANGE

(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023 ABSOLUTE %
Net interest income 280.300 281.381 (1.081) (0,4)%
Net commission income (1.041) 3.483 (4.524) n.a.
Other components of net banking income 16.957 9.669 7.288 75,4%
}izl;;v:i;clh;SGsaei{)ss (losses) on the disposal of 16.068 10.384 5684 547%
Net banking income 296.216 294.533 1.683 0,6%
Net credit risk losses/reversals 52 (103) 155 n.a.
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 296.268 294.430 1.838 0,6%
Operating costs (199.185) (191.931) (7.254) 3,8%
E:;rzl.lec;cations to provisions for risks and 2997 147 2080 ns.
Non-recurring expenses and income (610) (2.919) 2.309 (79,1)%
E;ﬁtfsﬁlf‘ﬂ;é'r‘:fgnf:’ the period from 98.700 99.727 (1.027) (1,0)%
Ionpc;r;?otr?:es for the year relating to current (33.056) (31.588) (1.468) 4,6%
Profit (loss) for the year 65.644 68.139 (2.495) 3,7)%

Net interest income, which amounts to 280,3 million Euro (essentially in line with the previous year’s figure),
consists of:

e interest income from amortised cost, i.e. the interest accruing at the original effective rate, which
increases from 170,4 million Euro at 31 December 2023 to 185,1 million Euro at 31 December 2024, due
to an increase in the average value of underlying assets, which have completed the documentary check
phase and have left the staging phase;

e interestincome on notes and other minority components, which shows a balance of 6,8 million Euro at 31
December 2024, a rise on the 5,0 million Euro recorded in 2023;

e other components of net interest income from change in cash flow, which change from 131,1 million Euro
of 31 December 2023 to 130,5 million Euro at 31 December 2024, and reflect the change in expected cash
flows according to the collections made in respect of forecasts. This item is impacted on the one hand by
the out-of-court management of 26,9 million Euro (49,9 million Euro at 31 December 2023), to which the
repayment plans contribute 67,6 million Euro (down from the figure of 77,7 million Euro in 2023), partially
offset by the negative effect of curve models of 40,7 million Euro (27,8 million Euro in the previous year).
On the other hand, are legal expenses of 83,3 million Euro (81 million Euro at 31 December 2023), following
actions for injunction, attachment and garnishment orders;

e interest expense of 42,1 million Euro, up 10,1 million Euro on the previous year’s balance.

Net commissions represent a cost of 1,0 million Euro at 31 December 2024, compared to revenues of 3,5 million
Euro at 31 December 2023. This change is mainly attributable to commission expenses for the management of
the former Revalea portfolio (portfolio now incorporated into Ifis Npl Investing following the merger of Revalea
into Ifis Npl Investing) paid to a third-party servicer.
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In 2024, disposals of Npl portfolios were realised, in line with the Group's policy, from which net gains on disposal
amount to 16,1 million Euro, up 5,7 million Euro compared with 31 December 2023.

In view of the above, the Npl Segment's net banking income comes to a total of 296,2 million Euro, up 1,7 million
Euro compared with 31 December 2023.

The Npl Segment's credit cost does not change significantly between 31 December 2024 and the previous year.
The net releases for FY 2024 mainly relate to the change in the provision for impairment losses on securitisation
securities with underlying non-performing loans.

Operating costs of 199,2 million Euro at 31 December 2024 are up 7,3 million Euro compared to 31 December
2023. This increase is due to the combined effect of higher personnel expenses related to both the renewed
National Collective Bargaining Agreement and the increase in the workforce in the amount of 3,4 million Euro, as
well as higher debt collection costs associated with Revalea (now merged into Ifis Npl Investing).

The item "Non-recurring expenses and income" shows a net negative balance as at 31 December 2024 of 610
thousand Euro and refers to non-recurring operating costs pertaining to FY 2024 connected to the acquisition of
Revalea and its integration within the Banca Ifis Group, including those relating to its merger by incorporation into
Ifis Npl Investing which took place in 2024 (for more details see "Part G - Business combinations" of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements). The figure is significantly lower than the balance as of 31 December 2023,
which amounted to 2,9 million Euro and included non-recurring operating costs directly or indirectly related to the
acquisition of Revalea in the fourth quarter of 2023 totalling 11,5 million Euro, only partially offset by the "gain on
bargain purchase" calculated in accordance with IFRS 3, amounting to 8,5 million Euro.

As a consequence of the foregoing, period profit of the Npl Segment is 65,6 million Euro, down 2,5 million Euro on
31 December 2023.

Below is the breakdown of net loans by credit quality.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATA AMOUNTS CHANGE
(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %

Net bad loans 1.184.378 1.276.812 (92.434) (7,2)%

Net unlikely to pay 308.540 335.773 (27.233) (8,1)%

Net non-performing past due exposures 3.837 4.029 (192) (4,8)%

Total net non-performing exposures to 1.496.755 1.616.614 (119.859) (7,4)%

customers (stage 3)

Total net performing exposures (stages 1 and 2) 24.246 29.544 (5.298) (17,9)%
- of which: proprietary loans acquired 10.666 12.601 (1.935) (154)%
- of which: loans disbursed 533 13.929 (13.396) (96,2)%
- of which: debt securities 11.602 1.848 9.754 527,8%
- of yvhtch: receivables related to servicer 1445 1166 279 23,9%

activities

Total on-balance-sheet receivables due from 1.521.001 1.646.158 (125.157) (7,6)%

customers
- of which: owned rfecelvables acquired 1.507.421 1.629.215 (121.794) (7,5)%
measured at amortised cost

As regards the Npl Segment loans, 1.507,4 million Euro are represented by receivables classified as POCI -
Purchased or originated credit-impaired -, the category envisaged by the accounting standard IFRS 9. These are
loans that were non-performing at the date they were acquired or originated. These receivables represent the
Segment's core business. Excluded from this classification are new disbursements of performing loans, debt
securities measured at amortised cost, and receivables related to servicer activities on behalf of third parties.
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AMOUNTS CHANGE
31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %

Nominal amount of receivables managed ‘ 21.605.929 ‘ 26.147.455 ’ (4.541.526) ‘ (17,4)%

RWA O ‘ 1.733.692 ‘ 1.898.366 ] (164.674) ‘ (8,7)%
(1) Risk Weighted Assets; the amount only relates to the credit risk.

Total Estimated Remaining Collections (ERC), including the portfolio acquired from Revalea, amount to 2,9 billion
Euro.

NPL SEGMENT NON-PERFORMING LOAN PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE mm

Opening loan portfolio 1.629.215 1.505.026
Purchases (+) 18.032 230.589
- of which from business combination - 210.762
Sales (-) (49.588) (21.244)
Gains (losses) on disposals (+/-) 16.068 10.377
Interest income from amortised cost (+) 185.126 170.423
Other components of interest from change in cash flow (+) 130.487 131.081
Collections (-) (421.919) (397.037)
Closing loan portfolio 1.507.421 1.629.215

Total purchases for FY 2024 amount to 18,0 million Euro, down significantly from 230,6 million Euro as at 31
December 2023, reflecting the early purchase of new Npl portfolios at the end of 2023 through the business
combination of Revalea with its 210,8 million Euro loan portfolio. During the financial year, sales of Npls were
completed for a total price of 49,6 million Euro, which generated profits of 16,1 million Euro.

The item "Collections", equal to 421,9 million Euro at 31 December 2024, includes the instalments collected during
the year from repayment plans, from garnishment orders and transactions carried out rises by 6,3% on the
collections of 397,0 million Euro made in 2023.

At 31 December 2024, the portfolio managed by the Npl Segment includes 2.055.540 positions, for a nominal
amount of 21,6 billion Euro.
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Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment

The Segment comprises, among other things, the resources required for the performance of the services of the
Strategic Planning, Finance, Operations, Human Resources, Communication, Marketing, Public Affairs &
Sustainability functions, as well as the structures responsible for raising, managing and allocating financial
resources to the operating Segments. This Segment also includes Proprietary Finance activities (proprietary
securities desk) and Securitisation & Structured Solution activities (investment in Asset Backed Securities,
instrumental to the realisation of securitisation transactions). The Segment also includes run-off portfolios
originated from the former Interbanca as well as other residual personal loan portfolios.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT DATA YEAR CHANGE

(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023 ABSOLUTE %
Net interest income 13.410 52.645 (39.235) (74,5)%
Net commission income (3.359) (2.060) (1.299) 63,1%
Other components of net banking income 41.461 14.859 26.602 179,0%
Net banking income 51.512 65.444 (13.932) (21,3)%
Net credit risk losses/reversals 2.691 8.412 (5.721) (68,0)%
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 54.203 73.856 (19.653) (26,6)%
Operating costs (43.666) (38.827) (4.839) 12,5%
Charges related to the banking system (8.136) (11.193) 3.057 (27,3)%
?:;rzlg')scations to provisions for risks and 489 (2.524) 3013 na.
Gains (losses) on disposal of investments - 986 (986) (100,0)%
:;it::ﬁl';;°2;£r‘;ifg:s°r the period from 2.890 22.208 (19.408) (87,0)%
rgzg:t?otrz(es for the year relating to current (968) (7.266) 6.298 (86,7)%
Profit (loss) for the year 1.922 15.032 (13.110) (87,2)%
E:IZ:qc)tfri(t))”iIg;?:t()err’éI;:Syear attributable to non- (1.596) (1.806) 210 (11,6)%
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the 326 13.226 (12.900) (97,5)%

Parent Company

The Segment's net banking income amounts to 51,5 million Euro, down 13,9 million Euro compared to 31
December 2023 and is determined in particular by the following dynamics:

e netinterest income, decreasing by 39,2 million Euro at 31 December 2023. The negative change is due for
11,4 million Euro to lesser interest income in the run-off portfolio of the Non-Core business, while the
residual change of 27,8 million Euro is mainly due to the cost of funding;

e other components of net banking income have increased by 26,6 million Euro, of which 6,8 million Euro is
due to the improvement of the fair value of the Non-Core business (of which 6,2 million Euro relating to
the sale of a PFI - Participating Financial Instrument) and 20,1 million Euro to the disposal of bonds.

In terms of funding, “Rendimax Deposit Account” continues to constitute the Group’s main source of finance, with
a comprehensive cost of 133,4 million Euro, higher than last year (54,1 million Euro) due to the increase in average
rates that go from 1,98% in 2023 to 3,04% in 2024 following the successful retail funding campaigns run late 2023
and early 2024. Average assets under management also increase, amounting to 4.394 million Euro at 31 December
2024 compared to 4.003 million Euro at end FY 2023.

At 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the bonds issued by Banca Ifis is 1.507,3 million Euro, up by 71,5
million Euro compared with 31 December 2023. During the year, a new issue was completed, which comes under
the scope of the Group’s EMTN issuance programme, worth a nominal amount of 400 million Euro to replace the

bond with the same nominal amount that matured in June 2024 (for more details on the February 2024 issue,
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please refer to the section "Significant events occurred in the year"). In economic terms, interest expense accrued
on all issues rose by 29,1 million Euro compared with FY 2023, coming in at a total of 95,7 million Euro at 31
December 2024.

Funding through securitisation, amounting to 1.645,4 million Euro at 31 December 2024, is down by 207,7 million
Euro compared with the figure at 31 December 2023 and consists of:

e securities issued by the SPV ABCP Programme for 976,6 million Euro relating to the senior tranche. It
should be noted that at the end of June 2024, the restructuring of this securitisation, involving proprietary
factoring receivables, was completed (for more details, please refer to the section "Significant events
occurred in the year" below);

e securities issued by the SPV Indigo Lease for 400,2 million Euro relating to the senior tranche;

e securities issued by the SPV Emma for 268,6 million Euro relating to the senior tranche.

Accrued interest expense goes from 68,2 million Euro at 31 December 2023 to 77,5 million Euro at 31 December
2024 due to the effect of the change in the market curves to which they are indexed and to the placement, which
took place in July 2023, of the Indigo Lease securitisation notes carried out with the restructuring of the
transaction (the impact of which on the data compared at 31 December 2023, was therefore limited to the second
half of the year).

With reference to TLTRO operations, it should be noted that in 2024 the related funding was fully repaid. Compared
to the previous year, the following repayments were recorded:

e nominal 750 million Euro in March 2024;
e nominal 375 million Euro in June 2024;
e nominal 411,5 million Euro on 25 September 2024.

Also worth mentioning is the access to funding through an MRO refinancing transaction in the amount of 400
million Euro, carried out in December 2024 and maturing on 8 January 2025.

As a result of the dynamics depicted above (and in particular the aforementioned repayment of the TLTRO lines),
the average funding cost as at 31 December 2024 stands at 3,87%, up from the figure of 3,08% for the average of
FY 2023.

With regard to the credit cost, the figure for 31 December 2024 shows net write-backs of 2,7 million Euro, a
downturn of 5,7 million Euro compared to 31 December 2023, consistent with the run-off of the underlying
portfolio.

Operating costs come to 43,7 million Euro, up 4,8 million Euro on 31 December 2023, related to higher consultancy
expenses and higher ICT costs to strengthen the Climate & ESG control. As these costs are not related to specific
immediate business topics, they were allocated to the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment.

The item “Charges related to the banking system” includes the costs incurred during the year for the operation of
the banking system's guarantee funds. At 31 December 2024, the item amounts to 8,1 million Euro and refers to
the cost of the annual contribution to the Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), of which 7,9 million Euro
relates to the Parent Company Banca Ifis and the remainder to the subsidiary Banca Credifarma. The comparative
balance as at 31 December 2023 of 11,2 million Euro also included the contribution of 4,1 million Euro to the Single
Resolution Fund, which reached its accumulation plan target in 2023.

With reference to the provisions for risks and charges, there are net releases of 0,5 million Euro, an improvement
of 3,0 million Euro compared to the net allocations of 2,5 million Euro as of 31 December 2023, due to the Group’s
positive resolution of an outstanding dispute. The releases recognised were only partially offset by provisions for
the year made mainly for contractual guarantees given on transferred positions.

The item "Gains (losses) on disposal of investments” has a null balance, a reduction compared with 31 December
2023 when it came to 986 thousand Euro, insofar as it included the effect of the sale of a property held by the
subsidiary Banca Credifarma.
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As a result of the above trends, the profit for the year of the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment
amounts to 1,9 million Euro, down from 15,0 million Euro (-13,1 million Euro) at 31 December 2023. Excluding the
profit attributable to minority interests, the Segment's contribution to the profit attributable to the Parent Company
amounts to 0,3 million Euro.

As regards equity figures, at 31 December 2024, total net receivables for the Segment amount to 2.303,4 million
Euro, up 90,8 million Euro on the figure at 31 December 2023 (2.212,5 million Euro).

It should be noted that the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment includes receivables, mainly impaired,
belonging to the POCI category, mainly referring to non-performing exposures resulting from the business
combinations performed by the Banca Ifis Group during previous financial years:

e net non-performing loans: 5,6 million Euro at 31 December 2024, down 2,3 million Euro on the figure
recorded at 31 December 2023;

e net performing exposures: 11,2 million Euro at 31 December 2024, down 5,7 million Euro on the figure
recorded at 31 December 2023.

The following table shows the gross and net amounts as well as the relevant coverage ratios of receivables due
from customers by credit quality.

GOVE"T gl '\? T:%ig SEGR\GI(E:E? AND BAD LOANS UNLIKELY TO PAST DUE JSJIQ)LRTA?::(-; PEE)(lg:OOSRLIIVI!\‘IIrE‘lSG TOTAL LOANS
VO 7\ EXPOSURES (STAGES 1 AND M
(in thousands of Euro) (STAGE 3) 2)
POSITION AT 31.12.2024
Nominal amount 7.938 31.084 7.106 46.128 2.278.168 2.324.296
Losses (4.218) (10.622) (2.286) (17.126) (3.777) (20.903)
Carrying amount 3.720 20.462 4.820 29.002 2.274.391 2.303.393
Coverage ratio 53,1% 34,2% 32,2% 37,1% 0,2% 0,9%
POSITION AT 31.12.2023
Nominal amount 12.256 22.793 8.625 43.674 2.191.536 2.235.210
Losses (6.595) (8.247) (3.240) (18.076) (4.626) (22.702)
Carrying amount 5.661 14.552 5.385 25.598 2.186.910 2.212.508
Coverage ratio 53,8% 36,2% 37,6% 41,4% 0,2% 1,0%

(1) In the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment, at 31 December 2024, there are government securities amounting to
1.579,0 million Euro (1.628,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023).

The coverage of non-performing exposures in the Segment is affected by receivables whose gross values already
take into account the estimate of expected losses. The coverage of the portfolio as a whole at 31 December 2024
is essentially in line with the figure at 31 December 2023 and is mainly related to the Non-Core unit portfolio, which
records lower coverage due to the presence of POCI receivables.

Net non-performing loans in the Governance & Services Segment and Non-Core increased by 13,3% compared to
the December 2023 figure, mainly due to an increase in unlikely to pay positions. Performing loans were
substantially in line with the balance of the previous year despite the disposals of debt securities made during
2024, mainly relating to government bonds (these securities rose from 1.628,7 million Euro as at 31 December
2023 to 1.579,0 million Euro at year-end 2024).

The coverage of non-performing loans, influenced by the aforementioned POCI loans, is 37,1% at 31 December
2024 (41,4% at 31 December 2023).
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Reclassified Statement of financial positions items

RECLASSIFIED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION HIGHLIGHTS

AMOUNTS CHANGE

(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Cash and cash equivalents 505.016 857.533 (352.517) (41,1)%
Financial assets mandatorlly measured at fair 237032 221982 15.050 6,8%
value through profit or loss
Financial assets rr!eagured at fair value through 701.830 749 176 (47.346) (6,3)%
other comprehensive income
Recel\(ables due from banks measured at 703.763 637.567 66.196 10.4%
amortised cost
Recel\(ables due from customers measured at 10.810.018 10.622.134 187.884 1.8%
amortised cost
Property, plant and equipment and intangible 252 153 219.922 32931 147%
assets
Tax assets 213.464 285.435 (71.971) (25,2)%
Other assets 402.462 457.612 (55.150) (12,1)%
Total assets 13.825.738 14.051.361 (225.623) (1,6)%
Eg;{?bles due to banks measured at amortised 1.443.950 2717139 (1.273.889) (46,9)%
Payables due to customers measured at 7.001.763 5.814.624 1.187.139 20,4%
amortised cost
Debt securities issued 3.152.737 3.288.895 (136.158) 4,1)%
Tax liabilities 51.924 57.717 (5.793) (10,0)%
Provisions for risks and charges 52.339 58.178 (5.839) (10,0)%
Other liabilities 375.579 421.109 (45.530) (10,8)%
Consolidated equity 1.748.146 1.693.699 54.447 3,2%
Total liabilities and equity 13.825.738 14.051.361 (225.623) (1,6)%

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include sight bank accounts and amount to 505,0 million Euro at 31 December 2024.
The decrease compared to the figure of 857,5 million Euro at the end of 2023 is mainly related to the decrease in
overnight deposits with the Bank of Italy (-295,0 million Euro). The general trend of the item during 2024 is driven

by the reshaping of funding in relation to the trend and composition of Group loans.

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss total 237,0 million Euro at 31 December
2024. This item consists of loans and debt securities that did not pass the SPPI test, equity securities from minority

shares and UCITS units.
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Below is the breakdown of this line item.

FINANCIAL ASSETS MANDATORILY MEASURED AMOUNTS CHANGE
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

T e B T 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Debt securities 69.042 86.919 (17.877) (20,6)%
Equity securities 68.725 51.051 17.674 34,6%
UCITS units 98.058 76.910 21.148 27,5%
Loans 1.207 7.102 (5.895) (83,0)%
Total 237.032 221.982 15.050 6,8%

In detail, the increase of 6,8% compared to 31 December 2023 can be broken down as follows:

e the 17,9 million Euro (-20,6%) decrease in debt securities was the result of the 18,9 million Euro negative
net effect of new subscriptions and redemption trend and collections for the year and 1,0 million Euro net
positive fair value changes;

e the 17,7 million Euro increase (+34,6%) in equity securities is mainly due to the fair value changes during
the year (+10,6 million Euro) and the subscription of new securities (+8,9 million Euro);

e the year increase in the balance of UCITS units (+21,1 million Euro, +27,5%), is recorded following the
growth recorded in fair value measurements (+6,6 million Euro) and the positive contribution of net new
subscriptions, net of redemptions and collections, of 14,5 million Euro;

e the significant decrease in the carrying amount of loans compared to 31 December 2023 (-83,0%), mainly
as a result of the collections upon closure of singularly significant positions for a total of 5,4 million Euro.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income amount to 701,8 million Euro at 31
December 2024, down 6,3% from December 2023. They include debt securities characterised by a Held to Collect
& Sell (HTC&S) business model, that have passed the SPPI test and equity securities for which the Group has
exercised the OCI Option envisaged by IFRS 9.

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE AMOUNTS CHANGE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Debt securities 544.936 634.306 (89.370) (14,1)%
of which: government securities 455.312 460.187 (4.875) (1,1)%
Equity securities 156.894 114.870 42.024 36,6%
Total 701.830 749.176 (47.346) (6,3)%

Debt securities owned measured at fair value through other comprehensive income decrease by 89,4 million Euro
(-14,17%) compared to the balance at 31 December 2023, mainly due to the effect of natural maturities and
disposals during the year (-361,9 million Euro, of which -249,2 million Euro related to government bonds, mainly
due to the reaching of natural maturities), only partially offset by new subscriptions for the year (+276,4 million
Euro, of which +243,6 million Euro related to government bonds) and the increase in fair value measurements
(+1,9 million Euro, essentially due to government securities). The related associated net negative fair value reserve
amounts to 16,7 million Euro at 31 December 2024, of which 15,9 million Euro associated with Government
securities.

This item also includes equity securities attributable to non-controlling interests, which amount to 156,9 million
Euro at the end of FY 2024, up 36,6% compared to 31 December 2023, mainly due to investments made in 2024
(+70,5 million Euro), only partly offset by disposals during the year (-25,9 million Euro) and by the decline recorded
in fair value amounts in 2024 (-2,5 million Euro). The net fair value reserve associated with this portfolio at 31
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December 2024 shows a negative value of 7,7 million Euro, better than the negative figure posted at the end of
2023, which was 14,4 million Euro.

Receivables due from banks measured at amortised cost

Total receivables due from banks measured at amortised cost amount to 703,8 million Euro at 31 December 2024,
up on the figure booked at 31 December 2023 (637,6 million Euro). The change in this item is attributable to the
growth in loans to central banks for reserve requirements (+47,7 million Euro), as well as repurchase agreements
(repos) with banks, up by 25,2 million Euro.

The item also includes bank issuers’ debt securities to which a "Held to Collect (HTC)" business model is
associated and which have passed the SPPI Test: these securities at 31 December 2024 have a carrying amount
of 556,1 million Euro, a reduction compared to the figure at December 2023 (-3,6%, equal to -20,8 million Euro),
insofar as the effect of new bank bond subscriptions during the year (+268,6 million Euro) was more than offset
by that of disposals made in 2024, within the limits envisaged by the Group policy (-289,7 million Euro).

Receivables due from customers measured at amortised cost

Total receivables due from customers measured at amortised cost amount to 10.810,0 million Euro, essentially in
line with the 31 December 2023 figure of 10.622,1 million Euro. The item includes debt securities for 1,9 billion
Euro (2,0 billion Euro at 31 December 2023, -3,6%), of which government securities for 1,6 billion Euro (-3,1%
compared with 31 December 2023). In the absence of the debt securities component, receivables due from
customers amount to 8.861,4 million Euro, up 3,0% compared to the December 2023 figure (8.600,2 million Euro).

The main dynamics by segment are shown below:

e The Commercial & Corporate Banking segment stands at 6.985,6 million Euro compared with 6.763,5
million Euro at December 2023 (+3,3%). The trend saw consolidated growth in all three business areas of
the Sector, with the largest contribution coming from the Corporate Banking & Lending Area (+106,1
million Euro, +4,5%);

e receivables due from customers in the Npl Segment decrease compared to 31 December 2023 (-7,6%) to
1.521,0 million Euro;

e the contribution of the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment comes to 2.303,4 million Euro, an
increase compared with the end-of-2023 figure of 2.212,5 million Euro (+4,1%).
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RECEIVABLES DUE FROM CUSTOMERS AMOUNTS CHANGE
BREAKDOWN BY SEGMENT

e AT 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment 6.985.624 6.763.468 222.156 3,3%
- of which non-performing 193.814 212.870 (19.056) (9,0)%
Factoring Area 2.900.077 2.844.805 55.272 1,9%
- of which non-performing 78.026 128.985 (50.959) (39,5)%
Leasing Area 1.612.971 1.552.204 60.767 3.9%
- of which non-performing 13.371 10.729 2.582 24,1%
Corporate Banking & Lending Area 2.472.576 2.366.459 106.117 4,5%
- of which non-performing 102.477 73.155 29.322 40,1%
Npl Segment 1.521.001 1.646.158 (125.157) (7.6)%
- of which non-performing 1.496.755 1.616.614 (119.859) (7,4)%
ggﬁgsﬂﬁe & Services and Non-Core 2.303.393 2.212.509 90.884 41%
- of which non-performing 29.002 25.598 3.404 13,3%
Total receivables due from customers 10.810.018 10.622.134 187.884 1,8%
- of which non-performing 1.719.571 1.855.082 (135.511) (7,3)%

(1) In the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment, at 31 December 2024, there are government securities amounting to
1.579,0 million Euro (1.628,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023).

Total net non-performing exposures, which are significantly affected by the receivables of the Npl Segment,
amount to 1.719,6 million Euro at 31 December 2024, compared to 1.885,1 million Euro at 31 December 2023 (-
7,3%).

Net of this item relative to the Npl Segment, net non-performing loans come to 222,8 million Euro, a reduction on
the 238,5 million Euro recorded at 31 December 2023, mainly due to the contribution made by the Factoring Area.

The Banca Ifis Group's gross and net Npe ratios for its receivables due from customers are shown below. These
ratios, which are calculated excluding Npl Segment loans and Government bonds measured at amortised cost,
show an improving trend compared with the equivalent figure of 31 December 2023.

AMOUNTS CHANGE
31.12.2024 31.12.2023 %

Net Npe ratio | 2,9% 3,2% (0,3)%
Gross Npe ratio ‘ 5,4% 5,5% (0.1)%

For a detailed analysis of receivables due from customers, please see the section "Contribution of operating
segments to Group results” of this Directors' report on the Group.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets come to 85,5 million Euro, up 11,5% from 76,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023.

This item refers to software and intangible assets generated in-house in the total amount of 47,5 million Euro (up
from the balance of 38,6 million Euro at 31 December 2023 as a result of investments made during 2024) and 38,0
million Euro in goodwill following the acquisition of the former Fbs Group.

Property, plant and equipment comes to 166,7 million Euro, up 16,3% compared with the 143,3 million Euro booked
at 31 December 2023, mainly as a result of the investments made in FY 2024 by the Parent Company Banca Ifis,
including the purchases of office buildings in Milan and Mestre and Palazzo San Pantalon in Venice, on whose
fagade the work "The Migrant Child" by the artist Banksy is painted.
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At 31 December 2024, the properties recognised under property, plant and equipment include the important
historical building "Villa Flrstenberg” (“Villa Marocco”), located in Mestre — Venice and housing Banca Ifis's
registered office.

Tax assets and liabilities

These items include current and deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Tax assets amount to 213,4 million Euro, a decrease of 25,2% compared to 31 December 2023, which was 285,4
million Euro, mainly due to the reversals of the portions of deferred tax assets pursuant to Law 214/11 that were
prepaid under current legislation.

Specifically, current tax assets amount to 42,0 million Euro, and decrease by 9,8% compared to the figure at 31
December 2023, which was 46,6 million Euro due to the effect of the liquidation of tax relative to the previous year.

Deferred tax assets (“DTAs") amount to 171,4 million Euro, down on the figure of 238,8 million Euro at 31 December
2023 and consist mainly of 85,1 million Euro of assets recognised for impairment losses on receivables due from
customers, potentially convertible into tax credits in accordance with Italian Law No. 214/2011 (144,7 million Euro
at 31 December 2023), 40,0 million Euro of assets recognised for prior tax losses and aid for economic growth
(“ACE") benefit (41,1 million Euro at 31 December 2023) and 46,3 million Euro (53,1 million Euro at 31 December
2023) in tax misalignments mainly relating to financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) and provisions for risks and charges. The decrease is mainly attributable to the release of the
year's portion of deferred tax assets that can be converted into tax credits under Law 214/2011.

With regard to the recoverability of deferred tax assets recognised at 31 December 2024, please refer to the
paragraph on “Risks and uncertainties related to estimates” within Part A of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and to “Section 11 - Tax assets and liabilities - Item 110 of Assets and Item 60 of Liabilities”
in Part B of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Tax liabilities amount to 51,9 million Euro (57,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023) and are made up as follows:

e current tax liabilities of 23,3 million Euro (26,0 million Euro at 31 December 2023) representing the tax
burden accrued during the year;

e deferred tax liabilities, amounting to 28,6 million Euro (31,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023), mainly
include 23,6 million Euro on receivables recognised for interest on arrears that will be taxed upon
collection.

Tax assets are included in the calculation of "capital requirements for credit risk" in accordance with (EU)
Regulation No. 575/2013 (CRR), as subsequently updated, which was transposed in the Bank of Italy's Circular No.
285.

Here below is the breakdown of the different treatments by type and the relevantimpact on CET1 and risk-weighted
assets (RWAs) at 31 December 2024:

e the "deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability and do not arise from temporary differences" are
subject to deduction from CET1; at 31 December 2024, the deduction is 40 million Euro. It should also be
noted that the amount of DTA deducted from CET1, as provided for by Art. 38 par. 5 pursuant to CRR, is
offset for an amount of 13,3 million Euro by the corresponding deferred tax liabilities. This deduction will
be gradually absorbed by the future use of these deferred tax assets;

e the "deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability and arise from temporary differences" are not
deducted from CET1 and receive instead a 250% risk weight: at 31 December 2024, these assets amount
to 33,4 million Euro. The amount weighted according to a factor of 250%, as provided for by art. 38 par 5
pursuant to CRR, is shown net of the offsetting with the corresponding deferred tax liabilities for an
amount of 15,3 million Euro;

e the "deferred tax assets pursuant to Italian Law No. 214/2011", concerning credit risk losses, that can be
converted into tax credits, receive a 100% risk weight; at 31 December 2024, the corresponding weight
totals 85,1 million Euro;
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e "current tax assets" receive a 0% weight as they are exposures to the Central Government.

Other assets and liabilities

Other assets, of 402,5 million Euro as compared to a balance of 457,6 million Euro at 31 December 2023, include:

e financial assets held for trading for 12,1 million Euro (12,9 million Euro at 31 December 2023), entirely
relating to transactions hedged by opposite positions entered amongst financial liabilities held for trading;

e derivative hedging assets, related to the micro fair value hedging strategies on the price risk associated
with equity securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and the interest rate
risk on debt securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, both initiated during
the year, which have a positive fair value of 7,4 million Euro at 31 December 2024;

e equity investments in the amount of 24 thousand Euro, in line with the balance as at 31 December 2023;

e other assets of 383,0 million Euro (444,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023), which include tax receivables
of 181,17 million Euro (of which 163,0 million Euro related to tax credits for Super Ecobonus and other
building tax bonuses worth a nominal amount of 180,8 million Euro, a reduction compared with the
carrying amount of 208,7 million Euro at 31 December 2023), transitory items and effects portfolio for 61,2
million Euro (down 11,3 million Euro compared with December 2023), accrued income and deferred
expenses for 68,5 million Euro (+8,6 million Euro compared with December 2023) and receivables from
the tax consolidating company La Scogliera connected to the Group's 2024 tax consolidation for 25,0
million Euro (-7,2 million Euro compared with December 2023).

With specific reference to the above-mentioned tax credits for Super Ecobonus and other building tax bonuses
recognised under "other assets" in the nominal amount of 180,8 million Euro at 31 December 2024, it should be
noted that during the financial year there was an update of the associated regulations. Indeed, with the approval
of Decree Law 39/2024 converted with amendments by Law No. 67 of 23 May 2024 (in OJ No. 123 of 28/05/2024),
a number of important innovations were introduced with regard to building bonus credits.

In particular, as far as the banking sector is concerned, it was stipulated that:

e the residual portions of the 110% Super Ecobonus credits that are "traceable" (i.e. have an identification
code) and have been purchased at a price of less than 75% of their nominal amount are to be spread over
6 years starting on 1 January 2025;

e from 1 January 2025, it will no longer be possible to offset any Ecobonus credit against INPS and INAIL
social security debts.

With reference to the specific position of the Banca Ifis Group in this new regulatory scenario, on the basis of
analyses carried out, it is reasonably believed that these new provisions will not have any significant impact either
in terms of lengthening the time horizon of netting or in terms of quantitative limitations to netting itself. Indeed:

e the Group stopped purchasing these receivables at the start of FY 2022;

e no building bonus credit included in the Group's portfolio simultaneously fulfils the three conditions for
the application of the new 6-year allocation;

e the Group acquired credits to be used in offsetting for a total amount below its tax capacity, both to avoid
the risk of incapacity and to make it possible to offset tax credits arising from other types of concessions
(e.g., film industry).

Other liabilities come to 375,6 million Euro, a reduction of 10,8% compared with 421,1 million Euro at 31 December
2023, and mainly consist of:

e trading derivative liabilities for 13,8 million Euro, mainly referring to transactions hedged by opposite
positions entered amongst financial assets held for trading, and essentially in line with the balance at 31
December 2023 of 14,0 million Euro;

e hedging derivative liabilities, mainly related to the micro fair value hedging strategy on the interest rate
risk associated with government securities held by the Group, which show a negative fair value of 14,9
million Euro at 31 December 2024, up from the balance of 11,6 million Euro at 31 December 2023;
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e severance indemnity payable for 7,6 million Euro, 4,3% down on the figure of 31 December 2023 (7,9

million Euro);

e other liabilities for 339,4 million Euro, down 12,4% from 387,6 million Euro at 31 December 2023. More
specifically, the most significant items making up the balance at 31 December 2024 largely refer to
operating payables for 105,2 million Euro, to transitional items and amounts due to customers that have
not yet been allocated for 55,4 million Euro and to payables due to La Scogliera for 29,1 million Euro

relative to the Group tax consolidation for 2024 (31,2 million Euro at 31 December 2023).

Funding
31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Payables due to banks 1.443.250 2.717.139 (1.273.889) (46,9)%
- Payables due to Central banks 419.286 1.577.874 (1.158.588) (73,4)%
of which: TLTRO - 1.577.874 (1.577.874) (100,0)%
of which: MRO 400.035 - 400.035 n.a.
of which: Other deposits 19.251 - 19.251 n.a.
- Repurchase agreements 630.540 715.313 (84.773) (11,9)%
- Other payables 393.424 423.952 (30.528) (7.2)%
Payables due to customers 7.001.763 5.814.624 1.187.139 20,4%
- Repurchase agreements 1.045.734 346.317 699.417 202,0%
- Retail 4.789.355 4.474.892 314.463 7,0%
- Other term deposits 399.765 122.325 277.440 226,8%
- Lease payables 23.525 22.702 823 3,6%
- Other payables 743.384 848.388 (105.004) (12,4)%
Debt securities issued 3.152.737 3.288.895 (136.158) (4,1)%
Total funding 11.597.750 11.820.658 (222.908) (1,9)%

Total funding amounts to 11,6 billion Euro at 31 December 2024 and shows a slight decrease compared with the
figure at 31 December 2023 (-1,9%); it is represented for 60,4% by payables due to customers (49,2% at 31
December 2023), for 27,2% by debt securities issued (27,8% at 31 December 2023), and for 12,4% by payables due
to banks (23,0% at 31 December 2023).

Payables due to banks come to 1.443,3 million Euro, down 46,9% compared to the end-of-December 2023 figure,
mainly as a result of the full repayment of the TLTRO Ill lines in 2024 totalling a nominal 1,5 billion Euro (a
repayment of a tranche for a nominal 750 million Euro in the first half, a partial repayment of a nominal 375 million
Euro at the end of June 2024 and the repayment of the residual nominal amount of 411,5 million Euro at the final
maturity of September 2024), partially offset by the subscription of a MRO transaction in December 2024 for 400
million Euro maturing on 8 January 2025, and a reduction in repurchase agreements payable to banks of 84,8
million Euro.

Payables due to customers at 31 December 2024 total 7,0 billion Euro, up 20,4% compared to 31 December 2023.
Growth was driven by repurchase agreements with customers, which amount to 1.045,7 million Euro (+699,4
million Euro compared to the balance at the end of 2023) and retail funding, which amounts to 4,8 billion Euro at
the end of 2024 (+7,0% compared to 31 December 2023).

Debt securities issued amount to 3,2 billion Euro at 31 December 2024, down by 136,2 million Euro (-4,1%)
following the period dynamics, characterised by the issue in February 2024 of a senior bond worth a nominal
amount of 400 million Euro and having a term of 5 years (for more details, please refer to the section “Significant
events occurred in the year”), which has essentially replaced the Senior Preferred bond worth a nominal 400 million
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Euro issued in 2020 and which reached maturity on 25 June 2024, and the normal amortisation of the Group's
securitisation securities (-207,7 million Euro compared to December 2023). Debt securities issued at 31 December
2024 consist of:

e securities issued by the SPV ABCP Programme for 976,6 million Euro relating to the senior tranche. It
should be noted that at the end of June 2024, the restructuring of this securitisation, involving proprietary
factoring receivables, was completed (for more details, please refer to the section "Significant events
occurred in the year");

e securities issued by the SPV Indigo Lease for 400,2 million Euro relating to the senior tranche;

e securities issued by the SPV Emma for 268,6 million Euro relating to the senior tranche;

e 373,0 million Euro for a subordinate loan, in line with 31 December 2023;

e 4 senior bonds issued by Banca Ifis in the total amount of 1,1 billion Euro, up on the end-December 2023
figure (+6,7%) for the above-mentioned February 2024 issue of the senior bond of 400 million Euro, which
more than offset the year’s collections on other bonds.

As a result of the dynamics depicted above (and in particular the repayment of the TLTRO lines), the average
funding cost as at 31 December 2024 stands at 3,87%, up from the figure of 3,08% for the average of the first nine

months of 2023.

Below is a representation of the Banca Ifis Group's retail funding.

RETAIL FUNDING
(in thousands of Euro)

AMOUNTS CHANGE

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Short-term funding (within 18 months) 3.675.749 3.256.259 419.490 12,9%
of which: Unrestricted 466.046 458.116 7.930 1,7%
of which: Like/One 251.276 355.016 (103.740) (29,2)%
of which: restricted 2.598.764 2.145.288 453.476 21,1%
of which: German deposit 359.663 297.839 61.824 20,8%
Medium/long-term funding (beyond 18 months) 1.113.606 1.218.633 (105.027) (8,6)%
Total retail funding 4.789.355 4.474.892 314.463 7,0%

Provisions for risks and charges

PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

AMOUNTS CHANGE

(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Provisions for credit risk related to
commitments and financial guarantees 5.222 5.374 (152) (2,8)%
granted
Provisions on other commitments and 337 ) 337 na
guarantees given
Provisions for pensions 231 196 35 17,9%
Legal and tax disputes 28.337 43.029 (14.692) (34,1)%
Personnel expenses 1.931 2.592 (661) (25,5)%
Other provisions 16.281 6.987 9.294 133,0%
Total provisions for risks and charges 52.339 58.178 (5.839) (10,0)%

Below is the breakdown of the provision for risks and charges at 31 December 2024 by type of dispute compared
with the amounts for the end of the prior year.

Provisions for credit risk related to commitments and financial guarantees granted

At 31 December 2024, this item amounts to 5,2 million Euro, reflecting the impairment losses on irrevocable
commitments to disburse funds and financial guarantees granted by the Group
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Provisions on other commitments and guarantees given
At 31 December 2024, this item has a balance of 337 thousand Euro.

Provisions for pensions

The item includes the internal provision related to the post-retirement medical plan in favour of certain employees
of the Banca Ifis Group, introduced in 2023: this is a defined benefit plan that provides for healthcare and other
benefits to employees, even after retirement. The Group is responsible for the costs and risks associated with the
provision of such benefits.

With reference to this fund, as a supplementary defined-benefit pension fund, the determination of the actuarial
values required by the application of IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" is carried out using the "Project Unit Credit
Method". The liability is recognised in the balance sheet net of any plan assets, and actuarial gains and losses
calculated in the plan valuation process are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and, therefore,
in equity.

At 31 December 2024, this fund amounts to 231 thousand Euro, an increase of 35 thousand Euro compared to the
balance at 31 December 2023.

Legal and tax disputes

At 31 December 2024, provisions are entered for legal and tax disputes for a total of 28,3 million Euro, a reduction
on the 43,0 million Euro recorded at 31 December 2023. The 14,7 million Euro decrease is mainly attributable to
releases related to disputes related to the former Aigis Banca (for 5,8 million Euro), to the positive resolution of a
dispute related to the former Interbanca (for 3,3 million Euro), and to net releases attributable to the subsidiary Ifis
Npl Investing for 2,2 million Euro. During the course of the year, 99 lawsuits were closed, whose provision set aside
at the beginning of the year amounted to 15,1 million Euro, and 87 new lawsuits were opened, whose provision for
risks and charges as at 31 December 2024 amounted to 3,9 million Euro.

Personnel expenses

At 31 December 2024, provisions are entered for staff for 1,9 million Euro (2,6 million Euro at 31 December 2023)
of which 1,6 million Euro relating to the Solidarity Fund.

Other provisions for risks and charges

At 31 December 2024, there are "Other provisions" of 16,3 million Euro, up from the figure at 31 December 2023
(+10,0 million Euro), mainly as a result of allocations made to cover risks related to outstanding disputes over tax
credits for Super Ecobonus and other building tax bonuses, in respect of which the provision made at 31 December
2024 is 7,5 million Euro. The item also includes 3,4 million Euro for Supplementary Customer Indemnity in
connection with the Leasing Area's operations, 3,1 million Euro for the provision for risks linked to assignments
and 0,4 million Euro for the provision for complaints.
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CERTIFIED

Consolidated equity

Consolidated equity at 31 December 2024 totals 1.748,1 million Euro, up 3,2% on the 1.693,7 million Euro booked
at end 2023. The main changes in consolidated shareholders' equity are summarised in the following tables.

EQUITY: BREAKDOWN AMOUNTS CHANGE
(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023

ABSOLUTE %
Share capital 53.811 53.811 - 0,0%
Share premiums 85.391 84.108 1.283 1,5%
Valuation reserves: (28.144) (39.215) 11.071 (28,2)%
- securities (23.150) (33.359) 10.209 (30,6)%
;ntije;‘imnsg}genefit plans (e.g. severance 574 200 284 97,9%
- Exchange differences (5.437) (6.146) 709 (11,5)%
edang o ot st o o s -
Reserves 1.543.729 1.505.424 38.305 2,5%
Interim dividends (-) (63.084) (62.962) (122) 0,2%
Treasury shares (-) (20.971) (21.817) 846 (3,9)%
iEn(a[:ir‘:ayS?;tributable to non-controlling 15.836 14.240 1.596 11.2%
Net profit attributable to the Parent Company 161.578 160.110 1.468 0,9%
Consolidated equity 1.748.146 1.693.699 54.447 3,2%

CONSOLIDATED EQUITY: CHANGES (in thousands of Euro)

Consolidated equity at 31.12.2023 1.693.699
Increases: 166.357
Profit for the year attributable to the Parent Company 161.578
Sale/assignment of treasury shares 1.283
Change in valuation reserve 993
- defined benefit plans (e.g. severance indemnity) 284
- exchange differences 709
Stock options 155
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 1.596
Other changes 752
Decreases: 111.910
Dividends distributed 110.362
- of which dividend balance on 2023 profit 47.278
- of which interim dividend on 2024 profit 63.084
Change in valuation reserve 1.548
- securities (net of realisations) 1.395
- change in valuation reserve for the hedging of equity securities at fair value through 153
other comprehensive income (net of realisations)
Consolidated equity at 31.12.2024 1.748.146

With reference to the extraordinary tax on the "extra-profits" of the banks under Italian Law No. 136/2023, it should
be noted that the corresponding allocations to reserves proposed by the directors to the relevant shareholders'
meetings in 2024 have been approved by them and amount to 23.905.112 Euro for Banca Ifis (resolution dated 18
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April 2024) and 3.252.404 Euro for Banca Credifarma (resolution dated 10 April 2024). Finally, it should be noted
that the provision of the last part of paragraph 5-bis of Italian Law No. 136/2023 determines an obligation to be
considered new and autonomous and consisting in the maintenance of the non-distributable restriction on the
reserve recorded by each bank in their respective separate financial statements. In this regard, the directors
currently confirm their intention not to proceed with any distribution of the reserves thus constituted.

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AND THE NET RESULT OF THE

PARENT COMPANY WITH THE CONSOLIDATED DATA OF WHICH: PROFIT (LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT COMPANY (in thousand Euro) EQUITY FOR THE YEAR
Balances of the Parent company Banca Ifis 1.394.367 139.303
([:)(i)f;:;ﬁir:jcaiec;mpared to the carrying amounts of the companies 354.140 176.450
- Ifis Finance Sp z o.o0. 23.119 6.859
- Ifis Finance I.F.N. S.A. (244) 1.583
- Ifis Rental Services 69.663 14.486
- Cap.ltal.Fin. - 1.443
- Banca Credifarma 74.557 18.0017
- Ifis Npl Investing 166.082 160.209
- Ifis Npl Servicing 20.963 (26.131)
Elimination of intra-group dividends - (82.000)
Other consolidation entries (361) (72.175)
Consolidated balances attributable to the Parent company 1.748.146 161.578
Own funds and capital adequacy ratios
OWN FUNDS AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024( 31.12.2023@

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital 1.583.801 1.544.497
Tier 1 capital 1.584.703 1.545.424
Total Own Funds 1.781.416 1.812.324
Total RWAs 9.836.093 10.390.002
CET1 Ratio 16,10% 14,87%
Tier 1 Ratio 16,11% 14,87%
Total Capital Ratio 18,11% 17,44%

(1) CET1, Tier 1 and Total Capital include the profits accrued by the Banking Group at 31 December 2024, net of the related
dividend, including the portion distributed on an interim basis in compliance with the provisions of Article 2433, paragraph 4 of
the Italian Civil Code.

(2) CET1, Tier 1 and Total Capital include the profits accrued by the Banking Group at 31 December 2023, net of the related
dividend, including the portion distributed on an interim basis in compliance with the provisions of Article 2433, paragraph 4 of
the Italian Civil Code.

Consolidated own funds, risk-weighted assets and prudential ratios at 31 December 2024 were calculated based
on the regulatory changes introduced by Directive No. 2019/878/EU (CRD V) and Regulation (EU) No. 876/2019
(CRR2), which amended the regulatory principles set out in Directive No. 2013/36/EU (CRD 1V) and Regulation (EU)
No. 575/2013 (CRR), as subsequently amended, which were transposed in the Bank of Italy's Circular No. 285.

For the purposes of calculating capital requirements at 31 December 2024, in continuity with what has been done
since 30 June 2020, the Banca Ifis Group has applied the temporary support provisions still in force at this
reporting date, as set out in EU Regulation No. 873/2020 (the "quick-fix").

New developments in 2024 include the application of the temporary treatment of unrealised gains and losses
measured at fair value for exposures to central governments classified in the category “financial assets at fair
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value through other comprehensive income” (or “FVOCI”), reintroduced by EU Regulation No. 1623/2024 as an
amendment to Article 468 of the CRR.

Innovations for the end of 2024 include the activation by the Bank of Italy of the capital buffer against systemic
risk. As at 31 December 2024, the reserve to be attained constitutes 0,5% of risk-weighted credit and counterparty
risk exposures to residents of Italy. The target rate of 1,0% is to be reached by 30 June 2025.

EU Regulation No. 873/2020, relative to the transitional provisions aimed at attenuating the impact of the
introduction of IFRS 9 on Own funds - defines for entities the possibility of including in their CET1 a portion of the
accruals gained for expected credit losses, through different operating methods of the transitional period of
reference (1 January 2018 - 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 - 31 December 2024).

Please note that, at the time, Banca Ifis had already informed the Bank of Italy of its decision to apply the
transitional arrangements for the entire period.

The inclusion in CET1 takes place as for last year, gradually and by applying the following factors:

TEMPORARY TREATMENT IFRS 9 2018-2019 TEMPORARY TREATMENT IFRS 9 2020-2024

0,70 from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 1,00 from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
0,50 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 1,00 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
0,25 from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 0,75 from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
0,00 from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 0,50 from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
0,00 from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 0,25 from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2024, taking into account the transitional treatment adopted to mitigate the impacts of IFRS 9 on
CET1, Own funds amount to 1.781,4 million Euro, recording a negative change of 30,9 million Euro compared to
31 December 2023. This change is mainly attributable to the following components:

e inclusion of the profit accrued at 31 December 2024 of 161,6 million Euro, net of the assumed dividend of
111,5 million Euro including the portion distributed on account; the positive change amounts to 50,1
million Euro;

e lower deduction of deferred tax assets of 4,9 million Euro;

e positive change in other reserves in the amount of 3 million Euro;

e the application of the transitional filter introduced to mitigate the impact of the FTA of IFRS 9 (Art. 473-bis
CRR), which determines a negative change of 19,9 million Euro, partially offset by the introduction of the
filter on the OCI reserve on government securities in the positive amount of 15,9 million Euro. The total
negative change comes to 4,0 million Euro;

e higher deduction from the CET1, deriving from the increase in receivables within the scope of what is
termed “Calendar provisioning”, for 14,8 million Euro;

e thereduced eligibility for Tier 2 capital of the subordinated loan with a maturity of less than 5 years, mainly
due to the joint effect of the application of the amortisation under Article 64 of the CRR and the deduction
of the repurchase obligation authorised by the Bank of Italy, which has entailed a total reduction of 70,2
million Euro.

The negative change in shareholders' equity due to the aforementioned phenomena was mitigated by a reduction
in risk-weighted assets (RWA) of 553,9 million Euro, as described below.
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Here below is the breakdown by Segment of risk-weighted assets (RWA).

COMMERCIAL & CORPORATE BANKING SEGMENT

GOVERNANCE
RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS: TOTAL Fwhich: & SERVICES CONS
BREAKDOWN COMMERCIAL  of which: of which: il NPL SEGMENT | AND NON- :
(in thousands of Euro) % CORPORATE FACTORING  LEASING %?q’:‘;gmf CORE  |GROUPTOTAL
BANKING AREA AREA T SEGMENT
SEGMENT
RWA for credit risk 5.769.725 | 2.729.714 | 1.200.451 | 1.839.560 | 1.733.692 | 1.171.961 |8.675.378
RWA for market risk X X X X X X 39.749
RWA for operational risk (basic X X X X X X 1.038.257
indicator approach)
RWA for cred.lt valuation X X X X X X 82.715
adjustment risk
Total RWAs X X X X X X 9.836.093

At 31 December 2024, taking into account the transitional treatment adopted to mitigate the impact of IFRS 9, risk-
weighted assets (RWAs) amount to 9.836,1 million Euro, a decrease of 550,2 million Euro compared to December
2023. Specifically, please note:

e areduction in credit risk of 574,2 million Euro mainly attributable to the following changes:

- reduction of 89 million Euro recorded on the corporate and retail exposure class, attributable to
the recovery of information assets useful for the application of preferential risk weights;

— a reduction of 222,6 million Euro related to the exposure class Institutions, mainly due to the
decrease in repurchase agreements and securities transactions in the first half of 2024 and,
starting in the third quarter of 2024, to the introduction of the credit ratings of the agency (ECAI)
Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited;

— areduction of 234,7 million Euro in the “Exposures in default” portfolio, the effect of which is due
1o a decrease in volumes in the Npl Segment (-130 million Euro);

- net changes in the other exposure classes, the effect of which amounts to a total decrease of 27,7
million Euro;

e anincrease in market risk and Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) components, totalling 9,9 million Euro,
mainly due to an increase in derivative transactions;
e anincrease in operational risk of 10,3 million Euro, due to the improvement of the relevant indicator.

Following the above-described dynamics, at 31 December 2024, the CET1 ratio stands at 16,10%, up 123 basis
points from 31 December 2023, while the Total Capital ratio stands at 18,11%, up 67 basis points compared with
31 December 2023.

At 31 December 2024, not considering the filter related to the IFRS 9 transitional regime nor taking into account
the prudential filter for exposures to central governments classified in the FVOCI category, Fully Loaded Own
Funds amount to 1.759,3 million Euro and consequently the RWA when fully applied, come to 9.836,1 million Euro.
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OWN FUNDS AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS WITHOUT AMOUNTS
IFRS 9 TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.20240 31.12.2023®
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital 1.561.703 1.518.451
Tier 1 capital 1.562.605 1.519.378
Total Own Funds 1.759.318 1.786.278
Total RWAs 9.836.093 10.386.270
CET1 Ratio 15,88% 14,62%
Tier 1 Ratio 15,89% 14,63%
Total Capital Ratio 17,89% 17,20%

(1) CET1, Tier 1 and Total Own Funds (Total Capital) at 31 December 2024 include the profits generated by the Banking Group at
that date, net of the related dividend, including the portion distributed on an interim basis in compliance with the provisions of
Article 2433, paragraph 4 of the Italian Civil Code.

(2) CET1, Tier 1 and Total Own Funds (Total Capital) at 31 December 2023 include the profits generated by the Banking Group at
that date, net of the related dividend, including the portion distributed on an interim basis in compliance with the provisions of
Article 2433, paragraph 4 of the Italian Civil Code.

For the sake of comparison, it should be noted that until 31 December 2024, the Banca Ifis Group, at the
consolidated level, is required to comply with the following capital requirements, as part of the Prudential Review

and Evaluation Process (SREP):

e CET1 Ratio of 8,44%, with a required minimum of 5,50%;
e Tier 1 Ratio of 10,34%, with a required minimum of 7,40%;
e Total Capital Ratio of 12,74%, with a required minimum of 9,80%.

In order to ensure a level of capital that can absorb any losses arising from stress scenarios, as referred to in
Article 104 ter of EU Directive 36/2013, the Bank of Italy has also set the following capital levels (summarised in
the table below) for the Banca Ifis Group, to which the specific countercyclical coefficient is added:

e CET1 Ratio of 9,44%, consisting of an OCR CET1 ratio of 8,44% and a target component (Pillar 2 Guidance)
of 1,00%;

e Tier 1 Ratio of 11,34%, consisting of an OCR Tier 1 Ratio of 10,34% and a target component of 1,00%;

e Total Capital Ratio of 13,74%, consisting of an OCR Total Capital Ratio of 12,74% and a target component
of 1,00%.

the Bank of Italy has decided to apply to all banks authorised in Italy a SyRB (Systemic Risk Buffer) equal to 1,00%
of RWA for credit and counterparty risk to Italian residents’ (the basis of calculation, therefore, is not the overall
risk exposure, as for the capital conservation reserve or the countercyclical buffer). The target rate of 1,00% is to
be achieved gradually by building up a reserve of 0,5% of material exposures by 31 December 2024 and the
remaining 0,5% by 30 June 2025. The SyRB must be applied at the consolidated level for groups and at the
individual level for non-group banks.

" The requirement must be calculated on the sum of exposures to residents of Italy in rows 170, column 90 of Corep Table C09.017
and 150, column 125 of Corep Table C09.02.
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Below is a summary table of the requirements in force.

. . Pillar 2
Overall Capital Requirement (OCR) 2024

Combined requirement

Art. 92 OCR OCR and
REP TSCR . P2
CRR e SC R Countercyclical Systemic Ratio J P2G
ccm .
buffer risk
CET1 4,50% 1,00% 5,50% 2,50% 0,04% 0,40% 8,44% 1,00% 9,44%
Tier 1 6,00% 1,40% 7,40% 2,50% 0,04% 0,40% 10,34% 1,00% 11,34%
Total Capital 8,00% 1,80% 9,80% 2,50% 0,04% 0,40% 12,74% 1,00% 13,74%

(1) RCC: capital conservation buffer.
At 31 December 2024, the Banca Ifis Group easily met the above-specified requirements.
Procedure for determining the minimum requirement for liabilities subject to bail-in

The minimum own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) requirements communicated by the Bank of Italy to the
Parent Company Banca Ifis and its subsidiary Banca Credifarma are shown in the table below.

MREL requirement

Banca Ifis Banca Credifarma
12,74% O of the Total Risk Exposure Amount (TREA) ‘ 8% of the Total Risk Exposure Amount (TREA)
4,47% of Leverage Ratio Exposure ‘ 3% of Leverage Ratio Exposure

(1) Alternatively, the MREL can be calculated by not deducting the combined buffer requirement from the numerator and
calculating the floor by adding the following requirements: regulatory requirement under Art. 92, paragraph 1, letter c) Reg.
575/2013, amounting to 8%, SREP add-on requirement of 1,8%, and an add-on double the combined capital buffer requirement of
5,87% as of the reporting date. The minimum threshold added together is 15,67 %.

At 31 December 2024, following the monitoring process, both indicators were easily met.

Group liquidity position and coefficients

During 2024, the Group continued its strategy of differentiating between distribution channels, in order to ensure
a better balance with respect to retail funding. The Group has liquidity at 31 December 2024 (in reserves and free
assets that can be financed in the ECB) such as to enable it to easily respect the LCR and NSFR limits (with indexes
more than of 700% and 100% respectively).
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Reclassified income statements items

In relation to the acquisition of Revalea S.p.A. finalised on 31 October 2023 and its entry into the scope of
consolidation (initially as a standalone company and thereafter as an incorporated company following the merger
by incorporation of Revalea into Ifis Npl Investing in 2024), the income statement figures for FY 2024 may not be
fully comparable with those of the previous year. However, it should be noted that in the comments to the individual
items, the contribution of the company acquired is presented, where relevant, considering that it impacts the 2023
data for only 2 months (November and December) while for the 2024 data it is full (12 months).

For more details on this merger, refer to Part G "Business combinations" of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Formation of net banking income

Net banking income amounts to 699,2 million Euro, essentially in line with the figure of 704,6 million Euro as at 31
December 2023, thanks to the positive contribution of the other components of net banking income.

The main components of net banking income and their changes compared to the previous year are presented

below.
CHANGE

FORMATION OF NET BANKING INCOME YEAR
(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023

ABSOLUTE %
Net interest income 532.505 566.197 (33.692) (6,0)%
Net commission income 91.775 98.221 (6.446) (6,6)%
Other components of net banking income 74.872 40.198 34.674 86,3%
Net banking income 699.152 704.616 (5.464) (0,8)%

Net interest income amounts to 532,5 million Euro, down from the figure at 31 December 2023, which stood at
566,2 million Euro, as the positive contributions of the Commercial & Corporate Banking Segment (+6,6 million
Euro) were substantially offset by the stability of the Npl Segment and the reduction in net interest income from
the Governance & Services and Non-Core Segment (-39,2 million Euro), which suffers both the physiological lesser
contribution of a portfolio in run-off (-11,4 million Euro) and the higher cost of funding (-27,8 million Euro), linked
to the redefinition of funding, driven by the redemption of the TLTRO facilities and their replacement with more
onerous forms of funding.

Net commissions amount to 91,8 million Euro, a decrease of 6,4 million Euro compared to the figure at 31
December 2023, as the positive contribution of the Corporate Banking segment (+3,1 million Euro) of the Corporate
Banking & Lending Area was more than offset by the lower contribution of the Governance & Services and Non-
Core Segment (-1,3 million Euro), following the increase in commissions payable for retail funding, as well as the
commissions paid by Revalea (acquired in October 2023 and merged into Ifis Npl Investing in 2024) to a third-
party servicer. In particular:

e commission income, totalling 111,6 million Euro, in line with 31 December 2023, primarily refers to
factoring commissions on the turnover generated by individual customers (with or without recourse, in a
flat or monthly scheme), arrangement fees for structured finance transactions, leases, third-party
servicing, as well as from other fees usually charged to customers for services;

e Commission expense is 19,8 million Euro, up 5,7 million Euro compared with the figure at 31 December
2023, in connection with the fees incurred as a result of the servicing agreements stipulated by the former
Revalea, and largely refer to fees paid to banks and financial intermediaries such as management fees,
fees paid to third parties for the distribution of leasing products, as well as brokerage operations carried
out by approved banks and other credit brokers.

The other components of net banking income are 74,9 million Euro at 31 December 2024, up by 34,7 million Euro
compared with the end of FY 2023. Below are details of the components:
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e net gains from the sale/repurchase of financial assets and liabilities of 41,3 million Euro (+25,1 million
Euro compared to net gains of 16,2 million Euro at 31 December 2023), mainly comprising 25,1 million
Euro related to securities transactions in the proprietary portfolio mainly for the disposals of debt
securities (vs 4,8 million Euro recorded in FY 2023), of which 12,3 million Euro related to bank debt
securities and 12,8 million Euro relative to government securities and 16,1 million Euro from the disposals
of loans in the Npl Segment (10,4 million Euro at 31 December 2023);

e net positive result of other financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss for
24,1 million Euro (up 10,9 million Euro compared with the figure at 31 December 2023), primarily
represented by the net positive change in FY 2024 fair value of equity securities for 16,9 million Euro (which
includes the capital gain on the sale for 6,2 million Euro of participating financial instruments obtained
from a restructuring operation of the debt of a position in the Non-Core unit), up 10,3 million Euro
compared with 31 December 2023, and UCITS fund units for 6,6 million Euro (+1,3 million Euro compared
with 31 December 2023);

o dividends generated by shares in the Group's own portfolio in the amount of 12,5 million Euro (-3,6 million
Euro compared to the figure for FY 2023);

e negative net result from trading activities of 1,9 million Euro as an improvement of 3,4 million Euro
compared to the negative net result of 5,3 million Euro in FY 2023, mainly due to the better performance
of trading derivatives (+2,4 million Euro compared to the balance at 31 December 2023);

e negative net result from hedging activities of 1,1 million Euro, a deterioration from the negative figure of
0,1 million Euro at 31 December 2023, which, however, is not an entirely comparable figure as hedging
activities had only been in place since June 2023.

Formation of net profit (loss) from financial activities

The Group's net profit from financial activities totals 661,5 million Euro, an increase compared to 652,2 million
Euro at 31 December 2023 (+1,4%).

FORMATION OF NET PROFIT (LOSS) _ CHANGE
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023 ABSOLUTE
Net banking income 699.152 704.616 (5.464) (0,8)%
Net credit risk losses/reversals (37.670) (52.407) 14.737 (28,1)%
Net profit (loss) from financial activities 661.482 652.209 9.273 1,4%

Net credit risk losses total 37,7 million Euro at 31 December 2024, an improvement of 14,7 million Euro on the 52,4
million Euro at 31 December 2023.

Net adjustments in 2024 are influenced, amongst other aspects, by the full use of prudential adjustments
(management overlay) booked during previous year resulting from "expert-based" assessments following the
actual classification among impaired exposures of specifically identified positions. In addition, management
overlays set aside during previous years to hedge multiple risk factors (particularly related to inflationary,
geopolitical and energy supply risks) and to hedge against adverse macroeconomic expectations, were utilised
against the deteriorating dynamics of the underlying portfolio clusters.

Further details of the different trends connected with the reclassified credit cost are given in the section
"Contribution of operating Segments to Group results” of this Directors’ Report on the Group.
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Formation of net profit for the year is summarised in the table below.
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FORMATION OF NET PROFIT YEAR CHANGE
(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023 ABSOLUTE %

Net profit (loss) from financial activities 661.482 652.209 9.273 1,4%
Operating costs (406.916) (394.648) (12.268) 3,1%
Charges related to the banking system (8.136) (11.193) 3.057 (27,3)%
Net allocations to provisions for risks and (478) (6.878) 6.400 (93.1)%
charges
Non-recurring expenses and income (610) (2.919) 2.309 (79,1)%
Gains (losses) on disposal of investments - 986 (986) (100,0)%
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations 245.342 237.557 7.785 3,3%
Incomg taxes for the year relating to current (82.168) (75.641) (6.527) 8,6%
operations
Profit (loss) for the year 163.174 161.916 1.258 0,8%
(Profit) !osg for the year attributable to non- (1.596) (1.806) 210 (11,6)%
controlling interests
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the 161.578 160.110 1.468 0,9%
Parent Company

Operating costs total 406,9 million Euro, showing an increase on 31 December 2023 (+3,1%).

OPERATING COSTS
(in thousands of Euro)

YEAR CHANGE

2024 2023 ABSOLUTE %
Administrative expenses: 417.390 402.011 15.379 3,8%
a) personnel expenses 169.852 163.802 6.050 3,7%
b) other administrative expenses 247.538 238.209 9.329 3,9%
Other operating income/expenses (33.750) (25.069) (8.681) 34,6%
Operating costs 406.916 394.648 12.268 31%

Personnel expenses, amounting to 169,9 million Euro, record an increase of 3,7%, which can be attributed on the
one hand to the growth in the number of resources in force at the reference date (the number of Group employees
at 31 December 2024 is 2.013, up 3,8% compared to 1.940 resources at 31 December 2023) and on the other hand
to the effects of the renewed National Collective Bargaining Agreement (NCBA).

Other administrative expenses at 31 December 2024 are 247,5 million Euro, up 9,3 million Euro on 31 December
2023. This change is mainly related to the sub-items "Legal and Consulting" and "Outsourcing Services" connected
to the increase in the contribution of the former Revalea (merged into Ifis Npl Investing) for the year 2024 as last
year it became part of the Group's scope as at 31 October 2023.
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The performance of this item is detailed in the table below.

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES YEAR CHANGE

(in thousands of Euro) 2024 2023 ABSOLUTE %
Expenses for professional services 134.732 122.516 12.215 10,0%
Legal and consulting services 92.898 87.106 5.792 6,6%
Fees to auditing firms 1.173 1.016 157 15,5%
Outsourced services 40.660 34.394 6.266 18,2%
Direct and indirect taxes 37.448 40.141 (2.693) 6,7)%
E:rp‘:ei:::s for purchasing goods and other 75.359 75.552 (193) (0,3)%
Software assistance and hire 22.556 19.074 3.482 18,3%
Advertising and inserts 12.176 14.195 (2.019) (14,2)%
Customer information expenses 8.019 12.404 (4.385) (354)%
Property expenses 7.966 7.495 471 6,3%
Business travel and transfers 5.555 4204 1.351 32,1%
Postage and archiving of documents 3.597 3.733 (136) (3,6)%
Car fleet management and maintenance 3.556 3.247 309 9,5%
Telephone and data transmission expenses 3.342 3.160 182 5,8%
Securitisation costs 1.808 1.169 639 54,7%
Other sundry expenses 6.785 6.871 (86) (1,3)%
Total other administrative expenses 247.538 238.209 9.329 3,9%

The sub-item “Expenses for professional services” is 134,7 million Euro at 31 December 2024, up by 12,2 million
Euro compared with the figure at 31 December 2023 (+10,0%) and mainly consists of:

e costs for “Legal and consulting services”, which come to 92,9 million Euro in FY 2024, up 6,6% on the figure
recorded for last year;

e costs for "Outsourced services", which amount to 40,7 million Euro at 31 December 2024, record an
increase of 6,3 million Euro on the figure recorded for the previous year. The change is mainly attributable
to the higher cost of Ifis Npl Investing's recovery activities (+10,3 million Euro), whose comparative figure
for 2023 had benefited from the settlement of the effects of the change in the commission system and
the contribution, limited to just two months, of the costs associated with the former Revalea (which joined
the Group in October 2023).

“Direct and indirect taxes” come to 37,4 million Euro, a reduction on the figure at 31 December 2023, which was
40,1 million Euro (-6,7%). The item mainly consists of the registration tax incurred for the judicial recovery of
receivables belonging to non-performing loans for an amount of 22,5 million Euro at 31 December 2024 (26,1
million Euro at the end of the previous year), and also includes costs for stamp duty for 13,7 million Euro (in line
with the 31 December 2023 figure), the recharging of which to customers is included in the item "Other operating
income".

The sub-item “Expenses for purchasing goods and other services” amounts to 75,4 million Euro, in line with 31
December 2023. The factors that mainly influence the result are:

e costs for “Software assistance and hire”, which amount to 22,6 million Euro and show an increase (+18,3%(
compared with the figure at 31 December 2023;

e expenses for “Advertising and inserts”, which increase from 14,2 million Euro to 12,2 million Euro at
December 2024 (-2,0 million Euro compared with 31 December 2023);
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e "Customer information expenses”, which amount to 8,0 million Euro at 31 December 2024 and decrease
by 4,4 million Euro compared to 31 December 2023, mainly due to lower costs incurred by the subsidiary
Ifis Npl Investing, mainly due to the related Npl portfolio purchase timing;

e "Property expenses", which amount to 8,0 million Euro and increase by 6,3% compared to December 2023
(+0,5 million Euro), mainly as a result of higher supervision costs.

Net adjustments to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 31 December 2024 amount to 12,2
million Euro and 11,1 million Euro, respectively, and increase by 25,7% and 38,5%, respectively, compared to the
figures for the previous year, as a result of the investments in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
made by the Banca Ifis Group during 2024 (for further details, refer to the description above in the section "Group
reclassified financial and income results" under the heading 'Intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment").

Other net operating income, amounting to 33,8 million Euro as at 31 December 2024, increase by 8,7 million Euro
(+34,6%) compared to the figure as at 31 December 2023, also as a result of expense recoveries from the former
Revalea (merged into Ifis Npl Investing), which became part of the Group's perimeter in October 2023. The item
refers mainly to revenue from the recovery of expenses charged to third parties. The relevant cost component is
included in other administrative expenses, namely under legal expenses and indirect taxes, as well as recoveries
of expenses associated with leasing operations.

As a result of the dynamics outlined above, operating costs in December 2024 amount to 406,9 million Euro, up
from the balance of 394,6 million Euro in December 2023.

At 31 December 2024, the item “Charges related to the banking system” amounts to 8,1 million Euro and
represents the cost of the annual contribution to the Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), of which 7,9 million
Euro relates to the Parent Company Banca Ifis and the remaining 0,2 million Euro to the subsidiary Banca
Credifarma. The comparative balance at 31 December 2023, amounting to 11,2 million Euro, represents the cost
of the annual contribution made to the Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD) and the contribution under the
accumulation plan of the Single Resolution Fund (SRF) made in FY 2023. As far as the SRF is concerned, nothing
was required in terms of contributions at 31 December 2024, the savings plan target having been reached in 2023.

Net allocations to provisions for risks and charges at 31 December 2024 amount to 0,5 million Euro, while the
balance at 31 December 2023 recorded net allocations to provisions made of 6,9 million Euro. FY 2024
performance was characterised by releases to be attributable to the Parent Company Banca Ifis for 9,17 million
Euro relating to disputes connected to the former Aigis Banca (for 5,8 million Euro) and to the settlement of a
dispute relating to the former Interbanca (for 3,3 million Euro), which were more than offset by provisions totalling
9,6 million Euro, of which 7,5 million Euro to cover risks related to outstanding disputes on tax credits for
superbonus and other building tax bonuses (recognised in the balance sheet item "Other assets") and 1,6 million
Euro mainly related to guarantees for indemnities in connection with a transaction involving the sale of a
shareholding.

The item "Non-recurring expenses and income" shows a balance as at 31 December 2024 of 610 thousand Euro
and refers to non-recurring operating costs pertaining to FY 2024 connected to the integration of Revalea within
the Banca Ifis Group, including those relating to its merger by incorporation into Ifis Npl Investing which took place
in 2024 (for more details see "Part G - Business combinations" of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements). These costs are down from the comparative figure of 2,9 million Euro at 31 December 2023, which
included ICT costs prior to the acquisition and costs directly linked to the operation then completed in October
2023.

Pre-tax profit from continuing operations amounts to 245,3 million Euro, up 3,3% compared to 31 December 2023.

Income tax at 31 December 2024 comes to 82,2 million Euro and the tax rate is 33,49%, up from the figure of
31,84% recorded at 31 December 2023 due to the repeal of the aid for economic growth (“ACE”) benefit as of FY
2024.
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The net profit attributable to the Parent company amounts to 161,6 million Euro, up 1,5 million Euro on the 2023
figure.
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Main risks and uncertainties

Taking into account the business carried out and the results achieved, the Group's financial position is
proportionate to its needs. Indeed, the Group's financial policy is aimed at favouring funding stability and
diversification rather than the immediate operating needs.

The main risks and uncertainties originated by the current conditions of the financial markets, deriving both from
international tensions and the geo-political context observed, made even more uncertain by the outcome of the
recent US elections, as of today do not present elements of particular criticality for the Group's financial equilibrium
and in any case are considered such, from a prospective point of view, as not to generate doubts on the Group's
ability to continue operating as a going concern.

Refer to Part E of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on the Banca Ifis Group's
risks typical of the banking sector, as well as to what is set forth in the Directors' Report on the Group in the section
"Business outlook".
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Banca Ifis shares

The share price

The ordinary shares of Banca Ifis S.p.A. are listed on the STAR segment, and the bank is listed on the Ftse ltalia
Mid Cap index. The following table shows the share prices at the end of the year.

Share price at year-end ‘ 21,18 ‘ 15,70 ‘ 13,31 ‘ 17,07 ‘ 9,18

Price/book value

Below is the ratio of the share price at year-end and equity attributable to the Parent Company per share
outstanding.

Share price at year-end 21,18 15,70 13,31 17,07 9,18
Equity attributable to the Parent Company per share 32,95 32,01 30,24 29,85 28,50
Price/book value 0,64 0,49 0,44 0,57 0,32

The situation in terms of price/book value shows a value of less than per unit for all the years reported: in this
regard, it should be noted that this is a structural situation for the Italian context in that the quotations show
significant discounts for all Italian banks even with respect to tangible net worth.

Number of shares outstanding 52.572 52.468 52.433 53.472 53.460
at year end (in thousands)(™

(1) Outstanding shares are net of treasury shares held in the portfolio.

Earnings per share and Price/Earnings

Here below is the earnings per share (EPS), namely the ratio of the profit for the period attributable to the Parent
Company to the weighted average of the ordinary shares outstanding at year-end, net of treasury shares in
portfolio. For more details, please refer to “Section 25 - Earnings per Share” in “Part C - Information on the
Consolidated Income Statement” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Earnings per share and diluted earnings per share mm

Net profit for the year attributable to the Parent Company (in thousands of Euro) 161.578 160.110
Average number of outstanding shares 52.529.787 52.456.037
Average number of shares outstanding for diluted earnings per share purposes 53.383.843 52.567.897
Earnings per share (EPS) 3,08 3,05
Diluted earnings per share (EPS) 3,03 3,05

(1) Outstanding shares are net of treasury shares held in the portfolio.

Payout ratio

The Board of Directors of Banca Ifis will propose to the Shareholders' Meeting the distribution of a balance on the
dividend for FY 2024 of 0,92 Euro (gross of withholding taxes) for each of the Banca Ifis shares issued and
outstanding (and therefore excluding treasury shares held by the Bank). In November 2024, an interim dividend of
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1,20 Euro per share had already been distributed for FY 2024. The total 2024 dividends (interim payment and
balance) thus amount to 2,12 Euro per share, corresponding to a payout ratio of 69,0%.

Net profit attributable to the Parent

161.578 160.110 141.086 100.582 68.804
Company
Parent Company dividends ™ 111.450 110.240 73.418 49.811 25.132
Payout ratio (V) 69,0% 68,9% 52,0% 49,5% 36,5%

(1) The figures for FY 2024 comprise the total of 1,20 Euro per share distributed as an interim dividend in November 2024 and
0,92 Euro per share as a proposal for a final dividend for the FY 2024 prepared by the Board of Directors of Banca Ifis.

Shareholders

The share capital of the Parent company at 31 December 2024 amounts to 53.811.095 Euro and is broken down
into 53.811.095 shares for a nominal amount of 1 Euro each.

Below are Banca Ifis's shareholders that, either directly or indirectly, own equity instruments with voting rights
representing over 3% of Banca Ifis's share capital:

3,5%*

Preve Riccardo

2,3%

Treasury shares

50,5%

La Scogliera S.A.

43,7%

Market

*Through himself for 0,38% and through Preve Costruzioni for 3,16%.

Corporate governance rules

Banca Ifis has adopted the Corporate Governance Code for listed companies. The Bank's Board of Directors has
established the Control and Risk Committee, the Appointments Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The
Board of Directors has also appointed a Supervisory Body with autonomous powers of initiative and control
pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree No. 231/2001.

Internal dealing rules

Banca Ifis regulations on internal dealing are aligned with the relevant EU legislation (EU Regulation No. 596/2014,
the Market Abuse Regulation) and aims to ensure the utmost transparency in the Bank's disclosures to the market.

The “Policy on transactions carried out by Relevant Persons and Persons Closely Related to them in shares, debt
securities and related financial instruments issued by Banca Ifis S.p.A.” (Internal Dealing Policy) regulates:

e the requirements related to identifying the Relevant Persons and the so-called “closely related people”;
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e the management of information relating to transactions exceeding the minimum amount threshold on
units, credit securities or related instruments issued by Banca Ifis, carried out, directly or indirectly, by a
Relevant Person or by a Closely Related Person and subject to notification obligations;

e the handling of closed periods, i.e. those periods during which the Relevant Persons must refrain from
trading in shares or other debt instruments issued by Banca Ifis as well as financial instruments linked to
them.

The Relevant Persons are:

e the members of the Board of Directors;
e the members of the Board of Statutory Auditors;
e managers regarded as “key managers”, i.e:

- Co-General Manager Chief Operating Officer (COO0);

- Co-General Manager Chief Commercial Officer (CCO);

— Head of the Communication, Marketing, Public Affairs & Sustainability Department;
—  Chief of Staff and Chairman's Communication;

—  Chief Financial Officer (CFO);

— Manager charged with preparing the Company’s financial reports;
- Chief Financial Officer (CLO);

— Head of the Npl Department;

- Head of Internal Audit;

- Head of Compliance;

—  Chief Financial Officer (CRO);

— Head of Anti-Money Laundering;

— Director Human Resources;

— General Counsel Manager;

- Head of Investor Relations & Corporate Development;

- CEO of Ifis Npl Servicing S.p.A;;

- General Manager of Ifis Npl Servicing S.p.A,;

- CEO of Banca Credifarma S.p.A.

e any person holding an interest, calculated pursuant to Article 118 of the Issuers' Regulation, equal to at
least 10% of the share capital of Banca Ifis, represented by shares with voting rights as well as another
individual who controls the Bank;

e additional persons identified as such, even for limited periods of time, by specific resolution of the Board
of Directors of Banca Ifis.

Persons closely related to Relevant Persons are also subject to the Internal Dealing Policy.

This document is available on Banca Ifis's website, www.bancaifis.it, in the "Corporate Governance" Section,
“Internal Dealing” sub-section.

Rules for the handling of inside information

Internal procedures for handling inside information and the list of individuals who have access to inside
information are aligned with the Market Abuse Regulation.

In compliance with Article 115-bis of Italian Legislative Decree No. 58/1998, Banca Ifis has created a list of
individuals who, in performing their professional and work duties or in carrying out their activity, have access to
inside information (the list of insiders). Banca Ifis constantly updates this list.

In addition, the Group has adopted the “Group policy for the handling of inside information” in order to:

e prevent individuals who, based on their duties, have no reason to know such information from accessing
it;
e identify the individuals who have access to such information at all times.
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This policy also describes the process of handling inside information of third-party issuers, also with reference to
the management of passive market surveys.
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Significant events during the year

The Banca Ifis Group transparently and promptly discloses information to the market, constantly publishing
information on significant events through press releases. Please visit the Media section of the institutional website
www.bancaifis.it to view all press releases.

Below is a summary of the most significant events that occurred during the year.

SREP conclusion on capital requirements: Banca Ifis well above Bank of Italy guidelines

On 29 January 2024, the Banca Ifis Group received notice from the Bank of Italy of the conclusion of the periodic
prudential review process ("SREP decision") conducted on the Group.

The Bank of ltaly has identified the following capital requirements (equal to the sum of the Overall Capital
Requirement and Pillar 2 Guidance) for 2024 on a consolidated basis:

e CET1 Ratio of 9,00%;
e Tier 1 Ratio of 10,90%;
e Total Capital Ratio of 13,30%.

The above capital requirements include the Target component of the Pillar 2 Guidance of 1,00%.

Issue of a 400 million Euro bond maturing in 5 years

On 20 February 2024, Banca Ifis completed the placement of a Senior Preferred Unsecured bond issue under its
EMTN programme for an amount of 400 million Euro. The transaction was intended for institutional investors.

Specifically, the issue has a maturity of five years, with settlement date of 27 February 2024. The reoffer price is
99,362, for a return at maturity of 5,65% and a coupon that is payable annually in the amount of 5,50%. The bond
was listed on Euronext Milan and has an expected rating of BB+ by Fitch and Baa3 by Moody's.

The bond placement is part of the EMTN funding programme envisaged in the Group's Business Plan for the three-
year period 2022-2024, which estimates 2,5 billion Euro of new placements.

The Shareholders' Meeting has approved the 2023 Financial Statements and the distribution of
a dividend of 0,90 Euro per share for the year

The Shareholders’ Meeting of Banca Ifis S.p.A., which met on 18 April 2024 in single call, chaired by Ernesto
Firstenberg Fassio in accordance with the applicable provisions, and hence in the manner set out in Art. 106 of
Decree-Law No. 18 of 17 March 2020, approved, in an ordinary session:

e the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2023;

e the allocation of net profit, taking into account the exercise of the capitalisation option provided for by
Article 26, paragraph 5-bis of Decree Law No. 104/2023 (converted with amendments by Law No. 136 of
9 October 2023), to the non-distributable reserve in the amount of 23.905.112 Euro (amount equal to two
and a half times the tax calculated pursuant to the aforementioned Article 26 of Decree Law No.
104/2023);

e the distribution of a balance on the dividend for FY 2023 of 0,90 Euro, gross of withholding taxes, for each
of the Banca Ifis shares issued and outstanding. This 2023 dividend balance was paid with ex-dividend
date 20 May 2024, record date of 21 May 2024 and payment date of 22 May 2024,

e Section | of the document “Report on Remuneration Policy and Remuneration Paid” prepared in
accordance with Art. 123-ter of Legislative Decree No. 58/1998. The Shareholders’ Meeting also resolved
in favour of Section Il of the aforementioned document relating to the implementation of remuneration
policies during FY 2023;

e the proposal by the majority shareholder La Scogliera S.A. to appoint Nicola Borri as a new independent
director, to replace the resigning director Sebastien Egon Firstenberg, who, as honorary chairman,
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continues to participate in corporate and board life under the terms of the Articles of Association. Prof.
Borri will remain in office until the natural expiry of the Board of Directors in office, i.e. until the
Shareholders’ Meeting called to approve the financial statements for FY 2024.

Restructuring of the securitisation “Ifis ABCP Programme” of factoring receivables worth 1,15
billion Euro

On 28 June 2024, Banca Ifis successfully completed the restructuring of the securitisation called “Ifis ABCP
Programme”, worth 1,15 billion Euro involving proprietary factoring receivables. The securitisation was initially
finalised on 13 October 2016 and relates to the assignment, on a revolving basis, of receivables due from private
customers arising from the Group's ordinary factoring activities, acquired both with and without recourse and of
which the assigned debtor has been notified of the assignment.

The restructuring has led Banca Ifis, which assumed the role of Lead-Arranger and Calculation Agent, to improve
the economic conditions of the securitisation and to enlarge the investor base from six to eight institutions. The
banks already involved in the project were joined by Cassa Depositi e Prestiti (CDP), whose commitment aims to
provide new finance to SMEs, and Natixis CIB, the latter also assuming the role of co-arranger.

This restructuring transaction did not have any impact on the Banca Ifis Group's economic and equity position.

1,5 billion Euro TLTRO lines repaid in 2024

With regard to TLTRO funding, it should be noted that during the year, thanks to the Group's solid liquidity position
in reserves and free assets that can be financed by the ECB, we continued with the early repayment, with respect
to the September 2024 maturity date, of the TLTRO Il lines for a further nominal amount of 1.125 million Euro,
also completing well in advance all the managerial actions aimed at the repayment of the remaining nominal
amount of 411,5 million Euro, which took place on 25 September 2024 and brought the amount of TLTRO Il lines
repaid to a nominal amount of 2.036,5 million Euro.

It should be noted that, as early as the end of 2023, the Group put in place the managerial actions preparatory to
the replacement of this funding component through senior bond issues, the increase of retail funding with a multi-
channel strategy and targeted marketing campaigns as well as the restructuring of securitisation transactions on
the Group's portfolios. As a result, these actions effectively changed the Group's funding structure, which at 31
December 2024 consists of 60,4% in amounts due to customers (49,2% at 31 December 2023), 12,4% in debt
securities issued (23,0% at 31 December 2023) and 27,2% in payables due to banks (27,8% at 31 December 2023).

Distribution of a 2024 interim dividend of 63,1 million Euro (1,20 Euro per share)

On 7 November 2024, the Banca Ifis Board of Directors resolved to distribute an interim dividend for 2024 totalling
63.083.736,00 Euro, i.e. equal to 1,20 Euro (gross of withholding taxes) for each of the 52.569.780 Banca Ifis
shares issued and outstanding as of such date (and therefore excluding treasury shares held by the Bank). The
interim dividend 2024 was paid with ex-dividend date 18 November 2024, record date of 19 November and
payment date of 20 November 2024. The report by the Board of Directors and the accounting statement at 30
September 2024 pursuant to Article 2433-bis of the Italian Civil Code, on the basis of which the Board of Directors
of Banca Ifis resolved to distribute the interim dividend and included in the Interim Report as at 30 September
2024 - are made available to the public at the Bank's registered office, as well as on the authorised storage
mechanism and on the Bank's institutional website, www.bancaifis.it, in the “Investor Relations & Corporate
Development" section. Lastly, for the purposes of the distribution of the interim dividend, on 7 November 2024, the
independent auditing firm PricewaterhouseCoopers S.p.A. issued the opinion required by Article 2433-bis of the
Italian Civil Code, which has been made available to shareholders at the Bank's registered office.

Merger by incorporation of Revalea into Ifis Npl Investing

On 11 November 2024, the merger by incorporation of Revalea S.p.A. into Ifis Npl Investing S.p.A. became
effective, with effect for accounting and tax purposes backdated to 1 January 2024. The integration represents
the completion of the project started with the acquisition of Revalea in October 2023, and is part of the initiatives
of the 2022-2024 Business Plan aimed at further simplifying and specialising the organisational structure of the
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Banca Ifis Group and, in particular, that of the Npl Segment. For more details on this merger, refer to Part G
"Business combinations” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Subsequent events

Voluntary takeover and exchange offer for all shares of illimity Bank submitted

On 7 January 2025, the Board of Directors of Banca Ifis approved the promotion of a voluntary takeover and
exchange offer on all shares of illimity Bank. The offer was disclosed to the market on 8 January 2025 by means
of a notice circulated pursuant to Article 102, paragraph 1 of Legislative Decree No. 58/98 (the 'TUF') and Article
37 of the regulations adopted by CONSOB Resolution No. 11971/99 (the 'Issuers' Regulations'). The offer, which
is conditional upon obtaining the relevant regulatory authorisations and the fulfilment of the established
conditions, is aimed at the acquisition by Banca Ifis of 100% ownership of the shares of illimity Bank listed on
Euronext Milan, Euronext STAR Milan Segment. In particular, Banca Ifis has proposed that for each share of illimity
Bank tendered to the offer, a consideration expressing a unit valuation of 3,55 Euro, based on the official price of
Banca Ifis shares on 7 January 2025, will be paid. This consideration is composed of:

e 0,1 newly issued shares of Banca Ifis for each share of illimity Bank and
e acash component of 1,414 Euro.

On 27 January 2025, Banca Ifis filed with Consob the offer document pursuant to Articles 102 and 106, paragraph
4 of the Consolidated Law on Finance concerning the entirety of the ordinary shares of illimity Bank. Furthermore,
Banca Ifis announced that it has submitted to the competent Authorities the applications and/or communications
to obtain the authorisations required under the regulations applicable to the offer, pursuant to and in accordance
with Article 102, paragraph 4, of the TUF and Article 37-ter, paragraph 1, letter b), of the Issuers' Regulations.

If the offer is successful, the transaction, which envisages the subsequent merger by incorporation of illimity Bank
into Banca Ifis, may enable the Banca Ifis Group to accelerate its growth path and consolidate its leadership in the
Italian speciality finance market, expanding its SME customer base, entering new businesses and segments, and
maintaining its leadership in Npls.
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Information on international tensions

This section aims to provide a specific disclosure on the impacts generated by international tensions, above all
with reference to the Middle East and the continuing Russia-Ukraine conflict.

At the Banca Ifis Group level, country risk monitoring is carried out on conflict-affected countries. This continuous
monitoring has revealed a limited number of counterparties present in the areas involved by the current
international tensions, to which modest direct credit exposures correspond. Similarly, no particular critical issues
have been noted with regard to the trade receivables portfolio.

Furthermore, the Risk Management function, in addition to the risk factors usually considered, continues to deem
it reasonable to include the current geopolitical tense situation as an additional risk factor.
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Business outlook

In 2024, Banca Ifis reported a profit attributable to the Parent Company of 162 million Euro, confirming its strong
economic, equity and financial profile. In these three years, Banca Ifis has successfully completed the 2022-2024
Business Plan, exceeding all its financial targets and moving increasingly towards digitalisation and sustainability.
The cumulative profit achieved over the three-year period was 463 million Euro, 12% above the Plan targets.
Shareholder remuneration, through the new dividend policy approved in 2023 and the distribution of constant
dividends, allows for a payout ratio of around 70%. These results were achieved while keeping the Group's solid
capital base intact, with a CET1 of 16,1%, some 100 basis points above the Plan target of 15,1%.

The macroeconomic scenario for FY 2025 is less favourable for the Italian banking sector. Demand for credit from
businesses remains modest and companies have adequate long-term financing in an environment of moderate
economic growth. The Banca Ifis Group remains focused on profitability and in 2024 loan growth was above the
market average with average spreads increasing compared to the previous year.

In 2025, the European Central Bank is expected to further reduce interest rates. In this context, the Group reduced
its sensitivity to interest rate reductions by increasing the duration of its securities portfolio and increased fixed-
rate disbursements, especially in the Leasing Area.

There were some signs of deterioration in asset quality, concentrated in specific sectors. In this context, the Group
increased its coverage of specific exposures. However, the Group's asset quality risk is mitigated by diversification
across sectors and companies, short-term loans and careful collateral management.

The Npl Segment shows more challenging market dynamics, highlighting a limited supply of Npls for purchase
and increased competition on sales processes. Following the acquisition of Revalea in October 2023, Banca Ifis
met the Npl acquisition targets of the 2022-2024 Business Plan and adopted a more selective approach to new
Npl acquisitions, focusing on the recovery of the existing Npl stock.

The Banca Ifis Group closely monitors market risks and opportunities and also expects to offer attractive
remuneration for its shareholders in 2025, assuming no significant deterioration in the macroeconomic and
geopolitical environment.
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Performance of the Group's main companies

The following is a summary of the main equity investments in Group companies with evidence of the most
significant balance sheet, income statement and operating data referring to 31 December 2024.

With regard to the parent company Banca Ifis, reference is made to the '2024 Report and Financial Statements' of
Banca Ifis included in this publication.
Ifis Npl Investing

The 2024 figures also include the contribution of Revalea S.p.A., which was acquired by Mediobanca Group on 31
October 2023 and merged into Ifis Npl Investing during 2024.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATA AMOUNTS CHANGE
(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %

Total assets 1.689.156 1.682.651 6.505 0,4%
Receivables due from customers measured at

amortised cost

1.512.263

1.423.626

88.637

6,2%

Equity

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
(in thousands of Euro)

560.767

548.106

12.661

2,3%

AMOUNTS CHANGE

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Net banking income 116.290 104.257 12.033 11,5%
Net credit risk losses/reversals 130.477 130.949 (472) (0,4)%
Operating costs (132.989) (134.561) 1.572 (1,2)%
Profit (loss) for the year 75.620 66.924 8.696 13,0%

The changes in assets between the end of 2024 and the end of 2023 are mainly due to the contribution of the
former Revalea following the merger.

As far as the income statement figures are concerned, Ifis Npl Investing posted a net profit of 75,6 million Euro as
at 31 December 2024, an increase of 12,9% compared to the figure of 66,9 million Euro as at 31 December 2023,
also due to the contribution of the former Revalea. In particular, growth is driven by net interest banking income,
up 12,0 million Euro (+11,5%) year-on-year, thanks to higher interest income at amortised cost (+14,7 million Euro),
which more than offset increases in the cost of funding and commission expenses (which in 2024 also include,
as a result of the merger, the commissions incurred for the management of the former Revalea's portfolio paid to
a third-party servicer).

Against these trends in net banking income, there was substantial stability in the credit cost and operating costs,
despite the presence of Revalea's contribution in the 2024 figures. The reason stems mainly from the fact that the
2023 operating cost figure included significant non-recurring costs incurred by Ifis Npl Investing for the acquisition
and integration of Revalea, which was merged in 2024. Specifically, these costs amounted to 9,8 million Euro in
2023, compared to 0,5 million Euro for 2024.
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Banca Credifarma

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATA

AMOUNTS CHANGE

(in thousands of Euro) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Total assets 719.482 719.658 (176) 0,0%
Receivables due from customers measured at o
amortised cost 698.870 684.711 14.159 2,1%
Equity 129.154 116.130 13.024 11.2%

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
(in thousands of Euro)

AMOUNTS CHANGE

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ABSOLUTE %
Net banking income 36.734 34.296 2.438 71%
Net credit risk losses/reversals (1.404) 994 (2.398) n.s.
Operating costs (15.593) (14.283) (1.310) 9,2%
Profit (loss) for the year 13.020 14.730 (1.710) (11,6)%

As at 31 December 2024, Banca Credifarma reported a net profit of 13,0 million Euro, compared to 14,7 million
Euro recorded in 2023 (-11,6%), a year in which, however, non-recurring write-backs for the collection of non-
performing loans in the amount of 1,7 million Euro and the capital gain from the sale of a property owned by the
Bank in the amount of 1,0 million Euro were recognised.

Net banking income totals 36,7 million Euro, up 7,1% from 2023, mainly thanks to the contribution made by net
interest income, which increases by 9,2%, coming to 31,1 million Euro. The increase in interest income of 8,6%
compared to 2023, mainly due to the increase in interest on mortgages, offset the parallel increase in interest
expenses, which accrued on deposits from other banks, the Emma securitisation programme and customer
current accounts.

Net credit risk losses on loans amount to 1,4 million Euro as at 31 December 2024 and increase compared to the
previous year's figure, when net write-backs of 1,0 million Euro were recorded, mainly generated by significant
collections of non-performing and probable default positions.

Operating costs amount to 15,6 million Euro, an increase of 9,2% compared to the figure of 14,3 million Euro in
2023, mainly due to higher personnel costs (7,3 million Euro in 2024 compared to 6,7 million Euro in 2023).

As a result of these dynamics at the level of an increase in net banking income, more than offset by the increase
in credit cost and the increase in operating costs, Banca Credifarma's 2024 profit worsens by 1,7 million Euro
compared to the 2023 figure.
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Sustainability Statement

It has always been in the DNA of Banca Ifis to generate value for all stakeholders. This objective is translated into
an integrated approach of sustainability in the Group's strategic and operational framework, according to a double
bottom line approach inspired by the Chair. Thanks to the three-year D.O.E.S. business plan, the Bank's sustainable
transformation was translated into concrete initiatives on all E-S-G dimensions, which enabled it to achieve
important results, which are detailed and described in the Group's Sustainability Statement.

During 2024, the commitments set out in the D.O.E.S. plan were brought to fruition, with an approach aimed at
generating a tangible impact for the benefit of companies, the territory and people, thanks to a comprehensive
plan in line with the UN 2030 Agenda and the 17 Sustainable Development Goals.

Aware that ESG topics can represent important growth opportunities, the Group has integrated them into its
business through financial products and services to support SMEs in their sustainable transition path.
Sustainability is also a prerequisite for our business model with regard to the recovery of impaired loans, in the
knowledge that recovery activities can represent an opportunity for financial re-inclusion. This belief gave rise to
an ambitious project in the Npl sector, which aims to strengthen the concept of 'social banking' by defining
initiatives to ensure a sustainable approach, as described in more detail in the document.

Starting from the experience accumulated over the years through the Consolidated Non-Financial Statement, this
Sustainability Statement responds to the new regulatory requirements launched at a European level in the field of
ESG disclosure, representing not just mere reporting but an opportunity to represent the Group's sustainability
strategy to stakeholders, highlighting actions, metrics and objectives linked to the most relevant sustainability
topics.

With regard to the environment, the Group's commitment to reducing the indirect impacts of its financing activities
continued, with objectives to decarbonise its loan portfolio, as well as a particular focus on limiting energy
consumption, sourcing energy from renewable sources and adopting the highest international standards (such as
LEED certification) for the optimisation of the Group's real estate assets. As a partner for SME customers, the
Group continued to work on expanding its range of products designed for sustainable mobility and energy
transition, such as Ifis Leasing Green leasing products, including the leasing and rental of photovoltaic panels,
charging stations and hybrid and electric cars.

With reference to social issues, which have always been a distinctive element of the Group ever since the launch
of Kaleidos, the Social Impact Lab set up in 2022 on the impetus of the Chair, the three-year plan period allowed
the full deployment of Banca Ifis's strategic vision: more than 40 projects with a high social impact were developed
with a commitment of 7 million Euro, up from the 6 million Euro originally envisaged in the plan. This was flanked
by the impact measurement model prepared in collaboration with the Polytechnic University of Milan, which makes
it possible to objectively quantify the social impact generated on the communities and people benefiting from the
initiatives developed. The results of the measurement showed that, on average, every Euro invested by Banca Ifis
in initiatives supporting the territory generated more than five Euro of social value for the general public.
Commitment in the social sphere has also been substantiated with greater integration in the business, with the
aforementioned 'Social Banking Npl' project, and with the launch of a leasing and rental product for healthcare
devices dedicated to Southern Italy to support personal well-being and raise awareness of health and scientific
research issues, with a particular focus on the most disadvantaged areas of the country. This commitment is also
reflected in an articulated plan in favour of employees and in the area of diversity, fairness and inclusion: after
obtaining the Winning Women Institute certification as the first financial institution in Italy, the Group's positioning
was confirmed by the certification according to the UNI PdR 125:2022 standard.

Also in the social sphere, the commitment to the art world was strengthened in 2024, through Ifis art, a project
that brings together all the initiatives carried out by the Bank to promote art, culture, contemporary creativity and
their values: from the corporate collection to the International Sculpture Park, to the project to recover Banksy's
work and restore the Palazzo San Pantalon that houses it.
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Aspects of good governance underpin the Group's activities, not only with reference to elements of regulatory
compliance and integrity and ethics, but also with a focus on transparency towards stakeholders, as evidenced by
the depth and comprehensiveness of the Sustainability Statement and further voluntary disclosure efforts aligned
to international standards of reference, such as the TCFD report, now in its second edition in 2024.

The Group's commitment, recognised by all stakeholders, has led to important accolades, such as the award as
the best ESG programme in Europe in the Small-Mid Cap segment, assigned by the independent research company
Extel Institutional Investors, and the upgrade to 'AA' of the ESG rating assigned by MSCI, which includes Banca Ifis
among the leaders in the sector.

With the transposition of Directive (EU) 2022/2464, known as the Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive
(CSRD), Legislative Decree No. 125 of 6 September 2024 introduced into Italian law the obligation for several
categories of companies, including large public interest companies, to draw up an annual sustainability statement.
This reporting must comply with the standards set by the European Financial Reporting Advisory Group (EFRAG)
and the requirements of other applicable European regulations, such as EU Regulations 2088/2019 and 852/2020.

Banca Ifis S.p.A., a public interest entity that meets the required size criteria, will publish - as of financial year 2024
- a Consolidated Sustainability Statement in line with the provisions of Legislative Decree no. 125/24. This requires
a dual approach, considering both the impacts of the company on society and the environment (inside-out
perspective) and how sustainability factors affect the company itself (outside-in perspective).

The data and information collection process was carried out in cooperation with the different business functions
according to the principles of relevance, faithful representation, comparability, verifiability and comprehensibility,
as recommended by EFRAG's ESRS (see ESRS 1, section 2).

This process is a key step towards increasing corporate transparency and integrated sustainability management
in the Bank's operations, in line with the Group's strategy, the UN 2030 Agenda, the goals of the Paris Agreement
and the transition to a sustainable economy.

Consultation guide

1. General disclosures

2. Environment

3. Social

4. Governance

5. Other sustainability information
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1. General disclosures
1.1 ESRS 2 - General disclosures

1.1.1 Basis for preparation

Consolidation scope
[BP-1 DP 5a,bi,bii]

The Sustainability Statement has been prepared at a consolidated level by the Parent Company Banca Ifis S.p.A.
and includes all companies consolidated on a line-by-line basis in the Consolidated Financial Statements with
reference to the reporting period between 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024.

More specifically, the following entities are included in the reporting:

e Ifis Finance Sp. z 0.0.

e Ifis Rental Services S.r.l.

e Ifis Npl Investing S.p.A.

e Cap.ltal.Fin. S.p.A.

e Ifis Npl Servicing S.p.A.

e Ifis Finance l.LF.N. S.A.

e Banca Credifarma S.p.A.
The scope of the Sustainability Statement coincides with the scope of financial reporting, ensuring consistency
and comparability between the non-financial and financial information reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements?S.

[BP-1 DP 5¢]

The information contained in the Sustainability Statement includes the significant impacts, risks and opportunities
(hereinafter also referred to as “IROs”) associated with Banca Ifis that emerged as material from the double
materiality assessment, which cover both its own operations and direct and indirect business relationships along
the value chain. With reference to the latter, this information mainly concerns, upstream, the suppliers involved in
the development of the Group's products and services and, downstream, the customers reached through business
relations.

For more details on the materiality assessment, please refer to the section "double materiality assessment" (see
1.1 ESRS 2 - General Information, section 1.1.4 Managing Impacts, Risks and Opportunities: Double materiality
assessment, IRO-1 DP 53). Information on the coverage of policies, actions, targets and metrics, as well as data
on the value chain, are set out in the different thematic chapters of the document.

[BP-1 DP 5d]

The Group has decided not to make use of the option to omit information on intellectual property, know-how or
innovation results.

2 It should be noted that there are no subsidiaries of Banca Ifis, which are subject to the scope of application of Legislative Decree
125/2024 on an individual basis. It is specified that no operational control was identified for any of the companies consolidated
using the equity method (Justlex and Redacta). These companies were considered as value chain players by virtue of their
existing business relationship with the Group and included in the reporting of indirect Scope 3 emissions. Specifically, the
materiality assessment conducted on the Scope 3 categories revealed the predominance of the supply component over the
investment component of the Justlex and Redacta companies; therefore, these companies were placed in Scope 3 category 1.

3 It should be noted that due to the residual size of the Group's activities for Romania and Poland (employees <2%), the policies
and actions described refer to Italy, except where specified.
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Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances
[BP-2 DP 9a,b]

In accordance with the definitions of "time horizons" for reporting purposes under the EFRAG ESRS, the Banca Ifis
Group adopts the following time intervals:

e short-term time horizon: corresponding to the period adopted as the reference period for its financial
statements, i.e. one year;
e medium-term time horizon: up to five years from the end of the short-term reference period;
e long-term time horizon: beyond five years.
[BP-2 DP 104]

The Group analyses and reports data on the value chain, upstream and downstream, in order to meet the E1-6
reporting requirements “Gross GHG emissions of Scope 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions”, reviewing the mapped
and reported categories periodically.

[BP-2 DP 10b]

In particular, with reference to Scope 3 emissions, the categories included in the scope of reporting are: no. 1
"Purchased goods and services", no. 6 "Business travel" and no. 15 "Investments" identified by the GHG Protocol.
For category no. 1, issues arising from purchasing expenses related to lawyers and consultants, auditing firms,
outsourcing services, customer information expenses, software support and rental, telephone and data
transmission expenses, advertising and advertisements, document postage and archiving, and other
miscellaneous expenses are reported. These emissions were calculated using the GHG Protocol's Spend-Based
Method using emission factors provided by Eurostat based on the NACE economic activities contained in the
Environmental Extended Input Output (EEIO). For category no. 6, emissions related to employee business travel,
including air travel, train travel, car rental and other means of transport, calculated on the basis of data provided
by ticketing service providers and related emission factors, are considered for Italian locations; for foreign
locations, emissions were calculated by applying the 'Spend-Based' methodology. Finally, for category no. 15,
funded issues from the investment portfolio are reported, calculated using internal sector proxies and derived
from consolidated databases such as the Bank of Italy, European Environmental Agency and Bloomberg.

[BP-2 DP 10¢]

The accuracy of the metrics calculated using sectoral proxies is ensured by the authoritative sources used at
national, European or international level: as previously mentioned, the Environmental Extended Input Output (EEIO)
emission factors provided by Eurostat with reference to category 1 emissions, the Bank of Italy and the European
Environmental Agency with reference to category 15 emissions were considered.

Despite the adoption of 'reasonable efforts' in accordance with the regulations when compiling sustainability data,
it was not possible to use data derived from primary sources for Scope 3 category 1 and category 15. This is due
to several factors, including the complexity of the value chain, characterised by the presence of numerous players,
the lack of sector-specific standards, the limited use of IT tools for the direct collection of data and information,
as well as the significant presence of small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) within the Group's customer
base, which have limited capabilities in monitoring and reporting sustainability data.

[BP-2 DP 10d]

Banca Ifis aims to ensure increasingly accurate reporting, fostering, where possible, the use of timely data over
estimates, in accordance with market best practice.

[BP-2 DP 11a]

To this end, the Bank has adopted an IT platform as a centralised tool for the collection and processing of
monetary amounts and quantitative metrics reported by the various business functions, defining a structured
approach to ensure the accuracy, consistency and reliability of the reported information, while reducing levels of
measurement uncertainty. Consequently, there are no causes of uncertainty in the estimates used and the results
produced.
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1.1.2 Strategy
[SBM-1 DP 42]

Banca Ifis was founded in 1983 as a specialised factoring operator. Today, the Bank and the Group support
businesses, particularly SMEs, with specialised credit solutions: factoring, leasing, medium/long-term loans and
corporate & investment banking.

Over the years, the Group has also become one of the leading specialised players in the Italian impaired loans
sector with a proprietary portfolio of 21,6 billion Euro (GBV) as at 31/12/2024. In addition, it has a division entirely
dedicated to the management and financing of tax credits through advances and boasts a significant presence in
pharmacy finance through Banca Credifarma, which was created through the merger by incorporation of
Credifarma into Farbanca on 11 April 2022.

These corporate activities are flanked by services for retail customers, with the Rendimax Deposit Account, an on-
line deposit account for family and business savings, and the Rendimax Current Account. Since 2018, the Group
operates in consumer credit with Cap.ltal.Fin. S.p.A., a financial intermediation company specialised in salary- and
pension-backed loans, also in payment delegations.

The Group operates in the Italian banking scene, a significant market for Banca Ifis, as an active player in speciality
finance and abroad, with a focus on Eastern Europe where Ifis Finance Sp. z.0.0. in Poland and Ifis Finance I.F.N.
S.A. are present in Poland and Romania, respectively.

The number of employees by geographical area is shown below:

[SBM-1 DP 40aiii]

Geographical area Number of employees (headcount)

Italy 1.983
Poland 14
Romania 16
Total employees 2.013

[SBM-1 DP 40a,ai,aii,e,gl

The 2022-2024 D.0.E.S (Digital, Open, Efficient, Sustainable) Business Plan defined the Group's strategic priorities
for the three-year period. Its objectives include increasing industrial profit, strengthening the competitive
positioning and creating value for all stakeholders. The plan is based on four pillars: digitisation, openness to
partnerships, efficiency and sustainability. The 'S - Sustainable' pillar is dedicated to the description of strategic
elements that relate to sustainability issues, concretely translated into objectives under the three main headings
of environmental, social and governance (ESG).

Concrete initiatives include offering solutions for sustainable mobility and energy efficiency for SMEs, through
subsidised loans and scoring tools to assess customers' ESG performance. At the same time, with reference to
the Npl (non-performing loans) business, a project was implemented to create a sustainable collection model*
whose ultimate goal is the financial re-inclusion of households and businesses.

4 Banca Ifis operates in the field of impaired loan recovery with an approach based on dialogue and transparency, interpreting its
recovery action as an opportunity for financial re-inclusion, consistent with the double bottom line approach promoted by the
Chairman and his focus on sustainability.
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[SBM-1 DP 40f]

Therefore, with reference to the Group's main businesses, the plan sets out the aim of supporting the sustainable
transition of its SME customers, through dedicated products and services, and to strengthen the sustainable debt
collection model. The Group's products and services related to sustainability matters are described in detail in the
chapter on the Transition Plan (see 2.2 ESRS E1 - Climate Change, section 2.2.1 Transition Plan, DP 16b).

In addition, the Group's attention to sustainability will be further strengthened in the future Business Plan.

[SBM-1 DP 42a]

On the basis of the business model described above and the corporate structure as at 31 December 2024, the
Group collects data on its operating perimeter and value chain in a centralised manner through information flows
from the companies to the parent company, Banca Ifis, which analyses and develops them, with the aim of
identifying significant IROs and possible relationships between the various elements of the value chain,
periodically producing reports and documentation useful to internal and external stakeholders.

[SBM-1 DP 42,c]

As regards the various elements of the Banca Ifis value chain, it is structured into a network of upstream
counterparts, including suppliers, business partners, banks and investors, and downstream counterparts, including
customers, employees, foundations and distributor partners, with the aim of offering targeted financial solutions
and supporting the economic and social fabric.

In particular, the upstream value chain consists of all the resources and activities that enable the Group to deliver
its products and services:

e suppliers play a key role by providing strategic consulting services to support business innovation and
digitisation, as well as goods and services essential to the Group's operational functioning. These also
include information providers, which offer data and analysis crucial for credit assessment, risk
management and decision-making support. A further crucial contribution comes from legal activity
services, which ensure regulatory compliance and provide assistance in handling disputes.

e business partners are mainly represented by suppliers of capital goods and motor vehicles. These entities
support leasing and financing operations by providing the Group with machinery, equipment and vehicles
necessary for the pursuit of financial activities aimed at companies and individuals.

e partner banks assume a strategic role in supporting Banca Ifis in the management of impaired loans
through co-investment and joint asset management transactions.

e investors, finally, represent an important source of capital for the Bank. These include institutional
investors, such as funds and insurance companies, who contribute to the financial strength and growth of
the Group's operations.

Simultaneously, the Group's downstream value chain includes the distribution and delivery of services to end
users:

e distributor partners, including brokers and agents, play an essential role in the dissemination of the Bank's
financial products and services, facilitating the matching of supply and demand for credit and leasing
solutions, as well as operating in the management of impaired loans.

e customers represent the central point in the downstream value chain. Banca Ifis's customers are both
private individuals and companies, who benefit from a wide range of financial solutions, including leasing,
factoring, loans and credit management tools, tailored to their specific needs.

e Finally, Banca Ifis actively supports foundations and the third sector, working with non-profit and non-
profit organisations to promote sustainable economic development initiatives and projects with a social
purpose.

The integration of upstream and downstream activities supports the Group's own operations, enabling it to offer
innovative solutions, manage risks effectively and support long-term economic and social growth.
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[SBM-1 DP 42b]

In addition, the mapping of the value chain involved the identification and evaluation of activities and processes
through which the Bank generates value, which are set out below.

Supporting SMEs has always been in the DNA of the Group, which sees itself as “a company that banks”. With this
in mind, the focus is on entrepreneurs with the aim of responding to their needs with a diversified and structured
Commercial and Corporate Banking offering, including factoring, financial leasing and operating leases, advisory
services for corporate acquisitions, M&A and medium- and long-term financing, tax credit purchases, Investment
Banking and Special Situations. In the Npl segment, the value generated is hinged on the combination of the
capacity to acquire and transform bad loans, offering families and businesses the possibility of agreeing on and
managing sustainable repayment plans. In particular, recovery activities are interpreted with a view to the financial
re-inclusion of families and businesses, with a substantial focus not only on compliance with applicable
regulations and self-regulatory codes, but also with specific processes aimed at meeting the needs of debtor
clients.

In addition to its ordinary business of factoring, leasing and financing to support businesses, in 2024 the Bank
continued to assist SMEs - both customers and non-customers - by offering opportunities for products combined
with public subsidies to support investments and working capital, such as financial leasing associated with the
Nuova Sabatini facility, financial leasing assisted by the SME Guarantee Fund, financing assisted by the SME
Guarantee Fund, factoring with recourse assisted by the SME Guarantee Fund and financing assisted by the
Supportltalia SACE guarantee.

Finally, starting 2019, the Bank has launched a series of products and services that can improve the quality of life
of customers and stakeholders. The project, called 'lfis Green', takes the form of an innovative financial offer
ranging from products dedicated to sustainable mobility to products dedicated to energy transition. The main
initiatives implemented by the Ifis Group include:

e |Ifis Leasing Green, aimed at promoting sustainable mobility by offering hybrid and electric cars;
e e-bike rental dedicated to small hirers and tourism operators;
e |easing products related to the energy transition of SMEs, the leasing of photovoltaic systems and
charging stations and columns;
o the conduct of regular analyses, in concert with the business structures, to identify additional customer
financing opportunities to support the sustainable transition.
Alongside these, the Group has further strengthened its social commitment with a new product designed to reduce
the gap between Northern and Southern Italy in health and medical care. In particular, the Bank has set up a series
of partnerships with leading medical equipment distributors that form the basis of a new leasing and rental product
entirely dedicated to pharmacies, healthcare operators and medical centres in six Italian regions: Calabria,
Campania, Apulia, Sardinia, Sicily and Molise. The service consists of diagnostics, prevention and treatment. The
new tool reinforces the Group's commitment to supporting personal well-being and raising awareness of health
and scientific research topics. To do so, the Bank has entered into partnerships that allow priority access to
medical devices and has defined a subsidised price for the cost of leasing and renting per medical instrument.

Understanding the interaction between capital, strategic pillars and the company's business model is essential to
develop a sustainable value creation process over time. This requires the ability to intercept changes in the
external environment, including the evolving needs of stakeholders, in order to respond effectively, generate value
and strengthen the organisation's resilience.

Constant monitoring of market trends, with particular attention to the main macroeconomic, industrial and
regulatory dynamics, as well as to the changing needs of stakeholders, allows us to manage risks and seize
opportunities, maximising the value generated through the strategy adopted. Actively listening to stakeholders
plays a crucial role in this process: understanding their expectations guides informed choices, improving product
offerings and contributing to people's financial well-being and quality of life.
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The Group's objective is to support customers and stakeholders in addressing social and environmental
challenges, supporting their investments and ensuring financial strength.

Interests and views of stakeholders
[SBM-2 DP 45aiv,b]

Transparency and dialogue have always been the hallmarks of Banca Ifis Group’s approach to communication.
Through constant interaction with customers, investors, shareholders and employees, the Group is able to
understand and respond to diverse needs. This is pursued through a variety of tools and initiatives, such as
customer focus through social networks, company websites, projects and events. In addition, the Group is
committed to optimising its communication actions, with the aim of offering the best experience to its
stakeholders and ensuring timely responses to questions and enquiries. These activities are aimed, on the one
hand, at monitoring corporate reputation also through dedicated platforms and, on the other hand, at integrating
any considerations arising from stakeholder involvement into the Group's strategy and activities.

One concrete example is the involvement of relevant internal and external stakeholders in the double materiality
assessment through the assessment of the Bank's impacts, risks and opportunities. As detailed in the dedicated
section (see 1.1 ESRS 2 - General Information, section 1.1.4 Managing Impacts, Risks and Opportunities: Double
materiality assessment), Banca Ifis has adopted a structured approach that includes the involvement of
stakeholders, articulated in three phases, paying particular attention to those most closely connected to the
business model and strategy through training sessions, interviews and dedicated focus groups, aimed at gathering
feedback and considerations that are also useful from a strategic perspective.

The process started with the active involvement of several strategic internal functions in order to ensure a
thorough analysis of impacts, risks and opportunities (IROs). Subsequently, an external survey was conducted to
collect feedback from external stakeholders, expanding and strengthening the internal evaluation. Finally, top
management provided an overall strategic vision, consolidated the analyses and defined the final evaluations.

[SBM-2 DP 45aiv,av]

The results of this assessment allowed for the definition of material issues for the Bank from both an impact and
financial materiality perspective, both on its own operations and on the value chain.

[SBM-2 DP 45d]

The entire process and its results have been brought to the attention and approval of the Sustainability Committee,
the Risk and Control Committee and the Board of Directors in order to keep these bodies informed of the
perspectives of the Group's stakeholders.

[SBM-2 DP 45aiii]

Maintaining a relationship and dialogue with the financial market is also a strategic component for the Group. This
is why the Parent Company’s Investor Relations & Corporate Development Department maintains relationships
with shareholders and investors, guided by the principles of fairness, transparency, collaboration, and absolute
respect for the independence of their respective roles.

[SBM-2 DP 45ai]

In addition to shareholders and investors, the Group's main stakeholder categories also include employees,
customers, local communities, agents, institutions, industry associations, the media and suppliers.

[SBM-2 DP 45aiii]

The Parent Company's Communication, Marketing, Public Affairs & Sustainability Department manages and
coordinates the dialogue and involvement of the above-mentioned stakeholders, through the most appropriate
channels and methods, chosen from time to time on the basis of needs. Furthermore, with particular reference to
customers, their involvement was managed in cooperation with other parent company departments such as

Marketing & Business Strategy.
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[SBM-2 DP 45a,aii]

Specifically, the different engagement activities that were developed with key stakeholders are outlined below:

Stakeholder category Engagement activity

Employees

corporate intranet with dedicated preparation and editorial plan;
internal storytelling with news dedicated to the Bank’s internal initiatives;
internal live streaming (Ifis Cappuccino, Ifis Talks);

initiatives to involve employees in events and activities linked to donations and
sponsorships with the aim of involving them in the areas of value for the Bank and
themselves;

deployment of sports activities: promotion and brokering of registrations for inter-bank
sports events;

Good Morning Ifis and Good Evening Ifis: sending press reviews of daily information;
internal newsletters;
the Linkedin Ambassador Project;

the organisation of internal contests on the company intranet, held on the occasion of
sponsorships/international days/internal initiatives.

Customers

surveys aimed at collecting feedback on study and research activities as well as on
customer platforms (mylfis);

events related to innovation, change and the relationship, also connected with the
presentation of the results of analyses conducted by the Research Department;

social channels in which the timeliness of response is assured in every channel;
customer care web and social;

involvement of stakeholders and companies in the reporting of trend dynamics in
observatories and market watches;

“The voice of our experts” column.

Shareholders,
investors and analysts

road shows and conferences in Italy and Europe, conference calls with the management;
events dedicated to networking of listed companies and the market;

quarterly financial reports and annual financial statements;

financial highlights on social networks;

press releases;

dedicated meetings with investors and analysts.

Agents

events and conventions.

Institutions and
regulators

meetings with representatives of the institutions;

participation in working parties and committees.

Industry associations

institutional meetings;

group representatives on the association bodies.

Media

events (e.g. press conferences);
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Stakeholder category Engagement activity

e dedicated meetings;

e pressreleases.

e support to social interventions or projects, partnerships to local initiatives;

e localinitiative partnerships;

Community

e meetings and events on the territory;

e collaborations with the academic world.

e institutional website with dedicated area for information on invoicing and Code of Ethics;
Suppliers

e meetings scheduled as necessary and according to the type of supply.

The stakeholder engagement methods described allow for the collection and evaluation of stakeholders' interests,
opinions and rights with the aim of integrating them, where possible, into the corporate strategy and model. In
particular:

[s1.SBM-2 DP 12]

with regard to its employees, the Group has integrated considerations of diversity and inclusion, workers'
rights and well-being into its strategy;
[S2.SBM-2 DP 9]

e with regard to workers in the value chain, in particular suppliers, the Bank provides specific safeguards in
order to gather relevant information on its partners (e.g. DURC - the consolidated document attesting to
compliance with the payment of social security and welfare contributions) and also started a process in
early 2025 to collect information on the sustainability profile of the most relevant suppliers;

[S3.SBM-2 DP 7]

e with reference to local communities, at the impetus of the Chair, Kaleidos was created, the Social Impact
Lab through which the Group promotes and protects the rights of the communities concerned through the
development of partnerships and collaborations with third sector entities and non-profit organisations to
support the communities, people and territories in which it operates;

[S4.SBM-2 DP 8]

e with reference to end consumers, the Group has created dedicated products and services to support the
sustainable transition of SME customers and has launched a project aimed at promoting the financial re-
inclusion of Npl debtor customers, through sustainable ethical management of debt collection and
support to individuals in difficulty.

1.1.3 Governance
Banca Ifis adopts the traditional administration & control model, considering it, at present, to be the most suited
for ensuring the efficiency of operations and effectiveness of controls given its specific characteristics.

Under the model adopted by Banca Ifis:

e strategic supervision is performed by the Board of Directors;

e the CEO is responsible for the company's operations. The Chief Executive Officer implements the
resolutions passed by the Board of Directors, with the assistance of the Co-General Managers identified
as the Chief Commercial Officer (CCO) and Chief Operating Officer (COO);

e control is performed by the Board of Statutory Auditors.
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors has set up three board committees, which, with
proposal, investigation and advisory functions, enable the body with strategic supervisory functions to take its
decisions in a more informed manner: the Control and Risk Committee; the Appointments Committee; and the
Remuneration Committee.

The composition, functioning and responsibilities of the board Committees are governed in the General
Regulations and the Regulations of the Board of Directors and the Board Committees.

The Group publishes on its website information on the members of the administrative, management and
supervisory bodies, indicating the roles and responsibilities assigned to each. For each member of a corporate
body of Banca Ifis, a summary curriculum vitae is publicly available, while the full version, which also includes
specific competencies, is contained within the set of documents provided to shareholders when submitting lists
for the election of corporate bodies. These documents are always accessible among the material relating to the
Shareholders' Meeting that appointed each representative.

The Bank operates in compliance with industry regulations and voluntarily adheres to Borsa ltaliana's Corporate
Governance Code, providing a broad set of information, both through the pages of its website and in the Report
on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure, approved annually by the Board of Directors and available on
the corporate website.

The Report also includes details on the composition and diversity of corporate bodies, the annual self-assessment
process to which they are subjected, and the annual training plans prepared for corporate officers.

Role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies

[GOV-1 DP 21a,d,€e]

Members of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies m 2024 (M

Number of executive members No. 1

Number of non-executive members No. 15

Percentage of members of administrative, management and supervisory bodies by gender

%
and other aspects of diversity ? 0

(1)The reported figures of 16 members correspond to 13 members of the Board of Directors and 3 members of the Board of
Statutory Auditors.
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Members of the Board of Directors mm

Board of Directors' gender diversity ratio (1 %

Percentage of independent Board members @ ‘ %

(1)The ratio is calculated by dividing the number of female members of the Board of Directors by the total number of members.
(2)The percentage represents independent, non-executive members of the Board. This ratio is calculated by dividing the number
of independent board members (10) by the total number of board members (13).

Board of Directors

appointment

Approval of the 2024

Ernesto Fiirstenberg

Chairman . 2019 28/04/2022 | .. .
Fassio financial statements
Chief Executive Officer Frederik Herman 2021 28/04/2029 | APProval of the 2024
Geertman financial statements
Independent Director Nicola Borri 2024 18/04/2024 | APProval of the 2024
financial statements
Independent Director Monica Regazzi 2021 28/04/2022 Approyal of the 2024
financial statements
Independent Director Paola Paoloni 2022 28/04/2022 Approyal of the 2024
financial statements
A | of the 2024
Independent Director Roberta Gobbi 2022 28/04/2022 pproval of the 20

financial statements

Independenjt Director Simona Arduini 2019 28/04/2022 A'pprO\'/aI of the 2024
Deputy Chairman financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Independent Director Monica Billio 2019 28/04/2022 | . .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Independent Director (LID) | Antonella Malinconico 2016 28/04/2022 | .. .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Independent Director Roberto Diacetti 2019 28/04/2022 | . .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Independent Director Beatrice Colleoni 2019 28/04/2022 | . .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Independent Director Giovanni Meruzzi 2022 28/04/2022 | .. .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Director Luca Lo Giudice 2019 28/04/2022 | .. .
financial statements

(1)This means the date the director was first appointed (ever) to the Board.
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Board of Auditors

Approval of the 2024
financial statements

Chairman Andrea Balelli 2022 28/04/2022

Approval of the 2024

Standing Auditor Franco Olivetti 2019 19/04/2019 | . .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Standing Auditor Annunziata Melaccio 2022 28/04/2022 | . .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Alternate Auditor Marinella Monterumisi 2019 19/04/2019 | . .
financial statements

Approval of the 2024

Alternate Auditor Emanuela Rollino 2022 28/04/2022 | .. .
financial statements

(1)This means the date the Chairman/Auditor was first appointed (ever) to the Board.

[GOV-1 DP 21b]

There is no representation of employees® or other employees in the administration, management and supervisory
bodies®. Industry regulations, applicable to banks, require that, at the application stage, the exponent provide
information on his professionalism and competence in order to be subjected to the “Fit&Proper” process prior to
taking office. In order to be considered eligible, the exponent must have exercised, for at least three years, specific
activities (i.e. administration, control, management tasks, university teaching as a first or second level lecturer) in
the credit, financial, securities or insurance sector or in sectors/matters in any event functional and/or related to
such sectors.

[GOV-1 DP 21¢]

In order to ensure the overall and adequate suitability of the administrative body, the Board of Directors, as
provided for by the applicable industry regulations, provides the Shareholders with detailed indications on the
optimal qualitative and quantitative composition. The aim is to ensure the presence of members with wide-ranging
and consolidated expertise within the administrative body; the same activities are also carried out by the Board of
Statutory Auditors.

5 "Employee” means a natural person who, in accordance with national law or practice, has an employment relationship with the
enterprise.

6 “Workers' representatives” means: trade union representatives, designated or elected by trade unions in accordance with
national laws and practices, and representatives freely elected by workers, independent of the employer's control and in
compliance with national regulations or collective agreements. These representatives do not carry out activities reserved for
trade unions or compromise their position.
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Directors possessing the relevant
professionalism/competence

Areas of expertise

Banking business and banking and financial activities and products 85%
Internal cont.rol systems and risk management and control 85%
methodologies

Industry regulation 77%
Business management processes 77%
Dynamics of the economic and financial system 69%
Risk management and control methodologies 69%
Knowledge of organisational structure and information systems 69%
Corporate governance 62%
Accounting and financial reporting 46%

In addition to what is represented in the table above, the current board of directors also includes the following and
additional skills, professionalism and experience in the following areas with respect to the external reference
standards: knowledge of digitisation, innovation and cyber security issues, expertise and knowledge in the ESG
area, managerial skills, mathematical-statistical skills, risk management skills, international experience’.

The controlling body is also obliged, in compliance with the applicable sector regulations, to provide shareholders
with information on its composition, both quantitative and qualitative, which it considers optimal.

Directors possessing the relevant

Areas of expertise : .
professionalism/competence

Financial markets 80%
Regulation in the banking and finance industry 80%
Strategic planning and guidelines 60%
Organisational and corporate governance structures 100%
Risk management 60%
Internal control systems and other operating mechanisms 100%
Banking and financial activities and products 80%
Accounting and financial reporting 80%
Information technology 20%

7 Competencies are measured in the annual self-assessment process with specific reference to the European context, due to the

presence of activities in Italy, Poland and Romania.
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In addition to what is shown in the table above, the current auditing body has additional skills, professionalism
and experience in specific areas that go beyond what is required by the relevant external regulations. These include
specific knowledge of Banca Ifis, experience in Banca Ifis's core banking sector, knowledge of information and
communication technology (ICT), knowledge of ESG with particular reference to the impact on lending, knowledge
of remuneration policies, knowledge of management processes and business organisation, knowledge of internal
control systems and risk management methodologies.

Industry regulations require that the competences of the exponents are relevant to the Bank's business and,
therefore, are also significant to the material impacts, risks and opportunities of the business. In addition, it should
be noted that each body (Board of Directors, Board Committees, Board of Statutory Auditors, Supervisory Body)
has a budget that can be activated autonomously. As far as training is concerned, here too the industry regulations
make it mandatory to implement an annual training plan. The programme is established downstream of the self-
assessment process to ensure the ongoing updating and development of the skills required to perform the role
and, therefore, topics in recent years have included sustainability, involving both external speakers (e.g. university
professors, experts) and internal Group speakers.

[GOV-1 DP 223]

Governance Structure in Sustainability

The parent company adopts a governance structure in the area of sustainability based on a 'decentralised’' model.
The Communication, Marketing, Public Affairs & Sustainability Department, at the instigation of the Chair, the
Board of Directors and the Sustainability Committee, coordinates and manages activities in the field of
sustainability in cooperation with the other departments involved, each within its specific competence.

In particular:

e Chairman of the Board of Directors: promotes the culture of corporate social responsibility and the ethical
and sustainable development of the Bank and the Group in the long term and presides over the
implementation of social, philanthropic, charitable and cultural initiatives of the Bank and the Group;

e Honorary Chairman: upholds the Group's founding values, taking into account the characteristics of the
Group and the family nature of the Bank's long-term controlling shareholder (on, for example, culture and
social responsibility, sustainable and digital development, innovation);

e Deputy Chairman: supports the Bank in the development of projects in the area of sustainability in all its
forms and in the other areas of competence, identifying rules and principles, and coordinating with the
Chairman for all communications concerning the Board of Directors, where these are presented as
communications by the Deputy Chairman;

e Board of Directors: is responsible for the strategic supervision of the Bank and has the task of setting
strategic guidelines and constantly monitoring their implementation to ensure proper and prudent
management. When developing strategies for the entire Group, the Board takes sustainability goals into
account and integrates ESG factors into business decisions;

e Sustainability Committee: supports the Board of Directors in defining and assessing guidelines in the field
of sustainability, ensuring the oversight of initiatives and actions with an environmental, social or
governance impact, as well as the assessment, management and mitigation of sustainability-related risks
to which the Group is exposed;

e Communication, Marketing, Public Affairs & Sustainability Department: is responsible for managing ESG
activities, both within the Parent Company and in its subsidiaries. Management coordinates the functions
that are involved in these activities. Within the Brand, Corporate Communication and Sustainability
Operating Unit, the figure of the Sustainability Manager has been created to coordinate the implementation
of the activities envisaged by the Group's sustainability strategy.

[GOV-1 DP 22b]

With the aim of creating sustainable value for all stakeholders, the parent company has integrated ESG
considerations into its banking processes by involving all functional competencies of the company and promoting
an ongoing commitment to ESG matters.
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The integration of sustainability into banking processes makes it possible to support companies in their
sustainable transition process, to strengthen the trust of investors, markets and all stakeholders, and to improve
corporate reputation by counteracting activities and practices deemed incompatible with the Group's principles
and effectively managing ESG risks. In this context, the parent company seeks to foster sustainable economic
development by giving preference, in its financing decisions, to companies that adopt ethical behaviour and are
distinguished by environmentally friendly production methods, the assurance of inclusive working conditions that
respect human rights, and the observance of the best standards of corporate governance.

The ESG Policy defines the guidelines that the Banca Ifis Group applies with regard to sustainability, consistent
with the principles set out in the Group's Code of Ethics and its values. The responsibilities of each body are
defined in the corporate mission and related policies. At the meeting of 19 December 2024, updates to the internal
regulations attributable to the ESG sphere, including the General Regulations and the Regulations of the Board of
Directors and Board Committees to describe these responsibilities more comprehensively, were approved. In
addition, article 12, letter g) of the Articles of Association assigns the Chairman the task of “promoting the culture
of corporate social responsibility and the ethical and sustainable development of the Bank and the Group in the
long term and overseeing the implementation of the Bank's and the Group's social, philanthropic, welfare and
cultural initiatives in compliance with the regulations, including internal ones, in force from time to time and the
appreciation of the artistic heritage”.

The different company departments are in charge of progressively integrating sustainability considerations into
the different business processes. The Board of Directors is regularly updated on the Group's objectives and results
in the area of sustainability.

[GOV-1 DP 22¢]

More specifically, during the meeting of 27 November, the Sustainability Committee approved the results of the
double materiality assessment preparatory to the 2024 Sustainability Statement, which were then approved by the
Board of Directors. In addition, the Board of Directors annually approves the Sustainability Statement, which is
included in the Directors’ Report within the Consolidated Financial Statements.

[GOV-1 DP 22ci]

The Sustainability Committee, which operates for the entire Group, was established from among the Parent
Company's Management Committees. It is a collegial body of deliberative, propositional and consultative nature
with portfolio. The Committee reports to the Parent Company Board of Directors on its activities at least once
every six months. In the course of 2024, 16 meetings of the Board of Directors of Banca Ifis were held, and in ten
of these, topics related to sustainability issues were discussed.

[GOV-1 DP 22cii]

The Communication, Marketing, Public Affairs & Sustainability Department together with the Finance Department
inform the Sustainability Committee about the management, monitoring and control of material risks, impacts and
opportunities and the results of the double materiality assessment at least once a year.

[GOV-1 DP 22ciii]

With regard to the management of relevant aspects in the area of sustainability, each responsible function within
the Group performs first-level controls in the context of the double materiality assessment process. These
controls, carried out by the competent managers, may subsequently be subject to second-level verification by the
Financial & Sustainability Reporting Monitoring & Control function, in accordance with the methods and tools
defined in the internal regulations, in particular the Policy for the Management of Incorrect Financial Reporting and
Sustainability Risk.

The Board of Directors, within the scope of its competences, ensures the governance of the risks to which the
Bank is exposed, identifying in a timely manner their sources, possible developments and the necessary
safeguards provided for by the internal control system, including those related to the Sustainability Statement.
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[GOV-1 DP 22d]

At a strategic level, the decision-making bodies, in cooperation with the relevant functions, identify the objectives
to be implemented in the area of sustainability, ensuring a coherent and integrated approach, including the
adoption of the Group Transition Plan. The Board of Directors also completed the adoption of the entire set of
regulations necessary to govern the process, using internal tools to guide and orient the company's operations in
line with sustainability principles.

[GOV-1 DP 23]

In particular, industry regulations applicable to banks require the Board of Directors to deliberate annually on a
training plan to supplement any areas and subjects to be implemented. The plans are prepared taking into account
the results of the self-assessment on the functioning of the body itself. Specifically, the training plans provided to
the Bank's corporate officers are usually organised with a theoretical part, with the support of external structures
such as leading training institutes, and a practical part, conducted by the Bank's internal structures. In this respect,
there is a well-established competence in sustainability issues in both the board of directors and the control body.
In any case, in order to continuously implement, deepen and update these skills, they have been covered in training
meetings over the past three years.

[GOV-1 DP 233]

In addition to the areas of competence declared by each director at the application stage, further competences
were identified through the annual self-assessment process, which have been acquired in the meantime, also
thanks to the annual training provided to Board members.

The self-assessment for the second year of the mandate, and subsequently also in the self-assessment for the
third and final year of the mandate, showed that skills, professionalism, knowledge and experience in the following
areas were adequately represented on the Board of Directors: information technology; digitalisation, innovation
and cyber security; ESG; and managerial skills.

As part of the third and final year's self-assessment, an in-depth analysis of ESG competencies was also
conducted, in line with the previous self-assessment. The following are the conclusions drawn by the directors,
the result of their reflection on their individual expertise in this specific area.

In support of this growth process, specific training sessions were held in 2024 for members of corporate bodies,
focusing on the topics:

e ESG and sustainability risks;
e ESG and banking/Social Banking: which areas have the greatest impact.

Level of ESG competencies emerging from the self-assessment mmm“

Human capital management and development

Diversity & Inclusion management No. 8 4 0
Ethics and corporate social responsibility No. 8 4 0
Sustainable development and fight against climate change No. 8 4 1
ESG and sustainable finance No. 10 3 0
Procurement and supply chain management No. 2 9 1
ESG regulation and standards No. 10 3 0
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[GOV-1 DP 23b]

As mentioned above, the training courses provided to corporate officers, and therefore also the skills acquired by
them, are always contextualised in the specific scenario of the Bank and Group companies. In fact, the courses
are constructed with a training part delivered by prestigious external lecturers, to provide the general contextual
framework, and a second part conducted by internal lecturers, with specific cases of analysis relevant to the
specific reality of the Bank and the Group.

[G1.GOV-1 DP 5b]

In addition to specific technical expertise in the field of sustainability, the Banca Ifis Group's governing bodies have
consolidated experience in responsible business conduct, which is crucial for the effective implementation of their
functions.

The members of the management and supervisory bodies must in fact undergo a rigorous process of evaluation
of the requirements provided for by the specific industry regulations.

The Board of Directors appoints one of its members (including, if necessary, the Chief Executive Officer) as the
person responsible for Group anti-money laundering, without prejudice to the collective responsibility of the
corporate bodies for the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing.

[G1.GOV-1 DP 5a]

At the proposal of the Chief Executive Officer and with the involvement of the Chair, the Board approves, verifies
and ensures the proper dissemination and implementation of corporate values through the Code of Ethics.
Corporate bodies and employees are required to respect and comply with the provisions of the Code. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors actively promotes a culture of corporate social responsibility and the ethical
and sustainable development of the Bank and the Group over the long term, also overseeing social, philanthropic,
charitable and cultural initiatives. With reference to the Code of Ethics, the Supervisory Body reports to the Board
of Directors on the monitoring of the application of the document and any problems related to its implementation.

Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the undertaking’s administrative, management
and supervisory bodies

[GOV-2 DP 264]

As mentioned above, the results of the double materiality assessment are brought to the attention of the
Sustainability Committee and the Board of Directors, who review and approve them at least once a year®. Banca
Ifis also undertakes to keep the Board of Directors and the Sustainability Committee informed of the effectiveness
of the policies adopted, the actions taken, the metrics analysed and the targets set, as well as the duty of due
diligence. This approach allows for effective management and supervision of these issues at the Bank level.

[GOV-2 DP 26¢]

Therefore, these bodies have been informed of the entire list of material impacts, risks and opportunities, as set
out in the "double materiality assessment” section (see 1.1 ESRS 2 - General Information, Section 1.1.4
Management of Impacts, Risks and Opportunities: Double materiality assessment).

These impacts, risks and opportunities are integrated into the company's sustainability strategy, orienting policies,
actions and objectives on the various ESG topics. In this context, the policies and targets set are also brought to
the attention of the Committee and the Board.

8 During 2024, the boards of directors, management and auditors did not consider any trade-offs concerning the relevant impacts,
risks and opportunities in relation to their business strategy.
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[GOV-2 DP 26b]

In this context, when defining the Group's strategies, the Board of Directors takes sustainability objectives into
account by integrating ESG factors into business decisions.

Through the Sustainability Committee, which supports the Board in defining and evaluating sustainable guidelines,
the oversight of initiatives and actions with ESG impacts is ensured, as well as the assessment, management and
mitigation of sustainability-material risks. In addition to the results of the double materiality assessment, the
Committee also considers regulatory developments in order to define ESG strategies and objectives, with the aim
of mitigating negative risks and impacts and enhancing positive opportunities and impacts.

Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes
[GOV-3 DP 29,3]

The Banca Ifis Group's remuneration and incentive policies are defined in accordance with the Group's culture and
values, long-term strategies, and prudent risk management policies, consistently with the provisions concerning
the prudential control process. More specifically, the Policy was defined taking into account the remuneration and
working conditions of its employees. Sustainability goals are included in the management remuneration scheme,
as further described below.

[GOV-3 DP 29b]

The Remuneration Policy, defined annually by the Parent Company, is designed to align the behaviour of
management and staff with the interests of all stakeholders, promoting the achievement of sustainable medium-
to long-term objectives. Special attention is paid to sustainability goals, which integrate ESG factors, within the
framework of prudent risk management, both current and future. At the same time, the Policy aims to attract,
motivate and retain professionals with the necessary skills to effectively pursue corporate objectives.

This approach is fully consistent with corporate values and prudent risk management, and includes targeted
strategies for monitoring and managing impaired loans, in line with the provisions of the prudential control
process. In this way, the Policy contributes to strengthening the operational, economic and financial soundness
of the company, promoting the sustainability of the Banca Ifis Group and consolidating a long-term oriented vision.

The Banca Ifis Group's incentive schemes constitute variable remuneration, thereby meaning:

e any form of remuneration whose recognition or payment depends on performance, excluding severance
pay and indemnity in lieu of notice, if determined within the limits provided for by law;
e any other form of remuneration not uniquely identifiable as fixed remuneration.
Remuneration targets are structured on two time horizons: short term and medium to long term.

A short-term incentive plan, known as the Short Term Incentive Plan (STI), is drawn up annually, the recognition of
which is conditional on the opening of specific access points and the achievement of qualitative and quantitative
performance targets assigned to the recipients.

At the same time, the Group's incentive system may include medium- to long-term incentive mechanisms designed
to align management with the objectives defined in the industrial and strategic plans.

For FY 2024, the incentive schemes confirm sustainable finance objectives that integrate ESG factors and include
the explicit application of the principle of 'gender neutrality' in remuneration policies. To this end, an annual
monitoring of gender pay gaps will be carried out to ensure consistency.

[GOV-3 DP 29¢]

In this context, the Remuneration Policy is also geared towards creating sustainable value over time for all
stakeholders and the eco-system in which the Group operates. The Sustainability Committee supports the
important path taken by the Bank in integrating ESG criteria into its mission and business model, with a clear

106



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited S_mor‘keb
i~ stor oge

CERTIFIED

Banca Ifis Group | 2024 Consolidated Financial Statements and Re

vision: sustainability, in all its forms, represents a lever for creating value and a fundamental driver of development,
which pays attention to the impacts on people, the environment and the community.

The Banca Ifis Group's sustainability plan, consistent with the 17 United Nations Sustainable Development Goals,
is structured according to the ESG framework and is fully integrated into our D.O.E.S. (Digital, Open, Efficient,
Sustainable) Business Plan.

For FY 2024, the Bank promoted through its incentive systems the extension of ESG Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) to all levels of responsibility in the corporate organisation, considering all three main areas of intervention.
With this in mind, for Identified Staff, the weight given to ESG KPIs has been increased and new ones introduced
for all levels of responsibility.

[GOV-3 DP 293]

More specifically, the Group's short-term incentive system emphasises the importance of responsible and
sustainable management of business activities. For Identified Staff, including the CCO, COO and Chief Executive
Officer, performance indicators consider commitment to decarbonisation, maintaining gender equity, promoting
ESG training, developing internal regulations and maintaining/improving ESG ratings. Finally, for Group employees,
there is a variable bonus linked to ESG training.

With specific reference to the Npl business, specific KPIs have been identified in the area of sustainable recovery,
which will complement those of the Group, confirming the focus on the needs of people with an ethical and
sustainable collection model for the Npl business, with a view to financial re-inclusion. These KPlIs, related to the
Npl segment, also apply to the Chief Executive Officer and the COO.

Finally, the involvement of the Sustainability Committee in defining remuneration and incentive policies reflects
the Group's desire to direct its strategies on sustainability risks, in accordance with current regulations.

[GOV-3 DP 29¢]

The Bank's remuneration and incentive policies described in the Remuneration and Remuneration Report provide
for the commitment of ESG KPIs within the framework of Management by Objectives (MBO) and, if present, also
within the framework of long-term plans.

For the short-term incentive scheme, the objectives are also detailed in the Implementing Regulation ("Regulation
on Short-Term Incentive Schemes"), which falls within the remit of the Board of Directors. This includes the staff
performance appraisal forms and a more detailed description of the incentive systems of the other categories of
staff divided into homogeneous clusters, including salespeople.

The performance scorecard includes a predefined number of indicators, each of which is given a weight in
percentage terms on the total of at least 10% to ensure the significance of the objective and no more than 30% to
ensure an adequate weighting of the multiple objectives.

Variable remuneration accrues according to a performance curve on target achievement levels. The result
obtained from each KPI determines a weighted score, on a recognition curve varying between a minimum and a
maximum achievable. The sum of the weighted scores obtained corresponds to the performance achieved in
proportion to which, only if it is at least equal to a predetermined minimum score, is the amount of the incentive
quantified; the latter may in any case not exceed a predetermined maximum level.

As part of the at least annual review of policies, the Board of Directors analyses, with the support of the
Remuneration Committee, the gender neutrality of remuneration policies and any gender pay gap and its evolution
over time.

When implementing the annual bonus system, where appropriate, the Human Resources Department focuses its
attention on the gender pay gap by implementing the most significant improvement measures in favour of the less
represented gender, in order to reduce the gap.

The Bank's incentive systems, both short-term and long-term, are usually prepared as part of the Group's annual
remuneration and incentive policies and then described in the Report on Remuneration Policy and Remuneration
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Paid. The Policy is submitted to the Remuneration Committee for evaluation, to the Sustainability Committee as
far as it is concerned, and to the Board of Directors for resolution to submit it to the Shareholders' Meeting. Short-
term and, if present, long-term implementation regulations are prepared following the shareholders' meeting
resolution.

[GOV-3 DP 29¢]

More specifically, for FY 2024, sustainable finance objectives, which take into account, among other things, ESG
factors, and the clarification of the "gender neutrality of remuneration policies”, to be verified through annual
monitoring of the gender pay gap and the activation, if necessary, of the related corrective actions, have been
confirmed within short- term incentive schemes; these objectives have been extended to the whole of the Bank’s
population, including through a performance assessment system.

The objectives assigned to the Chief Executive Officer for 2024 represent a combination of quantitative and
qualitative criteria, referring to the Group's results, as well as qualitative aspects relating to strategic action. The
performance scorecard includes the declination of the following KPlIs:

e Economic-financial KPIs with a weight of 65%, structured over three specific drivers (profitability, credit
cost and efficiency), consistent with the Group's 2024 objectives;
e KPI of strategy and sustainability with a weight of 35%, which aim to assess the achievement of strategic
directives, as well as the achievement of corporate objectives in the ESG area.
The short-term variable remuneration cap payable to the CEO is set at 60% of fixed remuneration; variable
remuneration will accrue on the basis of the degree of achievement of objectives, with variable remuneration being
paid on a linear progression between 60% and 100%.

[GOV-3 DP 29d]

The percentage of variable remuneration linked to the achievement of sustainability-related targets and impacts
is, on average, 15%: within the short-term incentive scheme (STI), the overall weight of ESG KPIs varies between
10% and 20%, depending on the role held. Specifically, 20% is allocated to senior roles in the Npl business, 15% to
Identified Staff (excluding Npl), while for all other beneficiaries the expected weight is 10%°. The performance
appraisal system (Performup), which governs the Variable Result Bonus (ISR), also includes a KPI related to
sustainability, with a weight of 10%.

[GOV-3 DP 29¢]

Also for 2024, the provision of a Variable Result Bonus anchored to gender issues and the principles of
inclusiveness was confirmed. The agreement signed confirms the approach of the previous year, also thanks to a
more than positive return from employees as it encourages their greater involvement in achieving the company's
objectives and thus increasing the Group's profitability, productivity, competitiveness and efficiency.

In continuity with last year, therefore, again in 2024 the Agreement provides for an additional form of incentive of
up to 20% on top of the actual basic bonus, with the aim of rewarding distinctive conduct in terms of fairness,
transparency, ethics, collaboration among employees and quality of work, as well as a different, more favourable
structure of the employee welfare plan

[E1.GOV-3 DP 13]
[ESRS 2 DP 75 MDR-M]

The members of the Board of Directors, in line with current remuneration policies, receive fixed remuneration only.
As mentioned above, the part of variable remuneration for senior figures, linked to the achievement of
sustainability-related targets and impacts amounts to 15% on average.

9 For more details, refer to the 2024 Report on the Remuneration Policy and Remuneration Paid.
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The objectives assigned to the Chief Executive Officer combine quantitative and qualitative criteria including ESG
aspects. For the Chief Executive Officer and top management, the Group's ESG KPlIs include a specific indicator
linked to the decarbonisation targets of the financing portfolio, in line with the Group's communicated commitment
in this regard.

Statement on due diligence

[GOV-4 DP 30-32 AR 8-10]

Banca Ifis integrates the duty of care into its business processes and strategies, as better described in the
references below.

Core elements of due diligence Sections in the Sustainability Statement

1.1.3 Governance — ESRS 2 GOV-2
1.1.3 Governance — ESRS 2 GOV-3

1.1.4 Impact, risk and opportunity management: Double materiality
assessment; 2.2.2 Energy, climate change adaptation and mitigation
(Material impacts, risks and opportunities); 3.1 S1 - Own workforce
(Material impacts, risks and opportunities); 3.2 S2 - Workers in the
value chain (Material impacts, risks and opportunities); 3.3 S3 -
Affected communities (Material impacts, risks and opportunities);
3.4 S4 - Consumers and end-users (Material impacts, risks and
opportunities) - ESRS 2 SBM-3

a) Embedding due diligence in governance, 2.2.1 Transition Plan - ESRS E1-1

strategy and business model 2.2.2 Energy, Adaptation and Mitigation of Climate Change (The
Group's Approach and Policies) - ESRS E1-2

3.1.1 Health and safety; 3.1.2 Work-life balance; 3.1.3 Training and
skills development; 3.1.4 Equal treatment and opportunities for all;
3.1.5 Working conditions; 3.1.6 Other work-related rights (privacy)
(The Group's approach and policies) - ESRS S1-1

3.2.1 Worker-related rights in the value chain (Approach and
reference policies) - ESRS S2-1

3.4.1 Access to (quality) information; 3.4.2 Privacy; 3.4.3 Access to
products and services; 3.4.4 Responsible marketing practices
(Approach and reference policies) - ESRS S4-1

1.1.2 Strategy - ESRS 2 SBM-2
b) Engaging with affected stakeholders in all i i
key steps of the due diligence 3.1.7 Engagement processes - ESRS S1-2

3.4.5 Engagement processes - ESRS S4-2

1.1.4 Impact, risk and opportunity management: Double materiality

¢) Identifying and assessing adverse impacts assessment - ESRS IRO-1

2.2.2 Energy, Adaptation and Mitigation of Climate Change (The
Actions) - ESRS E1-3

3.1.1 Health and safety; 3.1.2 Work-life balance; 3.1.3 Training and
skills development; 3.1.4 Equal treatment and opportunities for all;
d) Taking actions to address those adverse 3.1.5 Working conditions; 3.1.6 Other work-related rights (privacy)
impacts (Actions) - ESRS S1-4

3.2.1 Worker-related rights in the value chain (Actions) - ESRS S2-4

3.4.1 Access to (quality) information; 3.4.2 Privacy; 3.4.3 Access to
products and services; 3.4.4 Responsible marketing practices
(Actions) - ESRS S4-4
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Core elements of due diligence Sections in the Sustainability Statement

2.2.3 Targets - ESRS E1-4

2.2.4 Metrics - ESRS E1-5 and ESRS E1-6
3.1.8 Channels - ESRS S1-3

3.1.9 Targets - ESRS S1-5

e) Tracking the effectiveness of these efforts 3.1.10 Metrics - ESRS S1-6, ESRS S1-8, ESRS S1-9, ESRS S1-12, ESRS
and communicating S1-14, ESRS S1-16 and ESRS S1-17

3.2.2 Channels - ESRS S2-3
3.2.3 Targets - ESRS S2-5
3.4.6 Channels - ESRS S4-3
3.4.7 Targets - ESRS S4-5

Risk management and internal controls over the Sustainability Statement

[GOV-5 DP 364]

The Group's internal control system consists of rules, procedures and organisational structures aimed at ensuring,
among other things, adherence to the business strategies, the effectiveness and efficiency of processes, and
compliance of operations with the law, supervisory regulations, and the policies, procedures and codes of conduct
adopted by the Group. The ESG internal control system was developed to meet the specificities of the
Sustainability Statement, following a similar approach to that adopted for financial reporting. This system is based
on a Group methodological framework, designed to ensure consistency and reliability, which consists of the
following main aspects:

e use of a coherent, centrally developed internal control system model, based on internationally recognised
methodological standards, such as the “Co.So. Framework ICSR”;
e updating and dissemination within the Group according to centrally established parameters.
The pillars of this model, applied to sustainability reporting, include:

e Company Level Controls: represent the structural elements of the control system, with particular reference
to the alignment of governance policies with ESG topics;

e Process controls: these concern the description of the organisational model, which includes the roles,
processes and controls necessary to ensure the quality of the Sustainability Statement. They also include
periodic monitoring of operational activities, with the aim of gathering evidence to assess the
effectiveness of internal controls over the Sustainability Statement environment.

All business operations, where envisaged, are subject to audits by the functions or business Areas that own the
various processes and operations (line controls or first line of defence), as well as by second and third line of
defence departments.

With regard to the management of the risk of an incorrect Sustainability Statement, the Group assesses the
completeness, adequacy and reliability of the system of internal controls with regard to financial reporting and the
Sustainability Statement.

The financial and sustainability risk management process and the Sustainability Statement within Banca Ifis
consists of the following sub-processes:

e identification;
e measurement;
e monitoring;
e attenuation;
e reporting.
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Following the identification of the qualitative and quantitative data points material to the Sustainability Statement
and the data points to be included in the scope of activity using the results of the double materiality assessment,
the Group has assessed the risks associated with the whole process.

[GOV-5 DP 36b]

For each applicable quantitative data point, a risk assessment of erroneous Sustainability Statements was carried
out. This assessment determines the level of inherent (potential) risk, taking into account aspects such as the
connection with changes in principles and required disclosure compared to the previous period, the nature and
volume of underlying transactions, and the presence of estimation processes.

Risks were also identified in terms of Assertion, in line with ESRS 1 (European Sustainability Reporting Standard
1) of the CSRD.

[GOV-5 DP 36¢]

By way of example, but not limited to, the main risks identified during the preliminary analysis carried out on the
2024 Sustainability Statement process are "inconsistency of the data/information reported within the IT platform

used for data collection with the supporting evidence’, "inconsistency and incompleteness of the players/sectors

integrated in the IROs long list", "incompleteness/inaccuracy of the double materiality assessment due to an

inappropriate assessment of the context’, "incompleteness/inaccuracy of the double materiality assessment due
to the lack of consideration of the contributions provided by the stakeholders involved".

Once the risks impacting the analysed processes have been identified, the activity continues by identifying the
controls that the Bank's structures have put in place to mitigate these risks.

These controls involve different approaches depending on the nature of the information (referred to as “data
points”) to be verified, specifically:

e fordata points of a qualitative nature, the identification of first-level controls is envisaged in order to verify
the conformity and completeness of the data with the requirements of the regulations;
e for data points of a quantitative nature, first-level controls are to be identified to mitigate the risk of an
erroneous Sustainability Statement;
e for processes relating to the Sustainability Statement, first-level controls are to be identified to mitigate
the risk of an erroneous Sustainability Statement.
For each identified risk, at least one 'key control' is identified, i.e. a control essential to prevent material errors that
cannot be intercepted by other controls. A test of design (ToD') is performed on each 'key control' to check its
suitability and, if positive, testing of operational effectiveness (‘'ToE') is carried out.

[GOV-5 DP 36d]

In the event of significant deviations that could affect the reliability of the Sustainability Statement, the Group
proceeds swiftly to request that the anomaly be remedied to the relevant structure and to monitor the
implementation of the required corrective measures, with a view to continually improving and updating the internal
control system.

[GOV-5 DP 36¢]

The Manager Charged with preparing the company’s financial reports shares the annual Sustainability Statement
with the Chief Executive Officer and then presents it to the Board of Directors, the Control and Risk Committee and
the Board of Statutory Auditors.

The report describes the verification activities carried out, their results and any shortcomings found.
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1.1.4 Impact, risk and opportunity management: Double materiality assessment
[SBM-3 DP 48a]

Financial Financial
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Financial Financial
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Further details on the material impacts, risks and opportunities for the Banca Ifis Group are discussed in the
respective thematic chapters.

[SBM-3 DP 48f]

In order to gain an ever better understanding of the environment in which it operates, Banca Ifis periodically carries
out work to identify and assess the impact of climate and environmental risks on the entire ecosystem in which
the Group operates, to ensure its resilience. This process, which includes an initial analysis of market trends, a
subsequent sectoral in-depth analysis and an assessment of the risks and opportunities associated with the
different segments of each sector's value chain, aims to provide a solid information basis to guide strategic
decisions related to the management of these risks, promoting a sustainable and conscious approach to climate
and environmental challenges.

Based on the evidence from these analyses, Banca Ifis will direct its strategy and business processes to
strengthen its resilience, mitigating material impacts, managing risks related to the ecological transition and
seizing opportunities offered by sustainable business models. This translates into an evolution of the commercial
offer, favouring the financing of sectors and companies with less exposure to environmental risks, the integration
of ESG criteria in credit assessment processes and the investment in low-impact solutions for its operations, thus
contributing to the sustainable development of the ecosystem in which it operates.

[SBM-3 DP 48b]

Impacts, risks and opportunities identified as material for Banca Ifis are integrated into its business model through
concrete actions and targeted strategies. Specifically, with reference to environmental issues, and therefore to the
effects of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, current and projected, generated directly and indirectly, the Banca
Ifis Group is committed to implementing concrete actions to limit negative effects and generate positive impacts
to reduce its environmental impact and promote sustainable transition. The adoption of specific initiatives, such
as improving energy efficiency and supporting sustainable mobility, mitigates climate risks and enhances market
opportunities.

In the value chain, the Group promotes innovative financial products for the sustainable transition of SMEs. The
strategy also includes strengthening governance on ESG risks, a focus on the workforce with welfare and gender
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equality initiatives, and investments in digital technologies to ensure transparency, security and better access to
services.

Environment

Specifically, with regard to environmental issues, the Group is committed to implementing various actions that
generate direct and indirect impacts, in order to limit negative effects and generate positive impacts.

For example, the Group offers itself as a partner to accompany its customers on the path to sustainable transition,
having also defined Net Zero targets in relation to the emissions of its portfolio complemented by decarbonisation
targets for the main financed sectors. Simultaneously, the Group also aims to reduce its own emissions. It also
identifies the business implications of climate stress and the associated socio-economic transition, seizing
emerging opportunities, including through the proper identification, understanding and management of risks (in
line with the Materiality Assessment exercise carried out) and climate and environmental opportunities that the
Group may encounter.

With regard to the issue of biodiversity, on the other hand, the double materiality assessment shows, on the one
hand, positive impacts resulting from financing, and, on the other hand, reputational and credit risks linked to the
loss of biodiversity. In response, the Bank adopts an integrated strategic approach in its ESG Policy and Credit
Policy, promoting the conservation of ecosystems.

Social

The in-house workforce is one of the key elements of the Group's strategy and business model, and the positive
impacts it generates in turn contribute to the continuous improvement of the strategy itself, as demonstrated by
the close connection between the impacts on the in-house workforce and the Bank's Business Plan.

The Group also carries out its activities with respect for the environment and human rights, constantly striving to
establish a reliable and inclusive approach to minimise negative impacts, respecting both internal workers and
those along the value chain.

Finally, special attention is paid to the development and promotion of the communities and territory in which the
Group operates, through the generation of material impacts and opportunities closely linked to the corporate
strategy and aligned with the mission and objectives of the Kaleidos Social Impact Lab. Similarly, the Group's
focus on customers and consumers is also read with a view to sustainability, for example through the adoption of
an ethical and sustainable debt collection model aimed at the financial re-inclusion of debtors.

Governance

Finally, with regard to aspects relating to corporate culture, the Group continues to pursue and disseminate the
principles of fairness, professional ethics and its corporate values, which are fundamental to the definition of the
Group's integrity.

[SBM-3 DP 48ci,cii,ciii,civ]

The double materiality assessment conducted by the Group led to the identification of 89 material impacts, risks
and opportunities, appropriately described within the thematic ESRS chapters. These were identified by
considering all operations, activities, entities and processes involved in the life cycle of the services offered, both
upstream and downstream, also taking into account counterparts such as indirect suppliers and end users.

Moreover, the Group's material impacts are directly reflected on people and the environment: on the one hand,
they generate benefits through initiatives such as the renovation of buildings and support for the sustainable
transition of SMEs; on the other hand, they contribute to the generation of indirect GHG emissions (e.g. financing-
related emissions).

114



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited S_mor‘keb
i~ stor oge

CERTIFIED

Banca Ifis Group | 2024 Consolidated Financial Statements and Re

These impacts stem from the strategy and business model, which focus on sustainable growth, digitisation and
inclusiveness. Their effects manifest themselves both in the short term, with operational and energy
improvements, and in the long term, with innovation and social inclusion projects. In particular, impacts arise
mainly from the Group's activities and relationships with counterparties along the value chain, such as suppliers
and customers.

[SBM-3 DP 48d]

With regard to current financial effects, a study was conducted in 2024 on the effects of climate and environmental
risks on credit risk, analysing the possible impacts that climate events could cause on risk parameters (PD and
LGD) and consequently on the ECL of the performing portfolio. The analyses carried out showed that, with
reference to the overall scenario of 2024 (weighted 60% as 'baseline’ and 40% as ‘adverse’), the impact of climate
risks on the Banca Ifis Group's risk parameters (PD and LGD) is to be considered entirely marginal at the level of
ECL increase. Notwithstanding the fact that the Group will continue in the near future to update analyses to assess
climate risks and measure their impacts, given their negligible nature, in preparing the Annual Report as at 31
December 2024, these effects have not been incorporated into the determination of the ECL through risk
parameter adjustments or a specific overlay.

For more details, refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Part E - Information on Risks and
Related Hedging Policies.

Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities

[IRO-1 DP 53a,c]

The Banca Ifis Group conducted the double materiality assessment to identify the material sustainability impacts,
risks and opportunities (known as IROs) in order to integrate them into strategic decisions.

The double materiality assessment has two interconnected dimensions:

e materiality of impact (inside-out): a sustainability issue is considered material when it produces impacts,
actual or potential, positive or negative, on people or the environment in the short, medium or long term.
Impacts may arise from direct business activities or from the value chain, including products and
services offered and business relationships;

e financial materiality (outside-in): an issue is considered material from a financial point of view when it
has or could have significant effects on the company's economic performance, financial position, cash
flows, access to finance or cost of capital.

The identification of impacts, risks and opportunities was done through a top-down approach, focusing on the
Group's core business, i.e. banking. Although the analysis considered all entities included in the scope of the
Sustainability Statement, the focus remained mainly on the core banking business.

In addition, the process was conducted in accordance with ESRS 1 'General Requirements' of the European
Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS), which constitutes the framework for sustainability reporting of an
entity as a whole, and EFRAG's IG1 Double Materiality Guidelines. These tools provide guidance on the process of
assessing double materiality; therefore, the Group has established an ESRS-compliant double materiality
assessment process adapted to its specific circumstances.
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[IRO-1 DP 53b,c]

In particular, according to the EFRAG Guidelines - 1G1, the implementation of double materiality assessment
requires the execution of four fundamental steps™®:

1. understanding the context of the organisation;

2. identification of current and potential IROs related to sustainability topics;
3. evaluation and determination of material IROs;

4. reporting against the material IROs.

[IRO-1 DP 53bi]

1. Understanding the context of the organisation

By examining the information collected, Banca Ifis identified dependencies and resources, business relationships
and geographical presence, considering direct operations, the upstream and downstream value chain, and the
various stakeholders involved.

The internal analysis examined:

¢ the Bank's business model, related business strategy, business activities, market trends and customer
solutions;
e annual financial reports;
e the 2023 Non-Financial Statement;
e other available information and external reports;
e additional documentation, such as the Risk Catalogue and the list of identified impacts for the 2023 NFS;
e the Code of Ethics, the ESG Policy, the Environmental Policy, the Organisation, Management and Control
Model pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001 (OMM) and the various policies relating to process and
sustainability topics;
e the corporate website of Banca Ifis.
In order to conduct the double materiality assessment process in a comprehensive and regulatory-compliant
manner, the bank also considered its existing relationships with its suppliers, customers and internal and external
stakeholders (such as employees, investors, affected communities), focusing mainly on the ltalian territory, where
Banca Ifis conducts almost all of its activities. In addition, special attention was paid to any factors that generate
or could generate negative impacts on people, the environment and society.

[IRO-1 DP 53bii]

Impacts arising from the Bank's activities or its business relationships were identified through a preliminary
document analysis and subsequently assessed in the double materiality assessment through input from the
stakeholders involved.

The following activities were conducted in the course of the external analysis to identify potential new risks and
impacts:

e in-depth analysis of industry benchmarks, carried out by studying the main annual and sustainability
reports of peer and competitor companies in the financial sector;

e consultation of authoritative references to ensure a comprehensive and informed approach to
sustainability and responsible governance (see 1.1 ESRS 2 - General Information, section 1.1.4 Managing
Impacts, Risks and Opportunities: Double materiality assessment, DP 53g).

10 2024 represents the first year of reporting on the double materiality assessment process; therefore, appropriate monitoring of
risks, impacts and opportunities will be structured during 2025.
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In addition, further relevant aspects were taken into account when analysing the context, including the legal and
regulatory landscape, public documentation such as media reports, and scientific articles and publications
exploring general trends in sustainability.

The systematic approach adopted has created a solid basis for managing sustainability-related risks and
opportunities, integrating a strategic vision and an in-depth understanding of the business environment and its
relationships.

[IRO-1 DP 53biii]
Stakeholder engagement

The mapping of internal and external stakeholders constituted a key step in the process of double materiality
assessment. The Group has identified an exhaustive list of internal and external stakeholders with the aim of
ensuring an integrated and inclusive approach.

In particular, the double materiality assessment was initially carried out internally by the Group through the active
involvement of various categories of internal stakeholders, i.e. corporate functions and departments that are
strategic and essential for the assessment of IROs. These include Risk Management, Sustainability, Business,
General Services, Human Resources, Compliance, Procurement, Finance, General Counsel. These functions have
made essential contributions to the identification and assessment of IROs, bringing specific expertise and key
perspectives to ensure a comprehensive and thorough analysis.

Subsequently, the company conducted an analysis addressed to external stakeholders with a twofold objective:
on the one hand, to obtain feedback on identified impacts, risks and opportunities, and on the other hand, to
support and reinforce the Group's assessment of double materiality.

Finally, the Group's top management was involved, who, thanks to their holistic and informed view of sustainability
issues in relation to the strategy and business model, provided feedback and considerations that contributed to
the consolidation of the various assessments and the final outcomes of the double materiality assessment.

In line with regulatory requirements, Banca Ifis has divided its external stakeholders into two main categories:

e impacted stakeholders: individuals or groups whose interests may be affected, positively or negatively, by
Banca Ifis's activities and business relationships along the entire value chain, such as customers,
communities, the environment, consumers and suppliers;

e users of the Sustainability Statement: stakeholders of sustainability data, both financial and non-financial,
such as current and potential investors, lenders and creditors (e.g. asset managers and lenders), business
partners, trade unions and social partners, civil society and NGOs, governments, regulators, academic
analysts and experts, industry associations, media, ESG assessors, government agencies.

Following the mapping and identification of the main stakeholders, the Bank adopted specific approaches to
engage with the respective stakeholders and users of the Sustainability Statement, taking into account the
peculiarities of each category and using differentiated tools such as thematic workshops and one-to-one
meetings, all aimed at gathering considerations and assessments in the area of double materiality.

[IRO-1 DP 53c,ci,ciii]
2. Identification of actual and potential IROs related to sustainability topics

In order to effectively identify the impacts, risks and opportunities to be analysed, the Group has adopted a
structured approach consisting of the following steps:

e identification of topics and sub-topics for each ESRS;

e integration of relevant information from previous materiality assessments, existing reports or analyses
(e.g. human rights impact assessments and climate scenario analyses) and external inputs, such as World
Economic Forum and OECD guidelines;
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e consideration of the risks identified in the Group Risk Management Risk Inventory, including credit, market,
operational, reputational, strategic and compliance risks;

e mapping of actors in the value chain, both upstream and downstream, analysing stakeholders such as
shareholders, employees, suppliers and customers. Data was collected on the size, activities and
geographic areas of the companies with which Banca Ifis does business, in order to identify material risk
areas and related IROs;

e assessment of the ways in which impacts translate into risks and opportunities, bearing in mind that not
all risks and opportunities are strictly related to Banca Ifis's activities or impacts, some of which may be
due to the environment in which the Group operates or dependencies related to natural, human and social
resources;

e analysis of actual and potential IROs, including consideration of the time horizon associated with each;

e review of the due diligence process, in line with the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights
and the OECD Guidelines, to ensure adherence to the highest international standards.

In the double materiality process, the Group once assessed individual IROs through the relevant thresholds™ and
methodologies, aggregated the results of the IROs for the reporting topics, prioritising them on the basis of the
value of the impacts, in order to give importance to the risks and, finally, to the opportunities.

In order to identify and prioritise sustainability risks, the Bank made use of the analyses and findings of the
Materiality Assessment, i.e. the analysis of the significance of climate and environmental risks conducted by the
Group's Risk Management function, which highlighted the correlations between sustainability risks, in particular
climate and environmental risks, and the traditional risks of the banking system.

[IRO-1 DP 53b]

3. Evaluation and determination of material IROs

[IRO-1 DP 53b,biv]

To determine the materiality of impact, the Group assessed the significance of impacts, both positive and negative,
taking several factors into consideration. These include magnitude, which measures the severity of the impacts
or the benefits caused by them; extent, which assesses how widespread the impacts are; irremediability,
considered only for negative impacts, which indicates whether and to what extent the negative impacts could be
remedied, for example, by restoring the environment or people impacted to their previous state; and likelihood,
which expresses how likely it is that such impacts will occur.

In the assessment of potential negative impacts on human rights, the severity of the impact is given priority over
its likelihood, while the determination of financial materiality is based on the joint analysis of the magnitude of the
economic effects and the likelihood of their materialisation.

In addition to the parameters described above, the evaluation process included an in-depth analysis of further key
elements in order to ensure a comprehensive understanding of double materiality. Amongst these, particular
attention was paid to impacted stakeholders, i.e. individuals or groups affected by the company's activities, to
time horizons, divided into short, medium and long term to ensure an integrated and time-projected view, and to
the value chain, with a specific focus on the most critical geographical areas and business relationships. This
analysis allowed for a more precise contextualisation of impacts and opportunities across the entire spectrum of
the company's activities.

11 The preliminary threshold for assessing the materiality of each sustainability topic was set at ‘4" for both impact materiality
and financial materiality.
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To identify material sustainability issues, the Bank also assessed the list of IROs taking into account both actual
impacts (gross, net of mitigation measures) and potential impacts, considering the effect of preventive measures
to avoid future impacts.

[IRO-1 DP 53cii]

With regard to financial materiality, the magnitude, i.e. the magnitude of the impacts should a risk or opportunity
materialise, and the likelihood of these risks and opportunities materialising, were taken into account.

[IRO-1 DP 53biv,c,ciil

Each impact, risk and opportunity was given a score on a scale of '1' to '4', where '1' indicates a low rating and '4'
a very high rating. This scoring system was used to measure both the severity of impacts and the magnitude of
risks and opportunities, with a focus on impacts that had already occurred, which were automatically assigned the
maximum score of '4'. The likelihood rating scale followed the same criterion, with scores from '1' (low probability)
to '4' (high probability).

Finally, the Group has established quantitative and qualitative thresholds to determine the materiality of the issues
to be disclosed, using risk management processes to define the thresholds and verify whether the impacts are
significant for disclosure. More specifically, Banca Ifis defined materiality thresholds through a three-step process:
initial identification of thresholds based on the scores obtained, verification of consistency with stakeholders, and
final review, if necessary, to ensure optimal alignment with identified priorities.

The threshold for defining the materiality of each sustainability issue was set at '4' for both impact and financial
materiality, using the calculation methodology described above. In accordance with ESRS 1 and the Guideline,
once individual IROs have been assessed according to appropriate thresholds and methodologies, results can be
aggregated for reporting topics. Prioritisation was therefore applied by initially considering the value of impacts,
followed by risks and, finally, opportunities. The threshold for defining the materiality of each sustainability issue
was set at '4' for both impact and financial materiality, using the calculation methodology described above. In
accordance with ESRS 1 and the Guideline, once individual IROs have been assessed according to appropriate
thresholds and methodologies, results were able to be aggregated for reporting topics. Prioritisation was therefore
applied by initially considering the value of impacts, followed by risks and, finally, opportunities.

[IRO-1 DP 53d]

As previously described (see 1.1 ESRS 2 - General Information, Section 1.1.3 Governance, DP 26), the results of
the double materiality assessment process were brought to the attention of and approved by the governing bodies,
such as the Sustainability Committee and the Board of Directors. In addition, the Sustainability Statement is
certified by the Manager Charged with preparing the company’s financial reports. To this end, a special internal
control system was set up to verify the data and information reported in the disclosure. This system has been
integrated into specific operational procedures.

[IRO-1 DP 53¢€]

The Group conducted impact, risk and opportunity assessments through the direct involvement of specific
corporate functions, ensuring a structured and thorough approach. In order to assess the overall risk profile and
optimise the risk management and integration processes, the risks identified in the Risk Inventory provided by
Group Risk Management were also integrated into the analysis for an overall and consistent view. These include
credit risks, market risks, operational risks, reputational risks, strategic risks and compliance risks.

Sustainability risks were prioritised over other types of risks, in view of their relevance to stakeholders and the
results of the assessment of their financial materiality. Therefore, the process of identifying, analysing and
managing these risks has been integrated into the overall risk management system, contributing to the definition
of the corporate risk profile.

The integration of these factors examines risk appetite, ICAAP, credit and market risk management strategies,
liquidity impact, credit risk assessment models and provisions.
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[IRO-1 DP 53f]

With regard to opportunities, in identifying and evaluating them, the Group considered the strategic objectives
defined in the D.0O.E.S. Business Plan, consistently managed within the Group's processes.

[IRO-1 DP 53¢]

As part of the double materiality assessment, Banca Ifis considered several authoritative sources, including
FTSE4Good Index Series, Global Risk Report 2024, MSCI ESG Indices, CDP, MIB ESG Index, Integrated Governance
Services, Standard Ethics Indices, Bloomberg Gender-Equality Index 2022 (GEI), World Economic Forum, OECD,
STOXX® Sustainability Indices, UNEP FI - Impact Radar and Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB).

In addition, the Risk Management function's insights were based on the risk drivers identified by infoproviders
such as Moody's and ENCORE.

[IRO-1 DP 53f]

The process of identifying, evaluating and managing opportunities was carried out by involving the individual
corporate functions for the areas of their competence, which formulated considerations on the basis of the overall
process of managing the topics.

[E1.IRO-1 DP 204]

With the aim of identifying climate change impacts, the Group, through discussions with the relevant corporate
functions, analysed the company's activities and the total greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions generated by the
organisation. The analysis revealed two main impacts:

e generation of finance-related indirect emissions (Scope 3);
e generation of direct and indirect GHG emissions resulting in negative environmental sustainability
performance (Scope 1 and 2).
In addition, a further climate change-related impact was identified, related to the improvement of the working
environment through the green renovation of company buildings.

[E1.IRO-1 DP 20b,bi,c,ci]

In order to ensure an adequate integration of climate and environmental risks within the Risk Management
Framework, the Risk Management function conducts a materiality assessment for traditional risk categories
involving a quantitative assessment, using various analytical tools. The Climate & Environmental (C&E) Materiality
Assessment is conducted annually with the aim of updating the risk management framework in light of portfolio
developments and identifying any new risks arising from climate and environmental events.

Materiality Assessment involves identifying causal mechanisms that transfer risk from climate or environmental
events to traditional risks and thus to credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, business risk, market risk and
reputational risk. In the course of 2024, the analysis was also extended to environmental risks (biodiversity,
pollution, water use, waste management) analysed both from a physical (through georeferencing) and transitional
(through a sectoral approach) point of view.

[E1.IRO-1 DP 20b,bii,c,cii]

The process adopted by Banca Ifis consists of three main activities aimed at identifying and assessing climate
and environmental (C&E) risks material to the Bank.

1. Development of the C&E risk taxonomy: the first phase consists of the creation of a C&E taxonomy, with
the identification of the main risk drivers linked to two main categories:

e Climate risks divided into:
- Transition risks: related to technological, regulatory and market developments (e.g. changes in
regulations, technological innovations and market perception);
- Physical hazards: distinguished between acute (e.g. floods, landslides, fires) and chronic (e.g. sea
level rise, drought).
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e Environmental risks: divided up into:
- Transition risks: similar to climate risks, influenced by technology, regulation and market
sentiment;
- Physical hazards: both acute and chronic.
2. ldentification of transmission channels and time horizon: this phase involves the qualitative analysis of
the propagation of risks and the definition of their time horizon, with particular attention to the main
impacts on the Bank.

3. Definition of Materiality Assessment: in the final stage, the materiality assessment of C&E risks is
carried out, taking into account all identified risk types.

[E1.IRO-1 AR 13]

In order to ensure a better fit with the Group's specific business models, risks were grouped into macro-areas, also
taking into account the guidelines provided by the European Central Bank (ECB) on the internal capital adequacy
assessment process (ICAAP) and liquidity assessment process (ILAAP).

In particular, the analysis of physical risks considered adverse weather events, both chronic and acute, identifying
those most relevant to Banca Ifis's operating environment. The assessment of their significance was conducted
in relation to potential impacts on traditional risks, which in turn were examined through various factors, including
portfolio geo-referencing, business operations and strategic assets for business continuity.

With regard to transition risks, the analysis was carried out at sector level, identifying the sectors most exposed
to specific environmental issues, such as biodiversity, pollution, water use and waste management. Again,
potential impacts were assessed in relation to traditional risks, providing an integrated picture of their significance.

This structured approach enables Banca Ifis to effectively understand and manage climate and environmental
risks, integrating them into its decision-making processes and risk management strategies. The adoption of
analytical tools such as sector heatmapping and geo-referenced analysis ensures precise identification of the
most exposed areas, facilitating the implementation of targeted mitigation measures.

The above analyses were conducted in line with the Bank's membership of the Net-Zero Banking Alliance (NZBA).

Materiality of climate and environmental risks

After the preliminary mapping of climate and environmental risks, the materiality assessment also includes a
detailed examination of the channels of transmission of C&E risks to traditional risks, the time horizons with which
C&E risks manifest themselves given Banca Ifis's operations, and an assessment of the risks identified as material.
Below is a summary of the main risks material to Banca Ifis.

121



=

emarket
sdir storage

CERTIFIED

°o i

Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited

Banca Ifis Group | 2024 Consolidated Financial Statements and Re

I
i

Credit risk

Climate
physical risk

Business continuity of
the company

and Npl/salary-backed
loans realignment plans

[E1.IRO-1 AR11,12]

horizon

An acute physical risk can lead to disruptions in the value chain
and lead to a decrease in sales. Similarly, physical damage to
plants could affect normal operating capacity and thus the
company's future financial solvency

Medium-
term

Commercial and residential properties could be damaged by
acute or chronic climatic events, impacting the valuation of
buildings and adjacent properties. In addition, the ability of
borrowers to repay their loans may be impaired due to the

operational inability to continue their income-generating
activities (e.g. property used as a pharmacy, main residence)

Medium-
term

Climate
transition
risks

Repayment capacity on
corporate loans

and Npl/salary-backed
loans realignment plans

Technology: Reduced competitiveness due to lack of
investment in new technologies with lower emissions impact,
resulting in higher probability of default

Politics and regulations: Reduced profits for high-carbon
companies due to greenhouse gas emission taxes, which in
turn can affect access to and the cost of financing and the
ability to repay debts by increasing the probability of default

Market Sentiment: consumer preferences may further push
demand towards greener opportunities and affect the
profitability of companies, worsening the PD of those

companies that are not aligned with new green market trends

Medium-
term

Value of real estate on
secured exposures

Technology: energy-intensive real estate (e.g., high APE ratings)
may lead to a depreciation of the property in the event of a call
on the guarantee with an impact on the LGD

Policy and regulations: the value of the collateral could be
reduced in the case of policies that impose legal limits related
to the degree of energy efficiency, worsening the borrower's
creditworthiness towards the bank and impacting LGD

Market Sentiment: increased demand for energy-efficient
housing may negatively affect the value of low-energy-efficient
collaterals and impact LGD

Medium-
term

Environmental
physical risk

Business continuity of
the company

Companies operating in areas vulnerable to environmental risks
may suffer significant economic losses due to the degradation
of ecosystems. This degradation can be caused both by acute

events, such as natural disasters, and by chronic, gradual

changes. Such phenomena can compromise the natural
resources required for business operations, adversely affect
production and increase operating costs, jeopardising long-

term profitability and the associated repayment capacity

Medium-
term

Environmental
transition
risks

Repayment capacity on
corporate loans

Companies exposed to environmental risks can suffer
significant economic consequences due to the failure to adopt
environmentally friendly technologies, the delay in aligning with

regulations to reduce pollution, and the increasing scarcity of

natural resources such as water and biodiversity. These risks

may materialise in economic losses resulting from regulatory
sanctions or increased operating costs due to reduced

availability of essential resources. Moreover, inefficiency in
managing these aspects can make companies less competitive
in a market increasingly oriented towards environmental
sustainability

Medium-
term
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The study of the effects of climate and environmental risks on the credit risk of the Group’s portfolio followed two
complementary approaches that guarantee, on one hand, the highlighting of aspects linked to the peculiarities of
the segments to which the Group is exposed, and on the other the analysis of the geographical distribution of its
loans, highlighting particular concentrations in areas at risk of adverse events. The procedure carried out fostered
the development of new knowledge and the dissemination of an awareness of such risks that the Group pursues
with regard to both its employees and its various stakeholders.

With regard to transition risks, there are several transmission channels affecting credit risk. In order to capture
these aspects, a risk mapping exercise was carried out, which led to the assignment of a risk level according to
the sector to which each counterparty in the portfolio belongs (via ATECO code).

Also with reference to transition risks, another line of analysis was that of real estate securing loans granted by
the Banca Ifis Group subsidiary Banca Credifarma. In this case, the effect of transition risk on credit risk is closely
linked to the energy class of the real estate pledged as collateral. In these terms, a detailed analysis of the
transition risk was carried out on Banca Credifarma's securitised portfolio by assessing the EPCs of the properties,
with the aim of taking into account the possible devaluation on property values in the event of resale, due to the
market discount applied for low energy class properties.

As far as physical risks are concerned, the impact was quantified by georeferencing the portfolio. The analysis
carried out by the Group made it possible to associate physical risk at the level of individual counterparties on the
basis of their geographical location (at a municipal level), identifying risks that are relevant to the context in which
it operates. In addition, georeferencing methods were refined with reference to counterparties belonging to the
automotive sector (given its importance in the Group's portfolio and in the decarbonisation strategies defined by
Banca Ifis), considering the global location of production sites.

The materiality assessment of climate and environmental (C&E) risks on credit risk took the form of a graphical
representation of the risk (a “heatmap”) showing the significance of the associated transition and physical risk for
each segment. More specifically, the risk assessments conducted for the purposes of the double materiality
assessment were enhanced by the internal analyses performed by the Risk Management function and the results
of the assessment performed by the same function. The materiality assessment showed a share of exposures of
~22% to segments with “High” or “Very high” climate and environmental risk; overall, the degree of significance of
C&E risks on credit risk was assessed by Banca Ifis as moderate.

[E1.IRO-1 AR 13]

During 2024, in addition to updating the data downloaded from the various infoproviders already used in previous
years, additional analysis indicators were integrated to define the sectoral transition risk for environmental topics,
in particular:

e information on the topics of 'Pollution (Air, Soil, Water)', 'Biodiversity (Disturbance, Ecosystem Use)' and
'Water Use' was retrieved from the ENCORE infoprovider (https://encorenature.org/en);

e these variables were integrated with the climate information already retrieved from Moody's on 'Carbon
Transition (GHG Emissions)' and ‘Waste and Pollution (Circular Economy)' for the construction of the
climate and environmental transition score.

As far as physical risk is concerned, hazard indicators are collected at provincial level by the infoprovider THINK
HAZARD and supplemented with more detailed information at municipal level on certain aspects relevant to the
Italian territory, such as floods, landslides, volcanoes and sea level rise, based on sources such as ISTAT, ISPRA
and INGV. An analysis provided by NATURA2000, which maps Italian areas of high biodiversity in relation to
habitats, species and natural parks, was also incorporated in 2024. The analysis assesses the potential impact of
companies located in the vicinity of these areas, differentiating it by economic macro-sector.
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Business risk

[E1.IRO-1 AR 11,12]

Time

Risk type Transmission channel Description hori
orizon

The Bank operates in sectors that may be affected by

Transition Profitability linked to transitional climate risks related to the transition to a

. sustainable economy, as well as the impact of acute and Medium-/
and physical | segments exposed to ) : - . .
) . chronic physical risks that may affect portfolio counterparties long-term
risks C&E risks s g
and affect the Bank's ability to generate margins in these
sectors

The analysis uses the segment-level credit risk materiality exercise and the segmentation of the portfolio into high-
risk Climate & Environmental (C&E) segments as a starting point. On the basis of the counterparties in each
segment, the relevant net banking income is associated and the percentage of revenue of the total generated in
high C&E risk segments is calculated. The 2024 analysis shows that about 10% of the Group's net banking income
is generated on high C&E risk segments.

Market risk

To date, the Group's market risk is not material, amounting to approximately 1% of risk-weighted assets (RWAs)
and being mainly composed of transactions for economic hedging and/or developing the Group's investment
portfolio.

In this context, carefully implemented risk monitoring and consequent risk management activities aim at
containing portfolio volatility and hedging relevant risks deriving from exogenous sources. The Bank conducts
recurring analyses of the materiality of climate and environmental risks in relation to the sovereign portfolio.

[E1.IRO-1 AR 11,12]

Time
horizon

Risk type Transmission channel Description

The bank's credit risk with respect to sovereign exposures may
increase in the event of acute or chronic weather events, as they

) ) . impact the income of sovereign states:
Physical Sovereign securities
risks portfolio - Lower tax revenues from affected businesses (e.g.,

decreasing the physical capital of companies) and
higher expenditures to deal with the economic effects
of physical weather events (e.g., repair or prevention of
damage to infrastructure or public assets and increased
social costs)

Long-term

Technology: climate change mitigation and adaptation policies
also derive from necessary public investment, implying an
increase in public spending

Transition Sovereign securities Politics and regulation: sovereign states may face higher
risks portfolio litigation costs as efforts towards a sustainable transition
progress

Medium-
term

Market sentiment: changes in consumer preferences, a weaker
overall economy and lower fiscal income could have an impact
on sovereign riskiness
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[E1.IRO-1 AR 13]

In particular, numerous IMF (International Monetary Fund) research articles have shown that climate and
environmental risk is able to influence the risk of sovereign default, reflecting on government bond spreads. Banca
Ifis assesses this risk according to the INFORM index, developed by the Disaster Risk Management Knowledge
Centre and also mentioned by the European Commission.

Based on the results of the materiality assessment, no changes to the current practices in force are currently
necessary. However, the Bank will continue to evaluate the adoption of additional safeguards, aimed at integrating
the analysis of C&E risks into the relevant investment/disinvestment choices.

Operational risk

[E1.IRO-1 AR 11,12]

orizon

Compromise of The Bank could be significantly impacted by the impairment of
operating sites, prop. its operating sites, including those of its Foreign Subsidiaries, Medium-
data centres and major branches and data centres exposed to high climatic risks, in term
Physical IT outsourcers addition to the business continuity analyses already in place.
risks
. Due to extreme weather events, the Bank could be exposed to
Ex-lege suspension of L ; . ) )
possible interventions by the legislator to support the population | Medium-
payment flows for - .
that could lead to the suspension of instalments and/or term
extreme events
repayment of Npl/salary-backed loans repayment plans.
Transition Lawsuits by NGOs / A possible climate lawsuit by activists/NGOs could lead to
. . . R Short-term
risks Activists fines/compensation in litigation.

The study of the effects of climate and environmental risks on operational and reputational risks was carried out
with reference to both physical and transitional risks, by assessing on one hand the potential impacts of acute
weather events in financial and business continuity terms, and on the other hand the negative effects that could
be generated for the reputation of the Banca Ifis Group following conduct or business practices in conflict with
ambitions and the reference regulatory framework.

The occurrence of extreme climatic and environmental events could, in fact, jeopardise the Group's business
continuity with serious repercussions on the Group's main operating sites (including branches), on those of
outsourcers critical for stability (e.g., Mestre, Milan, Parma, and Padua) and on the main data centre sites
(proprietary or third-party).

In this context, in order to estimate the relevance of infrastructure in terms of profitability and business volumes
generated, several proxies were calculated, such as the contribution of the individual branch to net banking
income, weighted for probability of occurrence of climate events or the number of staff operating at the Group's
main offices.

[E1.IRO-1 AR 13]

From the point of view of operational risks, various scenarios resulting from the occurrence of acute climate and
environmental events were analysed. In order to quantify the impact on Banca Ifis's portfolios, a provincial geo-
referencing of exposure was considered, identifying the provinces with the highest concentration and therefore
most exposed to the effects of C&E risks.

The final result of the climate and environmental risk materiality assessment is a heatmap, constructed based on
an approach that considers impact analysis by probability and is linked, on the basis of potential materiality, to the
different departments of the Bank and the Subsidiaries.
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Analyses show that the most economically significant branches, most exposed to climate and environmental risks,
are located in the provinces of Milan, Pisa, Naples, Pescara and Rome, accounting for approximately 33% of net
banking income; in all, foreign subsidiaries are exposed to low climate risks.

The update of the Materiality Assessment exercise introduced the following innovations in relation to operational
risk. In this regard the Banca Ifis Group:

e has incorporated the “Business Continuity Plan” according to the specificities of the extreme climatic and
environmental events analysed. In addition, the Bank extended the analysis to include the potential
impacts to the Group resulting from the impairment of the operations of the foreign subsidiaries;

e it also assessed, through geo-referencing of customers in the Npl portfolio, the potential impact of
possible interventions by the legislator to support populations affected by extreme weather events that
may lead to the suspension of the repayment of Npl and salary-backed loan realignment plans. The most
economically significant operations exposed to high climate and environmental risks are located in the
provinces of Rome, Latina, Naples, Salerno, and Turin, for a total of ~23% of the perimeter considered (Npl
and Cap.ltal.Fin.), with an overall medium-high risk. On the remaining approximately 77% of the perimeter
distributed throughout the country, the Bank is exposed to medium to low climate and environmental risks;

e it applied a risk assessment methodology that involves identifying relevant stakeholders sensitive to
potential lawsuits by NGOs/activists, quantifying the degree of sensitivity and assessing the impact and
likelihood of occurrence, in order to obtain an overall score.

Reputational risk

[E1.IRO-1 AR 12]

horizon

Exposure to high C&E The Bank may be exposed to investors and stakeholders on the
risk segments development of the share of exposure to high-risk C&E sectors

Short-term

Having ambitious targets on NZBA's emission-intensive priority
sectors could expose the bank to a misalignment that could Short-term
have a significant impact on multiple stakeholders

Non-alignment with Net
Zero targets

Transition Non-compliance with The Bank must be aligned with C&E risk expectations and
risks C&E regulations and evolving regulations in the European Union, which may lead to
expectations further inspections by supervisory authorities and fines for non- Short-term
compliance
Risk of greenwashing the
product offering The Bank is exposed to the risk of disclosing 'green’ products Short-term

without sufficient evidence of their 'green’ impact

[E1.IRO-1 AR 13]

With regard to reputational risk, scenarios have been identified, such as non-compliance with C&E regulations or
non-alignment with decarbonisation objectives, which may generate risk through stakeholders sensitive to the
topics impacted.

More specifically, to analyse the climate and environmental effects on reputational risk, a framework made up of
four distinct steps was constructed:

e identification of reputational risk scenarios based on the C&E risk taxonomy;
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e identification of relevant stakeholders (suppliers, investors, supervisor, employees) and quantification of
their degree of sensitivity to the different scenarios;
e risk assessment, for each scenario, including analysis of the impact and probability of occurrence in order
to obtain an overall risk score;
e aggregation of results, applying weighting factors based on the relevance associated with the
stakeholders.
Based on the analyses of the most relevant reputational risk scenarios, the Bank is exposed to a moderate overall
risk.

Liquidity risk
[E1.IRO-1 AR 11]

horizon

. Physical risks can damage real estate or company property,
Physical . . . ) o
risks Bank Run potentially causing an increase in demand for liquidity and the Long-term
withdrawal of some deposits
Transition Financing Potential impact on the cost of funding from worse access to Medium-
risks cost liquidity for institutions not aligned to a Net Zero economy term

[E1.IRO-1 AR 13]

Following the materiality analyses, the Bank assessed the possible need to apply corrective measures to the way
liquidity reserves are managed, as well as to the provisioning of funds; specifically, the Bank conducted a
sensitivity analysis of the LCR (Liquidity Coverage Ratio) regulatory indicator by applying stress assumptions to
both available reserves and net outflows based on the dynamics observed on certain reference scenarios. The
analysis showed that the liquidity risk from a climate and environmental perspective is non-material: therefore,
there is currently no need to apply corrective measures to the way liquidity reserves are managed with a view to
integrating climate and environmental risks. However, the Bank will continue the monitoring analysis of potential
risks and the related impacts related to this risk exposure, as well as in evaluating the adoption of any safeguards
that may become necessary in time.

Opportunities

The Group integrates into its strategic and financial planning the prospective opportunities for the future from a
climate perspective, in accordance with its business model. The Group mapped climate-related opportunities by
grouping them into two areas:

e the ecological transition, which includes projects aimed at generating energy from renewable sources and
innovative solutions for the energy transition, as well as support for SMEs in obtaining capital (through the
NRRP, European Investment Bank, EIB, etc.) to meet environmental and/or Industry 4.0 objectives (e.g.
through Nuova Sabatini on environmental investments);

e sustainable mobility, which includes the development of sustainable mobility products and services, the
strengthening of the leasing market for low environmental impact vehicles and the entry into the leasing
sector for alternative mobility (e.g. e-bikes).

As mentioned, moreover, over the years, the Group has implemented several innovative projects to spread
awareness of the business culture with the aim of supporting Italian SMEs not only through financial products and
services, but also by narrating and highlighting the most virtuous realities, which can act as a guide for those who
want to do sustainable business.
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Furthermore, the Banca Ifis Group is already collaborating with several leading financial and non-financial partners
in the energy transition to take an active part in the international effort to combat climate change. Finally, by joining
the Net Zero Banking Alliance in 2021, the Group has already started a process of gradual decarbonisation of the,
albeit small, portion of its high-emission banking portfolio.

[E1.IRO-1 AR 11,12]

The evidence from the materiality assessment and the risks found to be material in the short-, medium- and long-
term, enabled the Bank to orientate and identify different climate and environmental risk management strategies.
Specifically, the Bank has identified the following mitigants and measures:

e inclusion within the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) of an indicator to monitor the percentage of exposure
to assets classified as high transition risk with respect to the banking group's total exposure;
e update and monitoring of the results of the materiality exercise once a year,
e annual update of the Bank's risk taxonomy document and transmission channels for climate and
environmental risks.
[E1.IRO-1 AR 11¢,12b,c]

Reference segments % exposure

Very high and high C&E sectors 22%
Moderate C&E risk sectors 45%
Low Risk C&E Sectors 27%
Individuals and PA 6%
Total 100%

Climate and environmental sectors considered to be at 'Very High' and 'High' risk include Chemical Industry -
Commaodities and Specialities, Manufacture of Coke and Coke Products, Crude Oil Extraction, Logistics and Land
Transport, Automotive - Manufacturing, Food Industry, Crops and Forestry, Rubber and Plastics Industry, and
others.

[E1.IRO-1 DP 21]

The materiality assessment on credit risk has also enabled the creation of a sectoral heatmap to identify the C&E
risk areas in the credit portfolio, including:

e heatmap of climate transition and environmental risk at sector level;
e bottom-up analysis of physical risk at the customer level using geo-referencing.

Heatmap of climate transition and environmental risk at sector level

In order to identify the sectors of economic activity in the loan portfolio that present the greatest climate and
environmental risks, the Bank has conducted an assessment activity, grouping these sectors into homogeneous
groups based on the sector of economic activity of the counterparties analysed (ATECO code).

In order to construct a segmental heatmap showing the portions of the portfolio exposed to different types of risk,
the Bank has therefore:

e identified transition risks using a "top down" approach: for each macro segment of economic activity, a
risk score on a scale of 1 (Lo